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Cetmebegin by touchinguponthe
Cresults for FY2013 and thenanov
ontodescribing some keydevelopment
whichshouldplay theirrole in defining the
trajectory ol your Company overthenext
few years.
@ Theconsolidated revenue ol your
Company lor FY201 3 wasR1 1e:3 billion;
andrecorded ayear-on-year growth of

20% Internis ol US dollars, thisamounted

to:USh 2:23 billion (based on an average
realizedrate of 1'USD =R52.10)

“This growth was primarily driven by North

America and Emerging Marketsin Global
Generics: and by the overall performanc

of the Pharmaceutical Services and Active
Ingredients (PSAI) segment
Earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
grew by 9.5%10327.8 billion; or 24% of
consolidated revenu

& Prolits alter tax (PAT) adjusted for
impairmentolintangibles and its
corresponding tax impact increased
by 17% to317:6 billion; or15% of
consolidated revenues

 During EY2013, your Company globally
launched 104 new generic products, and
filed 56 new product registrationsand 47
new drug master files (DMFs)




.

Revenue from Global Generics for FY2013
increased by 18% toX82.6 billion=~of

which North America accounted for37.8
billion, with a growth of 19% If orie

were to exclude the beneficialimpact of
olanzapine exclusivity of the earlier year and
compare like-to-like, the growth was 38 %.
Several new product launiches contributed
significantly to revenues.

Global Generics also performed well
in Emerging Markets with a 31% top-line
growth and ¥22.4 billion of revenue, Each
key market==Russia,; CIS,and the Rest of the
World territories—grew impressively.

Fam especially pleased with Global
Gernerics” Indian revenues. Alter some years
ofdifficulties, your Company has stepped up
its Indian operations. Thishasledtoa 13%
growthin the genericsrevenue, which rose
toR14.6 billion, This business must continue
growing-and doing well.

The PSATbusiness hasalso done well.
Revenue grew by 29% 160330.7 billion,
mostly onincreased sales to generic
customers, greaterlock-insand larger orders
in the custom phcnmaceumals services
busingss.

Letmenowmoveonioa ievv kq areas
ofimportance.

Overthe for e@ceabl(’ huure double
digit growth with appropriate returns on
capital will depend upan your Company’s
ability to consistently succeed in introducing
differentiated and hard-to-produce medicine
in global markets. This involves éxcellence
inseveral elements: (i) the right choice of
molecules; (i) Quality by Design (QbD);

(i) creating global R&D partnerships;

(iv) having top class manufacturing
operations which:not only meetall global
standards but alseenisure that all launch
datesare met with success; (v) successtul
playsinbiosimilars and pr()]irj’elary products;
and (viybuildinga best-in=classleadership
teanthatis always hungry forvictory.

We have started gettingourearly
successes on these fronts In large measure,
yourCompany’s good business results in
FY2013-are due toappreciable improvements
made in operations--building on a company-
wide consolidated theme of ‘Safety, Quality
and Fmdumivity’, Asanexample, in the year,

1cts worth over USD: 310 million were
oped based on the principles of Quality
gn This will increase appreciably over
the future.

Weare selecting the right products==namely,
those with great therapeutic upsides and
having significant technical challenges—-so
as to-carve high quality niches and also create
technology-based future barriers 1o entry.
And we are successiully mantufacturing
them.

We are build
skills—both in-house and through global
R&D partnerships. We have our own R&D
presence in some ofthe leading innovation

ding deep science and technology

centers of the world:

Atthe C
Cambridge, UK, which is a Centerof
Excellence (CoE) for catalysis

% At OctoPlus in Leiden, Netherlands,
which your Company acquired in FY2013.

hirotech Technology Center in

OctoPlus has significant in-house expertise
in the development and creation of
micro-spheres and liposomes that enbance
and enable controlled release of active
pharmaceutical ingredient into humans.
Itis also well known for formulating
complex injectables

At Princeton, USA, which is a CoE for
developing oral solid dosages

In our search for alternate molecules as well
as dosage forms like injectables, topicals,
patches and inhalers, we have created R&D
partnerships with several other entities,

both abroad and in India~—including our
subsidiary Aurigene and Dr. Reddy's Institute
of Life Sciences.

Qur biosimilars play is a major investment
for the future. These products give us the
opportunity to provide affordable and
innovative medicines to patients across

the globe. 1t is clear that any significant
pharmaceutical player will heed strong
biologics development, manufacturing

and commercialization capabilities. Your
Gompany-already has successfully produced
four biosimilars: (1) rituximab called
Reditux™ which has been inIndia for more
than live years, (i) filgrastim, called Grafeel®
(iily darbepoetin alpha called Cresp®, and
(iv) peg:filgrastim, which goes under the
name of Peg-Grafeel®,

To further strengthen biosimilars, the
Company entered into an alliance with
Merck Serono, a division of Merck KGaAa,
Darmstadt; Germany in June 2012, Merck
KGaAisaglobal pharmaceutical company
with proven expertise in developing,
manufacturing, and commerdcializing

biopharmaceuticals and chemical
compounds. The partnership is to co-develop
and globally commercialize a portiolio of
biosimilar compoundsin oncology, primarily

focused on monoclonal antibodies (MADs).

All theseare parts of anvexciting, vet complex
journey. On-occasions, the path will be
difficult, as it must since the payoffsare

so much greater. However, we have with
us—and are constantly creating-—a world
class global management team to execute
these challenging goals. Thr om,ll our people,
we will continue to focus on salety, quality,
productivity and supply chain reliability
and tlexibility. These initiatives, along with
ourinvestments in R&D, biosimilars and
proprietary products should help deliver
good growth and hiealthy shareholder
returns,

Ithank my colleagues and fellow
employees for all that they do—day in‘and
out-=to better the performance of your
Company. Andmy thanks to you for your
good wishes.

With best regards,

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AlRMAN'S LETTER BER




FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

CONSOLIDATED
REVENUE
INE MILLION

excluding
olanzapine
impact

PROFIT AFTER

INZMILLION

Growth

1 18%

As a
percentage
of sales

14%
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We exist to serve the world’s millions. irmovatﬁihg’ to drastically
~ lower the cost of the most needed medicines—today-—and ensuring
that critical drugs reach poor patients for even less

piwe make poverty our business? S pROKCANITRI

e

_Effectiveness and scale in social

| il
sthouls reached.
_butio over

o .
KARV provided . ’3%‘," x
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A powerful belief in people runs through*Dr. Reddy's It is in the
culture, in how our people achieve personal growth and build the company,

and in how we view social work: through the lens of human potential

“Lyvasgiven the freedom 1o implement alot ol

what Fhave dearnt and the covipany hasalwa
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The futtre belongs, not o tho
merely seek opp ity bt to those

who-create it Lot us have the courage 1o
dothing

~ When Dr. Reddy’s
_on the NYSE, i

On 11 April 2001, we becani
the first pharmaceut .
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capital, a
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Speed, boldness and perseverance. The Dr ’:Réddy’s spirit
has a lot to do with th’eSe.,Staying focused on goals, and going
ahead even when it's not the easiest path, is now embedded in

23000

~our entrepreneurial makeup

“Just be dearabout what we are doing and go-
ahead and Keep atit = pr K ANAREDDY E

Staying to win |

ati pl

g the fastest orowing o

itieal companies |

enitly dem
s and with as




diverse and chai!enging,imﬁa‘u ;
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We are in a race with ourselves. To keep delivering on our purpose for

years to come. By using deepscienceyand technology 'exg;)értise to get the

best innovations to the largest number of patients as soon as possible, and
- ~ build ng a responsible thriving business as a result

Shareholder Returns

3250 =%1.000 7 PO
(T986) 431,250 in"tights
Issue (1989)

_CROSSED 57 §
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il three bottom lines, we listen
to stakeholders and to the Earth’s biology. We
also analyse humanity’s social contracts and

Facross

these combined inputs drive the organisation
and shape every decision—right fromthe
policies inked in the boardroom to the
practices followed in the manufacturing
units.

Sustainability as a business practice is
so well-established and well-entrenched in
Dr Reddy’s thatitis anon-negotiable value.

Wehavebeen annually publishing a
comprehensive Sustainability report since
2004, The reportdetails our environmental,
social, productand economicperlormance
as per the globally recognized GRI guidelines
and are replete wiﬂ*x'pei‘f‘brmancé trends
and case studies to help stakeholders make
informed decisions. Readers can access these
reports by visiting: www., drreddys.com/
aboutus/st-reports. htmil

Corporate Identity Number of the
Company L85195AP1984PLC4507

Name of the Company
Dr. Reddy'sLaboratories Limited

Registered address
8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills;
Hyderabad 500034, India;

Wehsite www.drreddys.com
E-mail id shares@drreddys.com

Financial year reported
April 2012 to March 2013

Sector that the Company is engaged in

“Pharmaceuticals” is the primary reportable
segment,

BE or Repovs tasorAToR

List three key products/services that the
Company manufactures/provides
Giveniin financdial statements

Total number of locations where
business activity is undertaken by the
Company

Our Manufacturing and Sales & Marketing
Opeérations span around 20 countries. We
also serve our API customers who are present
across the globe,

Number of International Locations
(Provide details of major 5)
Fordetailsrefer to Additional Sharéholders’
Information, page 71,

Numberof National Locations
Fordetails refér to Additional Shareholders!

Information, page 71,

Markets served by the Company -
Local/State/National/International
Ourmajor marketsinclude United States

of America (USA), India, Russia and €18,
Germany, United Kingdom (UK), Venezuela,
South Africa and Romania.

Wealsoreach out to patients in various
other markets like Brazil, Mexico, Chile,
Philippines, Middle East and North Africa
through ourstrategic allianice with
GlaxoSinithKline (GSK).

Paid up capital

R84.92 crovés {Ason 31 -March 2013)
Total turnover (Standalone)
18,434, 01 ¢rores{Ason 3 Marchi2013)
Total profit aftertaxes (Standalone)
11,265.47 crores (Ason 31 March 2013)

Total spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of
profitaftertax

1.33%

List of activities in which the above
expenditure has been incurred
Refer principle 8

Does the Company have any Subsidiary
Company/Companies? Yes

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies
participate in the BR Initiatives of

the parent company? If yes, then
indicate the number of such subsidiary
companvy(s)

Our Subsidiary Companies are closely
integrated with our Corporate BR Initiatives.

Do any other entity/entities (e.g.
suppliers, distributors etc.) that

the Company does business with,
participatein the BR initiatives of the
Company?If yes, thenindicate the
percentage of such entity/entities?(less
than 30%, 30-60%, more than 60%)
Yes. We havea code of conduct for partners
which we expect them'to follow.

For more details, please refer to:
hitp://www.drreddys.com/media/pdf/
Supplier_CodeofConduct.pd!

Details of the Director responsible for
the implementation of BR policies
Mr: Satish Reddy

VICE-CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
DINNUMBER 00129701

Details of the BR head

Mr.Raju Subramanyam

VICE PRESIDENT, SUSTAINABILITY AND SHE
TEL 04049002339

E-MAtL rsubramanyam@drreddys.com
DIN NUMBER NA



PRINCIPLE WISE BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY POLICIES

Weabide by all laws Q( the land and are a signatory to the 10 principlés bf the UNI R
Global compact. We take into accountindustry best practices and global benchmarks
in defm ing our polmes

Statutory pohc lesare placed before the Boald for .consideration and appnoval All odwe:
po(m es are appro\/ed by CEO/MD

The xosp@nsobi ity'of the :mplementatxon policies and thevr review primarily lies-wi th the
respected business/function head.

S 5’(*(;3?//www4

1et-2012 pdf

,Qdy

f
deeofConduct.pdf

p
orslpdficobe-booklet-2012 pdf

&8

flcobe-booklet-2612 pd

-
T

<
P

http//fwwadrreddys.com/aboutus/pdi/SHE p ﬁcy.péf ‘

hitp/Awew. drreddys comiinvestors/pdf/cobe-bogk
http/Awwiv.drreddys.com/aboutus/pdf/SHE

drreddys.cem/investorsipd

hitp:/wwwdrreddys comifinves
htp /A, drreddys,com/mvestors/ pdf/cobe-booklet-2012.pdf

hnp://www.drréddys.coh/méd%a/édf/Supp er CodeofCor
http ://wWw. drreédys.iom/i nvestors/pdf)cobe—boekietéf)? 2.pdf

http/Avwwydrreddys.com/media/pdf/Suppli

Employees are required to sign an undertaking, at least annually, stating that they have
read the COBE and comply with its principles. New employees are required to'sign a
similar undertaking at the time of joining, Additionally, all our policies with respect to
the nine principles are available on the company website.

Yes

We address concerns from our stakeholder’s at the respective department level. We
have a shareholder’s grievance committee to address all shareholder concerns. We
also have a dedicated Ombudsperson Procedure to address all concerns related to our
Company level policies.

We comply to the nine principles broadly through the following policies- Code of

- Business Conduct and Ethics (COBE), SHE Policy and Principles, Quality Policy, Purchase
policy and HR policies. These policies are regularly reviewed by various internal and
external agencies, including regulatory agencies. We also proactively follow public
advocacy through various forums

The Management Council meets every quarter under the chairmanship of the CEO.
It identifies, measures, ronitors and controls the risk factors in the business and
ensures safe, sound and efficient operation on a regular basis. The Board of Directors/
Commmee of Dnrectors also periodically review certam elements of BR porformance

We have been publsshmg our Sustainability Report every year since 2004

iy reeort EER




Principle 1
Ethics, Transparency
& Accountability

A business can truly thrive only if its
operations are built on a foundation of
strong ethics: At Dr. Reddy’s, compliance,
integrity and transparency are core business
requisites and have been deeply embedded
into our people, processes and policies.
Our responsibility towards a sound and
ethical governance system extends beyond
the boundary of our business operations
and permeates across the organisation’s
subsidiaries and affiliates.

HIGHEST STANDARDS OF COMPLIANCE

# We are the first non-Japanese
pharmaceutical company from Asia to be

A DB REDDY'S LABORATO

TED O e

Now report violations

h

listed on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE)

# Wealso have the recognition of being the
first manufacturing company in India, and
one of the firstin Asia, to be Sarbanes-Oxley
compliant

% Full compliance with Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement with Indian Stock
Exchanges and with the applicable corporate
governance standards of the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE)

RESPONSIBLE AND ETHICAL CONDUCT
Anunrelenting thrust on high standards of
governance is ever evident at Dr. Reddy’s—
rightfrom the Boardof Directorsand
managementtothe employees. A multitude
of governance mechanisms helps us achieve
the letter in spirit:

Robust internal control systems which
are regularly reviewed by both external and
internal auditors

hrough a dedicated

# Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
(COBE) lays down the principles on ethics,
bribery and corruption which applies to

not just all our full-time and part-time
employees, but also our subsidiaries and
affiliates. We have also setforth a ‘Supplier
Code of Conduct’ to guide the conduct of our
suppliers, vendors and service providers

An Ombudsman Procedure has been
articulated under COBE to take into
account procedures for investigation and
communication of any report on any
violation or suspected violation of the Code
All our emiployees are trained in anti-
corruption policies and procedures and
undergoa COBE test

ANTI-CORRUPTION. FREE COMPETITION
We have created widespread awareness of
our whistle-blower policies and procedures.
Issues concerning corruption, if any, are
looked into and appropriately addressed



A policy isin place to discourage the
receipt of gifts, entertainment or payments
by emplovyees, either directly or indirectly,
from parties conducting or seeking to
conduct business with Dr. Reddy’s

i We prescribe to free competition and
encourage our employees to conduct
operations in accordance with all applicable
competition laws and regulations that
prohibit monopolization

A TWO-PRONGED SUSTAINABILITY
APPROACH
As an organisation committed to responsible

business, sustainability is a prime parameter
at both levels—

# Corporate Level where overall policies
and strategic divection are set and capital is
allocated

# Business Group Level which generates
revenue and where the impact on
communities and the environment is most
immediate

TRANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTABILITY
we have established systems and procedures
to disseminate relevant information to

our stakeholders, including shareholders,
analysts, suppliers, customers, employees
and the society at large. The primary source
of information regarding our operations is
our corporate website ‘www.drreddys.cony’.
Financial data is disbursed via quarterly
finandal result announcement and annual
financial reports, and triple bottom line
performance is presented through the
Sustainability Report. In addition, various
communication channels are deployed

to reach out to our varied stakeholders.

For detailed information, refer stakeholder
engagement principle.

Principle 2
Products Lifecycle
Sustainability

AtDr. Reddy’s, we believe that our products
have the power to not only heal lives but also
herald sustainable change. We continue to
invest time, money and energy in making
our products safe, eco-conscious, affordable
and efficacious.

In the last two years, we focussed on
holistically transforming our operations.and
embedding ‘Responsibility by Design’ across
every phase of the product lifecycle. Ongoing

mechanisms were strengthened and several
new strategic interventions introduced.
Key drivers of our product excellence

journey include:

AFFORDABILITY AND ACCESSIBILITY

Dr. Reddy’s was founded with a singular
goal-—to provide access to atfordable
medicine. Our focus towards this core
purpose is unwavering-—at every step,
every decision and in every product. From
development to distribution, we incorporate
the tenets of Availability, Affordability and
Accessibility and actualize them through our
three core businesses—Global Generics,
Pharmaceutical Services and Active
Ingredients (PS Al and Proprietary
Products.

SAFETY AND EFFICACY

Health and well-being of patients is our
core responsibility, hence product safety
reigns paramount at Dr. Reddy’s. The thrust
is to design out ‘quality and safety hazards’
through better process engineering, capable
machines and better practices.

We are also developing products using
the principles of Quality by Design(QbD},
which ensures higher manufacturability. A
well-organized and alert Pharmacovigilance
function tracks and addresses any reported
Adverse Drug Reactions (ADRs) across the
entire life cycle of our product.

GREEN CHEMISTRY
We are committed to the principles of Green
Chemistry & Engineering (GCE). We have
developed a green matrix through which
we monitor and manage various aspects like
Atom Efficiency, E-factor, Reaction Mass
Intensity and Energy Efficiency.

Green Chemiistry has empowered
us to develop a number of new products
without the use of volatile solvents such as
Dichloromethane, Acetone and Ethers. We
are also in the process of setting an industry
benichmark of reducing the waste to 20-25 kg
per kilogram of product vis-a-vis the industry
average of producing 25~100 kg waste per
kilogram of product.

SUSTAINABLE SOURCING

We engage with a diverse set of business
partners ranging {rom large organizations

1o SMEs and nurture relationships with
indigenous business partners for key raw
material supplies. We strive to enhance their

We regularly donate our
short-dated medicines to the
United Nations (UN) which

has effective channels and
mechanisms to affect drug
intervention where it is needed
the most.

Being a process-driven
organization and being
involved in the manufacturing
of multiple products, we focus
on overall environmental
management. For details, visit
http:/iwww.drreddys.com/
sustainabilitylenvironment

We launched the world’s first
generic darbopoetin alpha in
India under the brand name
Cresp® in 2010. It provides
affordable treatment option
for patients in India with
savings of upto 28 to 55%.
More than 20,000 patients
have been treated with
Reditux™ —world’s first
biosimilar monoclonal
antibody.

S RESPONSIBILITY REBORY




l Global Workforce
inFY2013

16,500+

employees

23+

nationatities

B Training Programs
in FY2013

5,250 man days

of training delivered by

Leadership academy

3,593

Diversity Snapshot
MALE EMPLOYEES %
FEMALE EMPLOYEES B

| 156,504

15,200

BR REDDY!S LABD

el e ANNU

capabilities through various training and
knowledge sharing practices.

We strive to embed sustainable practices
among our raw material suppliers, contract
manufacturers and authorised business
partners as every actionimpacts the
sustainability of every other member. We
focus on three core aspects

Mandatory Supplier Induction Training for
all new vendors

Penetration of salety culture among sur
suppliers

Periodic trainings on quality excellence

Sharing of best practices via audits and
conferences

@ Cascading the Supplier Code of Conduct

# Troubleshooting labs and support labs for

vendors

Focus on shifting vendors near to the
manufacturing site
Increasing sea shipments by 50%

Introduction of new packaging solutions
for cold chain products

i Reducing solvent usage and enhancing its
recovery
& Cutting down repeated testing ol raw

materials which bave a stable track records

Adopting Green IT practices for waste
minimization and resource conservation

Principle 3
Promoting Employee
Well-being

Transforming an individual's high potential
into high performance takes meaningful
engagement, strong motivation, equal
opportunities, adequate leadership and
healthy work-life balance.

While product innovation and customers
enable growth, it is our people who actualise
it. We hence foster a stimulating work
culture that nurtures an atmosphere of
encouragement, empowerment and team

spirit,

EMPLOYEE COMPOSITION

Beiteulture, age, gender, caste, religion,
language or ethnicity, Dr. Reddy's is
committed o building arich and diverse
workforce., Weregularly enhance this
diversity by enhiancing our globaltalent pool;
inducting voung and fresh-talent, employing
differenty-abled individuals, andenhancing
the ratioof female employees:

Employee selectionisbased ontalent
and merit. Today, our global workforce
comprises 16,500+ employeesiromover 23
nationalities. In 2013, we made a conscious
effort1o-build diversity in the workforce
by recruiting 33% womenin our.campus
recrudtments.

TALENT POOL

We ensure perfodic enhancement of our

employees’ competency, skills and attitudes
in tune with the changing times and their
growing job profile. We provide training
based on the improvermnent arcasidentified
during our rigorous talent review process. In
the reporting year, our Leadership Academy
delivered a-total of over 5,250 man-days of
training. Emiplovees also attended over 450
externalprograms: In addition, multiple
technicaltraining programs were conducted
at the respective business units.

We have institutionalizeda
comprehensive Talent Management
Process wherein our three-tiered Talent
Management Board (TMB) identifics high
potential employvees and young emerging
leaders and grooms them-for higher
responsibilities.

PERFORMANCE PERKS

We have institutionalized a host.of policies,
facitities as well as tangible and intangible
incentives which include but are not limited

o flexible work timings, sabbatical leave,

part-time work, paternity & maternity leave
as well as leave for those adopting a child,
so that our emplovees can strike a healthy

work-life balance.

ACTIVE ENGAGEMENT

Employee engageruentisa healthy two-way
communication systemyat Dr. Reddy’s. We
empower each of our employees-—I{rom
boardroom to shop floor—with ample
communication platforms across regions.and
time zones. Some of thenrinclude: quarterly
employee communication sessions, open

houses-atthe plants, 360%feedback and

focused interviews.
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FREEDOM OF ASSQCIATION

In every area of operation, thereis a freedom
of association for all employees, including
contract workmen, to exercise their right

to form an association. We respect this right
of employees, recognize their associations/
unions through a code of disciplines and
negotiate on all matters pertaining to service
conditions leading to mutual benefits. We
have recognized unions in eight of our
manufacturing units in India and all the
permanent workmen in these units are
members of the union., About 5% of our total
workforce are members of the union.

BEYOND WORK

We at Dr. Reddy’s blend work with play,
celebrate achievements and provide
platforms for employees to socialize among
themselves and reduce stress. Programs like
‘Celebrations —our annual employee event
strengthens inclusiveness and fuels team

spirit in the organization. Programs are hosted

at regular intervals comprising fun games,
cultural eventsand collective celebration of
employees” birthdays during the month. A
gym at our corporate office and facilities for

playing sports ke table tennis, cricker and
football at some of our laciliies ensures that
our emplovees are fit and healthy.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

# While the medicines we produce
are targeted to save human health, the
manufacturing practices and proces
adopt are carefully chosen keeping in mind
the safety of our workforce. ‘Parivartan’——

25 We

our operations transformation exercise

is driving a new safety paradigm across

the organization. The intentis to achieve
a‘Safety Cultural Transformation’ by
demonstrating commitment tosafety at

all levels, line management ownership of
safety, and capability building in the area of
safety. This journey has progressed well with
standards of salety having shown significant
improvement and the awareness and
ownership on safety going up considerably
across all levels in the organization

@ InFY2013, atotal of 3,593 internal
safety training programs were conducted
equivalentto 15,027 man days of training

W Employees are provided with a free
annual health check-up as well as medical

Contractual Employees
CONTRACT EMPLOYEES IN INDIA
CONTRACT STAFF IN NORTH
AMERICA, MEXICO & CHIROTECH M

™M
@

ol
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. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT PLATFOﬁMS

insurance. Beyond employee healtheare, we
also extend medical support to employees’
parents

We have a framework in place to
ensure that no complain on harassment
poes unheard. Employees can write to the
Compliance Officer voicing their concern.
In case of complaints pertaining to sexual
harassment, employees can reach out to
the ‘Committee on complaints for sexual
harassment’

Principle 4
Stakeholder
Engagement

A business exists for and because ofits
stakeholders. At Dr. Reddy’s, we build lasting
bonds with all our stakeholders, internal

and external, and engage with themin
meaningful two-way communication. Tt
helps us review our actions, rethink our
roadmap, redress grievances and recognize
new avenues for revenues.

IR o recbyvs LABORATORIE

Organisation Health Index

Employee Communication meets | In-house Publications | Intranet |

CEQ; MD communication | 360 degree feedback | Employee Events | Training Programmes

or detalls, refer fir Reday's Sustainability Report’ shiolderengagement séction at:

httpdfwwwidrreddys.comisustainability/stakehald

Analyst Meets | Quarterly Financial Results [-Annual Report | Sust
 Earing Calls | Email Communication | Press Releases and Presentations

Fordetails refer D Reddy’s Sustainability-Report's stake

Rt dreddys comisustainabilitystakehold

Dr. Reddy’s Foundation (DRF), the non-profit

For details, refér principle & or Dr. Reddy's Sustainability-Repo

cider

igagement.asy

ability Report

ngagement section at:

at thitp:ifwwwe drréddys.comisustainabilityidrf.asp

D¥, Reddy’s Foundation for Health Education (DRFHE)

Patients Life at Your Doorstep | Living Well programmes | Sparsh

Health Professionals DRFHE PGDHM | Case Manager's programme for cancer counselling |
Inner Circle: Relationship building programmes | Abhilasha: Nursing Efficiency programme |

Sarathi: Doctor's Assistant Programime

ustainability Report at: itpdlwe drreddys.com/s

ability/drthe

Customers Customersatisfaction survey | Regular business meetings

Business PartnersVendors: Vendor meets | Strategic business partner train

and-develgpment

For details; refer [ir. Reddy's Sustamability Report’sstakeholder engagermeant section:at:

httpt i drréddys.comisustain i

The details of our key stakeholder
engagement platforms are given in Table 2.

IDENTIFICATION AMD INTERACTIONS
We have invested time and resources in
identifying varied clusters of stakeholders
that are directly and indirectly affected by
our operations and developed targeted
engagernent mechanistos for each cluster.
Atotal of 21 shareholder complaints
were received and resolved during the year
2012-13.

Principle 5
Human Rights

We champion meritocracy and strongly
support and uphold the execution of fair
practices and inclusive growth. In October
2010, we became a signatory to the UN
Global Compact, supporting the 10 principles
of the Global Compact with respectto
human rights, labour, environment and
antizcorruption. Our Code of Business
Conduct sets forth high standards of human
rights. We strictly condemn non-compliance

Jement.aspy

with any of our principles. This applies to
all our Directors, employees, subsidiaries
and affiliates. A separate ‘Supplier Code of
Conduct’ has been inked for our suppliers,
vendors and service providers.

At all our campuses every individual
is reated with-equal dignity, enjoys equal
rights and has the freedom to voice his/her
mind withoutany inhibitions.

We do not tolerate any form of
harassment in our organisation. We do not
ermnploy nor encourage any child or forced
labourat any of our locations. Anyone who
is found to be engaged in any unlawiul
discrimnination is subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination. In
the reporting year, no serious human rights
violations were broughtfo the organisation’s
notice.

In case of new investments, we conduct
human rights screenings and-also-have
related-assessments for strategic suppliers.
Anyonewhois foundto be engaged in
any unlawlul diserimination is subject to
disciplinary-action, up to and including

termination.




: o=
A shareholder speaking at our last AGM

Compliance of HR principles is ensured
by conducting regular HR audits. Monthly
meeting of HR heads from respective
departments provides an ideal platforn to
flag off concerns, if any, and collectively
propose and execute refinements.

However, awareness in the healthcare
industry is not just limited to information
printed on packages. It also encompasses
social perceptions about medical conditions
and debunking myths and fears related to
them. Hence, we have multiple initiatives
that help generate awareness among people.

Principle 6
Environment

At Dr. Reddy's, we operate on the premise
that ‘prevention is better than rectification’
and hence are committed towards
embedding ‘conservation by design’.

[tis our constant endeavour to embed
environmental sustainability right at the
design and development stage. We regularly
assess potential environmental risks posing
the organisation and strategize actions to

mitigate the same. This approach helps us
champion green endeavors that go beyond
regulatory compliance.

We are spearheading the uptake of Green
Chemistry not just within the Company,
but also within the Indian pharmaceutical
industry. Our waste water recycling plant
commissioned in 2004~03 holds the
distinction of being the first of its kind in the
pharmaceutical sectoy in India.

During the year nine significant
environment management projects were
initiated with an investment 0of 3251 million

Detailed below are few of the initiatives
that are helping us raise our green quotient:

GREEN ROADMAP
We have in place a ‘SHE Policy and
Principles’ to inspire our workforce to
reduce environmental stress. The policy
and principles are also communicated to
all our stakeholders and efforts are being
made to make them responsible towards its
compliance.

Going further, we have also
institutionalized an organization-wide
‘Environmental Commitment Statement’

Conservation Projects
in FY2013

<251 mn

invested in 9 environment management

projects

<156 mn

invested in 29 energy conservation

projects

RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
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charting ambitious targets and actionable
steps for key environmental performance
indicators.

Year-on-year, we assess cach unit’s
progress on the said targets and strategize
appropriate actions. The objective is to
encourage and engage every employee of
Dr. Reddy’s to contribute towards making
the organization greener, cleaner and
sustainable.

ACTION AGAINST CLIMATE CHANGE

We are committed towards managing climate

change both within and beyond our sphere
of influence. We have embedded ‘a culture
ol conservation” among our employees and
business partners.

We continually implement initiatives
onseveral green parameters like clean
technology, energy efficiency and renewable
energy. Below is a glimpse of some of our
key environmentally-friendly projects. For
detailed information, please refer Dr, Reddy's
Sustainability Report’s ‘Environment
Performance” and ‘Sustainable Sourcing’
sections.

IFT o REDDYV/S LABORATORIES LiMITED

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

We are conscious of the fact thatif more
energy goes around, more emissions come
around’. Hence, we strive to recreate and
redefine processes that help us tread lightly.

During the reporting period a total of

29 energy conservation projects were
identified with total investment of 1156
million and potential annual savings of

77 million. These projects are in varfous
stages of implementation and expected to be
completed by middle of FY2014

¢ The new corporate office of Dr. Reddy’sisa

D certified Gold-rated Green Building

A4 kW solar powerplant has been
installed at our office in Ameerpet,
Hyderabad

Coalisreplaced with agri waste briguettes
for boilers at two of our manufacturing units

WASTE MANAGEMENT

# 80% ol our organic waste is productively
deployed as auxiliary fuel in the cement
industry

@ Enhanced solvent recovery under our

Program to Achieve Cost and Capabilities

Excellence (PACE) has resulted in a saving of

1500 million

¥ Ventcondensers on process reactors to
eliminate fugitive emissions

Carbon adsorptionsolvent recovery
system has been installed at our

Formulations Hyderabad plant 3

Water Conservation-Water is the single
mostimportant nutrientnot justfor people
but also-forthe planet. Towards conservation
of this.depleting precious resource, we

continue to boost our 3R {(Reduce, Recycle
Replenish) water management approach

ClI water audit with potential savings of
350 kl/d at our APT Nalagonda plant

CHB evaporative condensers toreduce
load on cooling towers at our APISrikakulam
plant

Atourmanufacturing facilities, 100% of
the wastewateris recycled and wtilized for
boilers, cooling tower makeup & gardening




SHE members at o monthly review meeting

Atourtechnology development centers,
wastewater is sent to authorized common
effluenttreatment plants for further
treatment & disposal

# Rain water harvesting system at
Formulations Hyderabad Plant 1 with a
potential to sequester 30,000 kl per annum

Installation of a rain water harvesting
system at our Bachupally, Hyderabad campus

AR QUALITY

Managing air quality is on our development
agenda. We already track particulate matter,
NOx and SOx emissions and are closely
following evolving norms on other pollutants
such as VOCs. Our emissions generated

are well within permissible limits given by
CPCB/SPCB

COMPLIANCE & BEYOND

Four of our units are recipients of the 1ISO
14001 Environmental Management System
certification.

We are currently in the process of
developing comprehensive internal
corporate environmental standards and
procedures which shall provide a framework
to

¢ Assess potential environmental risks
associated with our operations

Prevent, mitigate and control
environmental damage & possible disasters

GREEN VALUE CHAIN

We extend our commitment beyond our
premises and encourage our vendors and
partners to also adopt environment-friendly
practices.

From raising awareness to empowering
them through training, we lead and mentor
our strategic partners to go green and
help them reduce their environmental
risks. Programs like the mandatory
supplier induction training continue to be
implemented for all new vendors to sensitize

them to our business processes and culture.

For information on Green Chemistry and
Sustainable Sourcing, refer principle 2

DR. REDDY’'S ENVIRONMENT
PERFORMANCE REPORT IN A SNAPSHOT:
Please refer to: http://www.drreddys.com/
sustainability/environment-performance.asp
for details on Dr. Reddy’s environment
performance.

Principle 7
Policy Advocacy

At Dr. Reddy's, we have always encouraged
our employees to share their knowledge and
experience through external public forums
and thereby impact the overall narrative and
influence policy. During the period under
review our technical and commercial teams
participated in many professional forums
including CII, TPA, Chapters of ICAL and
industry round tables, among others.

Membership to some of the industry bodies
and Chambers Association:

Confederation of Indian Industry (C1I)
FICCH

RESPONSIBILITY REFORT




Our social interventions are
driven by outcomes. We
regularly gauge the impact of
our initiatives via formal and
informal mechanisms. DRF-
Dr.Reddy’s social arm releases
an ‘Annual Report which
charts out measurable impact.
Additionally, the company’s
Sustainability Report also
comprehensively presents the
social performance -

# Indo American Chamber of Commerce
(IACC)

i Indian Pharmaceutical Alliance (IPA)

W Pharmexcil

# Bulk Drug Manufacturers Association
(BDMA)

. Indian Drug Manufacturers Association
(IDMA)

8§ CI GreenBusiness Centre

WWF Iridia

Federation of Andhra Pradesh Chambers

ol Commerce & Industry (FAPCCD)

Principle 8
Equitable Development

At DrReddy’s; we ownisocial responstbilities
with equalpassion aud professionalisin,

We leverage our expertise and résources to
research community needs, develop and
pilot new projects, scale them up, assess

its impactand once proven successful,
collaborate with the government and vatious
Non-Governmerital Organisations (NGOs) to
roll thenout.

We engage with the community at
two levels, one being inand around our
campuseswith theactive involvement.of
our employees and the other wherein we
lend support to Non-Profit Organisations
such as Dr. Reddy’s Foundation (DRF),
Naandi Foundation and the Centre for Social
Initiative and Management (C51M).

While we touch multiple lives in multiple
ways, our focus is on three main life-altering
areas: Livelihoods, Education and Patient
Care.

LOCAL INTERVENTIONS

VPLIFTING THE

U
Our patient care initiatives are geared
towards making life more comfortable for
patients—{inancially, physically as well as
emotionallv. A key focus area is cancer care
and we have well-thought-out initiatives
which address every facet of the patient care
sphere, be'it accessing quality medications,
emotional support, treatment interventions,
awareness camps or free check-up camps.

CHAN
EEMACATION
We work to make education more accessible
for children in rural India and also aim at

improving school infrastructure by key tools

GING THE PARADIGHMS O

BT of HEODYS LABORATORIES LINITED |

like: Scholarships for Higher Education,
Coaching camps, Distributing learning tools.

THEOUGH SMTs

The first pharmaceutical company in India
to implement the Self~Managed Team (SMT)
initiative, we aim to provide-employment

to youth from economically disadvantaged
communities: Therecrultment strategy
purely focuses onruraland semi-urbanareas
where eriplovability is a challenge. These
students earn while they Jearn. All team
inembersare encouraged to pursuehigher
educationon complctioﬁ ofwhiclhithey take
o bjghéi‘ responsibilities and grow in their
career be it inourorganization, inanother
organization'oras an entrepreneur,

NATION-WIDE INTERVENTIONS

LR RE ; STICN

Dt Reddy’s Foundation (DRF), the non-
profitarm of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, acts
asa change agentin thesocial sector, by
identilying and pursuing new opportunities
to serve the community in two core areas:

Ourlivelihood programs work towards
enhancing the employability of urban and
rural youth.
# LABS Our Livelihood Advancement
Business School programs are. developed
for youth between the age of 1810 35 who
have limited opportunities and inadequate
skill sets, To enable these youth to gain a
foothold in today's competitive job market,
LABS equips them with job specific skills,
soft skills and placement linkages. Currently
DRF operates over 100 LABS centers across
21 states-and has generated over 2,80,000
livelihoods till date
% SRI—Skilling Rural India An initiative
to help rural youth gain skills which translate
into employmentwithin the rural milieu,
thereby overcome pressing problems such
as the need for migration, poor income,
isolation-from family and village life; the
tribulations of adjusting to urban way ot life
andthe poorretention rate

Over and above technical training, the
SRI training module also comprises life skills

training.

DRE strives to provide various opportunities
for learning to those who have never been




Students at a Pudamii school

to school, or have dropped out of it; it also
works to improve the quality of education
in schools through diverse initiatives and
programs. We work through a well-woven
fabric of stakeholders, communities, official
institutions and schools to encompass
children from all walks of life and to
introduce as well as mainstream them in
education.

DRF’s education initiatives include:
Education Resource Centre (ERC) | Pudami
Neighbourhood Schools and English
Primaries | Kallam Anji Reddy Vidyalaya
(KARV) | Special School for Homeless
Children | Kallam Anji Reddy Vocational
Junior College (KAR-VJIR) | Yuva Youth
Learning Centres | Non-Residential Bridge
Centres (NRBCs) and Residential Bridge
Centres (RBCs).

Formore details please refer: http://www.
drreddysfoundation.org

YR FOUNDATH

Dr. Reddy’s Foundation
Operations

100 LABS centres

280,000+

livelihoods generated since inception

ATION (DRFHE)
DRHFE works in collaboration with the
medical fraternity to facilitate an integrated

multidisciplinary approach to good health.

Siscation and Training tnitlaties

The aim is to bring about a transformation in
patient care by teaching as well as imparting
soft skills and life skills training to healthcare
stakeholders via focused programs:

Abhilasha Training nurses to sharpen
their skills and self-confidence

Sarathi Enhancing the skill-sets of
doctors’ assistants

Inner Circle Teaching patient- handling
skills to young doctors (PGs)

# Sanjeevani Helping pharmacists improve
their skills and develop empathy towards

customers

Aakriti Empowering dental doctors to
sharpen their skills

Disaster Preparedness Workshop
Training the hospital staff towards efficient
crisis management

esponsiaiiry Report IR
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LABS studem at work | in A pr:vdte hosp:tai at Kanmnagar Andh 4 Pradesh, Indaa

130

Sales Training Programs
in FY2013

20,000 man days

of traning provided to trainee

ntatives

400 man d‘ays

of training to Training Managers for On-

job training with select PSRs

DR REDDY'S LABORAT

Awareness for Life: Aimed at spreading
awareness about lifestyle diseases among

corporate India

Lue at Your Boor:
eq ui]:n’)ed medical
nurse and patient counsellor is dispatched

van with a team of doctor,

to provide home care for terminally ill
patients

Aastha Sensitizes doctors and nurses 1o
palliative care and increases their awareness
levels

For more details, ple refer: http:/ Iwww.

drreddys.com/sustainability/drthe.asp

Principle 9
Customer Value

Every day, ourproductsimpact the dives ol
millions of patients around the world: Hence
We remain uncompromising on-ensuring
360° customer value-—safety, efficacy, cost-

competency, accessibility, transparency and
accouritability. ‘Pharmacovigilance’, ‘Salety
by Design’, ‘pharmacopeia adherence and

‘bioethics” are active ingredientsin our

product developraent formula:

To ensure that-we prove worthy of the
trust our customers place on us we employ
below steps:

360° SAFETY COMMITMENT
Be it products or proc
first at Dr. Reddy’s. We adhereto gl

&

safety comes
obally-
recognized, safety benchmarks Z kethe

International Conference on Harmonization
(ICH) guidelines andhave instituted a
comprehensive safety assurance model that
ty-hazardsfrom

weeds outsafety and qualit
the developmentstage of aproducttoits end

distribution.

PHARMACOVIGILANCE

The Pharmacovigilance (PV) and Glinical
Management Group are key arms of our
organization that guards our medici
against adverse effects, if any. The




Pharmacovigilance team intervenes at an
carly stage, rather than acting asa watchdog.
Weincorporate global Pharmacovigilance
mandatesacross the entire product
developmentlifecycle. Towards this end,
we have structured processes in place to
monitor signals and events across the globe
and identily cause-effect relationships. Toll
free mumbers have beentset up invarious
countrics tofacilitate reporting of adverse
eventsanda Drug Safety Assessmentand

action.

ADDRESSING COUNTERFEIT
Besidessales losses 1P mfringemems and
reputation drain, counterleit drugs pose
one ol thebiggest risks to a patients” health:
AtDroReddy’s, we have deployed a robust
process o prevent counterfeiting of our
products: Some of the key systemsand
initiatives we have instituted to avert this
breachinclude:

- Use of a specific sequence for batch
nimbering, manufacturing and expiry date
CUse ol hiolograny stickers

Eriiployment of specialized printing
techniquestosafeguard products from cheap
counterfeits

- Imiplementation of a coin réactive zone

CUSTOMER AWARENESS
Medicines are a product category where even
a slight misappropriation of information
could lead to fatalities. We ensure that this
responsibility towards our customers is
demonstrated throughout our marketing and
promotional material and all information
is provided in an unambiguous and precise
manner.

At all times we seek to engage with
our customers in utmaost transparency and
accountability. We keep them updated
about the composition and effects of
our pharmaceutical products. Literature
pertaining to promotional comtent or any
Customer Relationship Management activity,
sclentific seminar, symposium etc. undergoes
a stringent authentication process by our
Product Management team and Medical
Affairs Team. All our Professional Sales
Representatives (PSRs) undergo in-depth
training, so that they are well versed with
product information and communication
skills: Ourin-house Medical Affairs Team
addresses queries from PSRs and doctors,
regarding our products, within 48 hours.

During FY2013 over 20,000 man-days of
training was provided to trainee Professional
Sales Representatives (PSRs) - Apart from
this, the Training Managers also undertake
OIT(On=-Job:Training)y witli select PSR as
joint ficld work: Thisamounted (o over400
man=daysin FY2013,

However, awarenessinthe healthéare
industry is notjust limited1o information
printed on packages. Italso.encompasses
social perceptionsaboutmedical.conditions
and debunking myths and fears related to
them: Henee, we havemuliiple initiatives
thathelpgencrate awareness among people:

PromOTE India is one suchinitiative
thatpromotes carly detection, awareness
and diagnosis which helps protong the life
ofcancer patients: Theinifiative works
by connecting Oncologists and General
Practitioners (GPs) whicliin turn empowers
professionals like GPs and other non-
oncology doctors toenable early detectionof
cancer. Wealso run a program on Lymphomia
Awarengss—aninteractive campaignon
fadio channels across India where eminent
oncologists address listéner’s queries on the
subject;

ROSHINI s aninitiative to diagnose all
undetected diabetic cases in India. Launiched
in November 2008, theinidative includes
activities like ghucose screening camps at a
doctor’s clinicand talksat schools which give
children information about diabetes, obesity,
diet pattern and physical activities which
helpprevent diabetes.

E5S RESPONSIBILITY REPORT ]
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- I Reddy’s business segments are
described as under:

i Global Generics(GG) segment, which
includes our branded and unbranded
prescription and over-the-counter (OTC)
drug products business. This segment also
includes the operations of our Biologics

business;

# Pharmaceutical Services and Active
Ingredients (PSAL segment, which
consists of our Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (API) business and Custom
Pharmaceutical Services (CPS) business; and
@ Proprietary Products segment, which
consists of our New Chemical Entities
(NCEs), Differentiated Formulations and
dermatology focused specialty business
operated through Promius™ Pharma.

We have a strong presence in highly
regulated markets such as the United States,
the United Kingdom and Germany, as well
asin other key markets such as India, Russia,
Venezuela, Romania, South Africa and
certain countries of the former Soviet Union.
Given below is a brief outline of the
businesses. Further details are to be found in
subsequent sections of this chapter.

% Revenues from GG for FY2013
increased by 18% and stood at ¥82.6
billion. if the beneficial impact of
Olanzapine exclusivity in FY2012 was (o

be excluded, the year on year growth was
26%. Growth was primarily driven by North
America and the Emerging Markets

& Revenues from North America for
FY2013 were337.8 billion, and recorded a
year-on-year growth of 19%. Excluding the
beneficial impact of olanzapine exclusivity
in FY2012, the growth was 38%. Growth is
largely driven by key limited competition
products, ramp-up of the Company’s
antibiotics portfolio and products from the
Formulations Shreveport plant. There was
a significant contribution to the top-line
from 14 new product launches, FY2013
also saw 19 product filings in the region: 18
abbreviated new drug applications (ANDAs)
and one under the 505(b) (2} route
Revenues from Emerging Markets
for FY2013 were at ¥22.4 billion—
representing a year-on-year growth of
31%. Within Emerging Markets:
# Revenues from Russia were T14.0
billion—recording a growth of 27%

Revenues from other CIS markets for
FY2013 were 2.9 billion—a growth of
28%

Revenues from Rest of World (Row)
territories were 35,5 billion-—and grew

by 42%

Revenues from India for FY2013 were
at 114.6 billion, and grew by 13%

Revenues from PSATin FY2013 were at
330.7 billion~—representing an annual
growth of 29%. This growth was due to
increased sales to generic customers and
higher ordersin the CPS business.

During the year, 47 DMFs were filed
globally, including five in the US and 10in

Notes: FY2013 represents fiscal year 2012-13, from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013, and analogously for FY2012 and
previously such labelled years. Unless otherwise stated, financial data given in this Management Discussion and Analysis is

based on the Company's consolidated IFRS statements.

Business Highlights

#116.3 bn

In USD terms, this amounted to USD 2.23*
billion. If the beneficial impact of olanzapine

exclusivity in FY2012 was to be excluded,
the year-on-year growth was 26%.

Dr. Reddy's growth was primarily driven by
North America and Emerging Markets—
which include Russia, other CIS countries
and Rest of World (RoW) territories— in the
Global Generics segment; and by the overall

performance of the PSAL segment.

which accounted for 24% of consolidated

revenues.

317.6 bn -

15% of consolidated revenues.

During FY2013, the Company globally

faunched 104 new generic products, and
filed 56 new product registrations and 47
(DMF)

r files

* US doliar revenues hased on
realized USD rate of 1 USD = ¥52.

an average
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North America
Generics Highlights

¥37.8 bn

sales in FY2013: 237,846 million with a
growth of 19%

14

new products aun f

new product filings during the year

1 Pharr 19 markets are defined as those
on absolute spending

and also have GDP per

R@;r!a-i a, r,\,y_n! U

orid Health Organ
t on Non

3. World Health
Disease. A Vital In

53, pp. 4-64.

4.UN Populations Division.

EPE o Repbivs asorarories Livited ERET

Europe. The cumulative number of DMF
filings as of 31 March 2013 1s 577.
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The global pharmaceutical marketis

tzsun‘:awd to cross USD 1 urillion in 2013 Itis
expected to grow at a CAGR 0l 6% to reach
USD 1.2 trillion by 2016 (IMS, The Global
Use of Medicines: Outlook through 2016).

This growth will be largely contributed
by whatis called the’
generics and the biclogies space. For the
period from 2011 to 2016, pharmerging
markets have been estimated to grow ata
CAGR of 12% 10 15%; generics at a CAGR m
L1 % to 12%; and biologics ata CAGR of 5
0 6%.

During the sare period, developed
markets, coping with patent expiries, are
expected to register much lower growth
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ estimated at a CAGR of 1% to 4%, Of all
developed markets, the US still continues
o bethe largest, followed by Japan and
Germany. However, what needs noting is
that by growing at a significantly higher
rate, the pharmerging markets ave expe cted
to account for 30% of the global market in
2016, from 20% in 2012,
pharmerging markets will, in the aggregate,

In doing so, the

match the size of the US marketin 2016.
The global pharmaceutical industry is at
an interesting point in time. To understand
its characteristics and olferings, one needs to
exarmine the opportunities and challenges.

OPPORTUNITIES

"1"11 e scientific foundation of pharmaceuticals

simproving exponentially, thanks to a
hugcz increase in computing and processing
power, significant advances in genetics and
genomics, and powerful data management
tools. This has transformed biomedical
rescarch. By 2020, genetic testing will be
part of mainsiream medical practice in some
countries.

a general shift in mind-set

There is
from post facto to preventivedreatment.
This has increased thedemand for
diagnaosis and preventive medication in
many countries. ki addition, factors such

ascha ﬂgmw lifestyle patterns with rising
incomes, hig
ailments, agc‘x.n;, population, govermment
intervention through increased healthcare
spending, enabling last mile-connectivity for
distant areas and overall macroeconomic

gher prevalence olchronic

]yi amwrgm“ markets’,

development have together created

significant opportunities for growth.

Research shows that over 30% of the

population won't get sufficient physic
exercise’; more than 20% will be overweight
or obese’;and more than 13% will be 60

Allthe
increase the risk of developing heart disease,

years or older e factors that

diagbetes and cancer.

Favourable outlook for pharmerging
economies and increased genericization in
ey markets will drive growth in the near
future. Recent advances in the biologics
space represent great opportunities foy

the industry—which should help target
previously unmet medical needs especially in
ancology and auto-immune diseases.

CHALLENGES

This industry-also faces some serious
challeniges, The rate of innovation is

h clining; regulations are hecoming more

onerous; marketconditions are gerting

seriously competitive; and healtheare costs

everywhere continue to rise.

Declining innovation inpharmaceuticalsis a
serious concern. The average number of new
moleculesapproved hasdecreased in recent
vears. During 2006-11 the average was 19,
compared t0:23 in2800-05,

Developing new medicines is hecoming an
!

precisely how expensive is the subject of

increasingly expensive business, although

fierce debate.

The combination of flagging scientific
productivity and rising annual average costs
per approved new molecule pose.a major

challenge in the fong run, especially when

the industry is staring at the other side of the

patent cliff.

here is no doubt that the regulatory
environmentforapproving pharmaceutical
manufacturing proce
getting substantially tougher. Moreover,
regulators around the globe are collaborating
more closely thanbéfore=so thata product
rejected invone regiondsmore lkely to be
banued in others, While this is a positive
development per se, it does create greater

sandproductsare

uncertainties inkey geographies.



The market conditions are becoming
tougher. There is intense competition,
severe pricing pressures due to rapid
commoditization of generics even within
weeks of the expiry of exclusivity, as well as
government interventions on the price front.
Saddled as they are with higher healthcare
commitments, governments across the globe
are opting for ‘tender based mechanisms’,
reference pricing and other price control
mechanisms.

Impending patent expiries and a
greater number of litigations are two other
challenges. In addition, rising healthcare
costs are leading to more stringent healthcare
payers’ policies, which have further
tightened the pricing environment. No
doubt, the global pharmaceutical industry
will show strong resilience in coping with the
challenges. Nevertheless, these are real and
are increasing in scope over the years,

KEY GROWTH SEGMENTS
Having stated the challenges, itis equally
important to touch upon the growth areas.

These are expected to be:

The pharmerging market—predominantly

comprising branded generics—currently
accounts for a fifth of the global market. As
mentioned earlier, it is expected to nearly
double its size by adding USD 150 billion to
USD 165 billion by 2016 and, in doing so,

THE COMPANY'S REVENUES

Glohal Generics
North America
Europe

India

Russia and CIS
Rest of the World

PSAI

North America

Europe

India

Rest of the World

Prob Products and Others

R

reach 30% of the global pharmaceutical
market,

GENERICS

This market is estimated to increase from
USD 242 billion at present to somewhere
between USD 400 and USD 430 billion by
2016, A sizeable:gencric opportunity exists
with the impendingpatent expiries. The
total value of patent expiries beyond 2012 is
estimated at USD 101 billion over the next

four years.

The global biologics market is expected to
reach USD 200 to USD 210 billion by 2016.
Biosimilars ave estimated to reach around
USD 4 billion to USD 6 billion. With patent
for top selling biologics expiring between
2012 and 2019, biosimilars are expected

to witness stronger growth in the future.
Passing of the Biologics Price Control and
Innovation (BPCH) Act ol 2009 in the US for
creating a regulatory pathway for biosimilars,
and establishment of biosimilar monoclonal
antibodies guidelines in Burope, are other
positive lactors expected to drive the growth

nmomentum.

This section begins with Table 1 which
summarises the Company’s performance in
different markets and product segments; and
then goes on to describe the performance in
greater detail.

(NA) generics
revenue increased by 19% to 337,846
miltion.

In the previous year, the Company had
launched olanzapine 20 mg in the US under
180-days marketing exclusivity, which
contributed around USD 100 million to the
revenues for FY2012. Excluding this, the top-
line growth in North America was 38%.

Growth was largely driven by new
product launches like finasteride T mg with
180-days marketing exclusivity, montelukast
granules, atorvastatin, metoprolol ER,
clopidogrel and zoledronicacid (Zometa);
as well as improved market share traction
in key existing products. The Company’s
portfolio of products manufactured at
Formulations Bristol plant and Formulations
Shreveport plant also registered strong
growth in the year.

During FY2013, Dr. Reddy’s launched
14 new products in the North America
region. The OTC portfolio continues to
be a significant component of the overall
performance.

NA Generics has maintained robust
growth on a sustainable basis. Strong
capabilities, efficient processes and
systems, established sales and distribution
networks and better execution have fuelled
this year’s growth. Continued focus on
developing niche limited competition
products, strengthening the OTC segment
and investing prudenty to build capabilities

70,243 18%
31,880 45% 19%
8,259 12% )
12,931 18% 13%
13,260 19% 289%
3,004 6% 42%
23,812 25% 29%
4,272 18% 34%
8,424 35% 43%
3,586 15% 29%
7,531 329% 10%
2,682 3% 12%
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Russia
Highlights

aver the counter (OTC) portfolio at

:S/rwew brands

launched during the year

l RoW
Highlights

25.53bn 140

7% of the Global Generics Sales

Revenue from Russia
IN ¥ MILLION

0
=
<
¥

CAGR 258% s

11,024
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in key areas are some factors that have
aided growth—and should continue doing
50 in the foreseeable future. The business
is also poised to tap opportunities in the
global pharmaceutical market with the
establishment of a new R&D Centre in
Princeton, New Jersey.

The US Food and Drug Administration
(USFDA) introduced the Generic Drug User
Fee Act {GDUFA) programme to accelerate
ANDA and DMF processing, remove
application backlogs over the nextfive years
while also bolstering its financial position.
Implemented in Getober 2012, the GDUFA
progranmune involves collection of fees every
year {rom generic companies for processing
of ANDAS/DMPFs and also for the inspection
of Formulation/APT facilities. The Company
expects significant improvement in the
approval timelines in the years to come.

EMERGHNG MARKETS RUSHIA,
AND THE REST OF THE WORLD

o .
" 2]

In FY2013, revenues in Russia grew by 27%
to 114,048 million

Russia’s sales performance is given in
Chart A.

The CAGR of 25% from FY2009 to
FY2013 has been driven by a robust growth
in the major brands in the prescription (Rx)
segment and a rapid increase in new brands
in the OTC portfolio—which has grown
at well over 40% per annum over the last
five years, and now accounts for 34% of
the Company’s sales in Russia. The next
phase of growtlh in Russia will be fuelled by
introduction of new molecules in the Rx and
QTG segments through in house launches,
Rx to OTC switches and brand acquisition or
in-licensing deals,

Three recent proposals i the regulatory
environment merit discussion. These are:

First, an import substitution policy for
products under Vital and Essential Drug List
(VEDL). The bill commits to ensure 90% of
the volume of the drugs on the VEDL to be
manufactured locally. This may require all
foreign generic and innovator compariies to
have manufacturing presence’in Russia
Second is the itroduction of a'genetic
nare (INN) prescribing mandate in place of
brand name, except for products having no
INN or other genetic name. The authorities
expect this to boost the sale of generic
pharmaceutical products in Russia and

simultaneously reduce the préponderance of

branded products. Thiswill call for a change

in the marketing strategy by generic as well
as branded generic companics

The third is-apotential positive for the
Company. InRussia, tew major candidates
in the biopharmaceutical space are currently
underpatent protection. Once the protection
period is over, there will be opportunities

for Indianplayerstodawnch biosimilars with
world-class quality standards-and relatively
lower cost of production in the Russian
market

Revenuesin Russiaand CIS grew by 26% 1o
116,908 million in FY201 3 (see Table 1),

D Reddy’s €18 presenceds in Ukraine,
Kazakhistan, Uzbekistan and Belarus.,
The growih in CIS as a whole is largely on
account of new in-licensing dealsin the
Ukraine market. During the year, some
very importantlegislative changes took
place in the region, including restrictions.on
advertising (including OTC) and requirerment

of licenses for timports.

Revenuesin Rest of theworld markets grew
by 42% t0¥5,533 million in FY2013.

RoW for Dr. Reddy’s includes markets
like Venezuela and South Africa which have
experienced high growth rates in the past few
years, in addition to Australia, New Zealand
and markets from Southeast Asia.

Venezuela hasseen a CAGR in excess
of 30% in the last five years, primarily due
to increase in reach.of healthcare through
higher generic penetration as well as increase
in pricing, giver the country’s relatively high
inflationrate. South Atrica hasshown steady
growth-—with a CAGR of approximately
13% inithe last five years.

There are some challenges in these two
markets. Venezuela, after the death of Hugo
Chavez
instability coupled with frequent devalvation
of its currency-—bolivar and controls on
foreign currency repatriation. South Africa
has started a regime of price conirols, albeit
inalimited way, Despite such.challenges,
Dr.Reddy’s continues to grow inthese markets
on the back of a wide portfolio and a conscious
movement towards the OTC segiment.

showing social and econemic

Afterabriefperiod of slowdown, the growth
momentum in the domestic formulations
marketisback ontrack FY2013 registered
ahealthy growth of 13 % inthe business



Warehouse at our Formulations Hyderabad plant 3

driven by volume growth in key brands and
new product launches. According to the IMS
report for the trailing 12-month period ended
31 March 2013 the Company’s MAT(moving
annual total) sales growth was at 13.7% as
against a market growth 0f 10.2%.

Dr. Reddy’s main focus is on gastro-
intestinal, cardiovascular, pain management
and oncology therapies. These accounted
for 60% of revenues during the year and
demonstrated a robust growth of 14.5%. The
Company is a leading player in the oncology
market with a strong branded generics
portfolio including Capiibine (capecitabine),
Docetere (docetaxel) and Cytogem
(gemcitabine). The oncology portfolio
registered a growth of 13.6% in FY2013.

In 2007, the Company launched the
world’s first biosimilar monoclonal antibody
called Reditux™ (rituximab). It remainsa
leader with a market share of approximately
65% in India with global marketing spread
in 14 other countries. In the last five years
the Company has become a key playerin the

Indian biosimilars market with four products:

filgrastim, rituximab, darbepoetin alpha and

peg-filgrastim. Together, these have grown at
over 20% each year.

The industry is facing certain headwinds,
particularly in the pricing, marketing and
new product approvals. We focus on pricing
here. On 15 May 2013, the Department
of Pharmaceuticals released Drugs (Price
Control) Order, 201 3—which is yet to be
published in the Gazette ol India~—governing

the price control mechanism for 348 drugs
listed in the National List of Essential
Medicines. According to this order, the prices
of each of the drugs are to be determined
based on simple average of all drugs having
market share of more than 1% by value. The
individual drug price notifications are not yet
released pending which, the exactimpact on
venues from sales in India

the Company’sre
cannot be assessed.

The Department of Pharmaceuticals in
India issued the Uniform Code of Marketing
Practices (the ‘Uniform Code’) as a voluntary
code on 2 June 201 1. The code has detailed
guidelines on free samples, promotional
material and a redressal process to be put in

place by companies to handle complaints

india
Highlights

According to IMS data, the Company’s sales

growth was 13.7% versus a market growth
of 10.2%

24

new products launched

4600

2,50,000+

doctors covered
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PSAIl Highlights

¥30.7 bn |

Dr.Reddy’s s the 2nd largest APLsellerin
theworld

of the: Company’s reventies

150+
productssold o

S0+

countries

cumulative DMF fifings
ason31:March 2013

ol unethical marketing practices, With the
uniformicodeinelfect therewould be an
increase in thie overallrigour forcompliance.

PHARMACEUTICAL SERVICES AND

ACTIVE INGREDIENTS

I BY2013; revenues from our PSALsegient

grew by 29% to reach £30,702 million;
Revepues fronyihe PSAEsegment were

driven by new productlaunchies inNorth

Asrerica and Burope, which hiad offset

continuing pricing pressures onexisiing

products: Interms of geographies:
Revenuefromr Burope grew by 43%: 1o
12,007 million

Revenue from North Americaincreased by
349% 1035, 744 million

Revenue fromindiaand RoW grew by
16% toX12,950 million

Revenue from Dr.Reddy’s Custom
Pharmaceutical Services businessalso
demonstrated a ticalthy growth ot the back
ol new customer orders, The pharmaceutical
services (Contractresea rehiand
manufactiring)yarin ol PSALwas established
in 2001 toleverage the Company's strengths
inprocess chemistry and {0 serve niche
segments of the pharmaceutical and tine
chemicals industry, Overthe years; the
business strategy in this area has evolved

to focus on the marketing of process
development and manufacturing services—
with the objective to be the preferred partner
for innovator pharmaceutical companies by
providing a complete range of services that
are necessary to take their innovations to the
market faster and more efficiently.

Dr. Reddy's is one of the highest DMF
filers worldwide, with around 150 products
in the portfolio, 40 inn the pipeline, multiple
filings in the US, the BEU, Japan, South Korea
and Brazil. During FY2013 we filed 47 DMFs
globally, including five in the US, 10in
Furope and 32 in Russia, India and our RoW

markets.

SECURING THE BIOSHVILAR OPPORTUNITY:
ALLIANCE WITH MERCK SERONO
Riosimilars are generic versions of
biopharmaceutical (often called biotech)
drugs thatare approved by regulatory
authorities following the patent expiry
olinnovator products. The active drug
substance is either made of a living organism
oris derived from a living organism.

Dr. Reddy’s is a Jeading plaver in the
gerietic biophanmaceaticals space with
proven product development and lautich
capabilities: Tt hias alrcady launched
four products in this segment in India:

(iy rituximab (brand name is Rediux™),
whichhas been i ndia for more than
five vears, (i) filorastim, called Gy
(iil) darbepoetin atpha called Cresp™ and
{v). y&cg’*ﬁigrasgiﬁi;Wﬁich goesunderthe
name of Pea-Grateel®, The biostmilars
portfolio has shown healthy growth over
t:,i*u:}:ecém,past: Dr Reddysis Iy
nia 1"kei-ifqg§{%mef0f these products imselect

eel?

alsaactive

aeo gfjg'ﬁx}}ies ol Latin America,

,/Ini/hie next few vears; alarge number
af biopharmaceutical drogs will be going
offspatent in the US and
so create significant revenue potertial for
companiesin the biosimilars space:

However, entries into such regulated
ts necessitate clinfeal trials to-prove
cy-obthe biostmilar candidates. To
address this, the Company has enteredinio
an alliance with Merck Serano, a division of
Merck KGaA, Darmstadt-Germany: Merck
KGaisaglobalpharine
with proven expertise in developing,

rope, and will

icalcompany

manufacturing and commerdializing
biophamucenticals and chiemical
compounds. This aliance offers a risk
mitigation pathway for Dr. Reddy’s to take s
development capabilities through the clinical
phaseandtheninto commercialization.
The:partnership.is to.co-develop
a portfolio of biosimilar compounds
in oncology; primarily focused on
monoclonalantibodies (MAbs). Itcovers
co-development, manufacturing and
commercialization of the compounds
around the globe, with some specific country
exceptions.
With focused efforts in building a strong
pipeline, a development capability that
has been proven over the past few years
along with a track record of success in
commercialization, the Company seems to
be well poised to garer a greater share in the
global bivlogics market.

INVESTING IN TECHNOLOGY PLATFORMS:
ACQUISITION OF QCTORPLUS NV
Everincreasing rigout inproduct
development coupled with Jarge
competition inthe commaoditize
space necessitates DroReddy’s to.enter niche
areaswhere thereare good sales potential
with relatively imited competition. This

sgale

generies




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ACCORDING Tﬁ IFRS

Revenue
Ccﬁst (ﬁf revenues
Gross profit
Selling, general & administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Impairment loss on other intangible asseﬁ

Impairment loss on goodwill

Otheroperating (income)expense; net:
Results from operating activities

Finance income/{expense), net

Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of income tax

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Préfi’f for the period
Di!ﬁted EPS (% per share)

involves introducing complex and difficult

to make molecules which, in turn, requires
acquiring and nurturing of specialized and

unique technotogy platforms.

This is whatled to the acquisition of
OctoPhus NV, alLeiden (Netherlands) based
service/specialty pharmaceutical company
in FY2013. OctoPlus has significant in-house
expertise in development and creation of
micro-spheres and liposomes using certain
polymer based technologies that enhance
and enable controlled-release of the active
pharmaceutical ingredientinto a human
body. Ttis well-known in the market for
formulating complex injectables using a poly
lactic-co-glycolic acid (PLGA) technology—
something that requires significant expertise
and experience. In addition, it also uses its
own patented PolyActive technology in
specific injectables which offers superior drug
delivery with fewer side effects.

Ason 15 February 2013, a majority stake
of 93.1% was acquired in OctoPlus. Going
forward, the Company expects to achieve
major benefits from this entity.

INCREASING R&D INVESTMENTS

As discussed earlier, the ability to produce
complex generics and develop niche
capabilities are pivotal to drive the next wave
of growth. The Company is consciously
investing in R&D activities to build such
capabilities.

3am4
b

In FY2013 Dr. Reddy's invested
approximately ¥7,674 million in R&D

activities, which accounted for 6.6% of
consolidated revenues, versus 35,911 million
M FY2012, 00 6:1% of consolidatéd revenues:
Thisvepresents @ growth of 30% overthe
previous year, and is mainly attributable to
increasing spends on complex molecules and
a greater focus on biosimilars and proprietary
research.

Dr. Reddy’s R&ED spend over the last three
yearshas been in the range 0f 6% 10 6.8% ol
consolidated revenues. As we build alarger
pipeline of complex generics, ditferentiated
formulations and biosimilars—— some of
which may also require clinical trials—we
envisage our R&D spend to substantially
increase and be in the range of around 7% to
8% ol consolidated revenues.

BUILDING PRODUCTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE
TO DELIVER FUTURE GROWTH

Dr. Reddy’s has seen congsiderable revenue
growth in the last few years. To cater to this
increase in volume and complexitesin the
product portfolio, the Company has been
systematically investing in its productive
infrastructure. It has invested close to 336
billion in the last five years to increase
capacity in existing infrastructure and create
new capacities in oral solids, injectable
facilities and biosimilars, among others,
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96,737
43,432
53,305

28

28 867 16
5911 6 30
1,040 1 (51)

0 0 0
wes ) 224
18,252 19 16

160 0 187

54 ) 93
18,466 19 17
(4,204) (@) 17
14,262 15 18
83.81 7

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS

Table 2 gives the abridged TFRS consolidated
financial performance of Dr. Reddy’s for
FY2013 comparedto FY2012.

REVENUES

Revenues increased by 20% to3116,266
million in FY2013. As Table 1 showed, this
was on account of growth of (i) 18% in GG,
(i1) 29% in PSAI, and (iit) 12% in Proprietary
Products and Others. The revenues also
partially benefited from the effect of the rupee
depreciating against multiple currencies.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit grew by 14% t0.360,579 million.
The gross profit margin was at 52.1% in
FY2013 versus 55.1% in FY2012. This decline
is primarily on account of an increase in
power and fuel costs in FY2013, as well as the
olanzapine opportunity in FY2012 which had
led to higher margins. Gross profit margin for
GG and PSATbusiness segments were 59%
and 32.5% respectively. Overall, the factors
that affected gross prolit margins were;

% The favourable impact of depreciation of
the Indian rupee against multiple currencies in
the markets in which the Company operates

The impact of one-time profit share
revenues from sale of olanzapine 20 mg

WANAGEMENT Biscussion s anavsis BEER



. CONSQLIDATib CASH FLOW UNDER IFRS

Opening cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows from :
(a) Operating activities

(B dnvesting activities

{¢) Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes

Closing cash and cash equivalents

(AY Accounts receivable
(B) Inventories

(C) Trade accounts payable

Operating working capital (A+B-C)
(D) Other current assets

Total current assets (A+B+D)

(F) Short and long term loans and borrowings, current portion

(including bank overdraft)
(F) Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities (C+E+F)

11 862
41,710

DR. REDDY'S ;DEBTNEQU!TY POSITION

Total stockholders’ equity
Long-term debt (current portion)

Long-term debt (non-current portion)

Shart term borrowings (including bank overdraft)

Total debt

tablets in the US during the previous year
ended 31 March 2012 which resulted in
higher gross margins during that year

The unfavourable impact of price erosion
in some of our existing products in the US

and Germany
# The unfavourable impact of higher power

and fuel costs in India due to increase in tariff
as well as imposition of certain fuel surcharge

adjustments

SELLING, GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (SG&A)
Ar333,584 millionin FY2013; SG&A
expenses including amortisation increased
by 16%. This was largely due to the rise in
manpower costs, and the effect ofthe rupee
depreciating againstmultiple currencies.
SGéA expenses as a percentage of sales was

B0 ok neopyis LABORATORIES Livi

. 73105

5
12,625
18,996
36,760

at 29% in FY201 3—roughly one percentage
point less than the previous year.

RE&ED EXPENSES

R&ED expenses grew by 30% toX7,674

million, Thisis 6.6% of the FY2013 revenues,

compared to 6.1% in FY2012. The increase
isin line with the Company’s efforts to focus
on the development of a specialized pipeline
consisting of niche and differentiated
prodicts,

FINANCE EXPENSES/INCOME), NET

Net finance income was %460 million in
FY2013versus T160 million in FY2012. The
increase was due to the addition of:

# Net foreign exchange gain of X365 million
in FY201 3:compared to a netgain of X689
million

IN ¢ MILLION §
’5i660

16150

(18.665)
3735
499
7,379

IN T MILLION

/ 2,248
9,502 2,360
35,189 6,521
25,261 6,881
69,952 15,762
15,875 8,260
18,083 (434)
43,460 10,186

57,444
31
16,335
15,844
32,210

15,661

# Netinterestexpense of 118 million in
FY201 3versusanetexpense of X690 million
in FY2012

# Incrementalincome from mutual funds of
51 mitionin FY2013.over FY2012

INCOME TAX

Income tax expernise was 34,900 million for
FY2013, compared to 34,204 million for
FY2012.

METINCOME (NET PROFIT)

Dr. Reddy’s netprofit was 316, 776million in
FY2013—up 18% from ¥14,262 million in
FY2012.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash generated from operating activities
in FY201 3 was 13,162 million: nvesting
activities includes netinvestmentin
property, plant, equipment and intangibles



DR. REDDY'S IGAAP STANDALONE FINANCIALS

Net sales/mcome from operations. (net of excise duty)

R tcense feeﬂ and service !ncome

Othe income

Total income

Cost of materials Lonsuméd

Pumhase of stoek-in- trade

Changes in mvpmones of ﬁn(shed gcmds Work - proqre@s awd stocksin-trade

Resear(h and deveic;pment expenses, net

Employee be 1eﬁts expense

Selling expenses

Provision for decline in the value of long-term m\,@stme nts, net

Oth@x cxpenditure

Deple atxon and amor nsat.on
Fmance costs

Profit before tax

Wax expense

Net prof‘it for the year '

of X7, 016 million, to build capacity-and
capabilities for future business growth; and
net purchase of investment securities of

6,029 million: Cashroutltow from ﬁﬁan&ing
activities stood at 1,638 million.

Table 3 gives the data on consolidated
cash flows and Table 4 oun consolidated

working capital.

DEBT-EQUITY

In FY2013, long term borrowing including
the current and non-current portion
increased by 1,398 million. Short-term
borrowing increased by 33,152 million
mainly on account of higher PCFC
borrowings during the year. As on 31 March
2013, Dr. Reddy’s debt to equity position
stood at 0.50 against 0.56 a vear earlier. The

net debt to equity position was at 0.20 against

0.24 ason 31 March 2012. Table 5 gives the
data.

Table 6 gives the Company’s IGAAP
standalone statement of profitand loss for
FY2013 compared to FY2012

PR DAL

[)1 Reddy’s hasa \‘Vld( spread system of
nternal controls with the objective of

safeguarding the Company’sassets, ensuring
thattransactionsare properly authorized,
and providing sighificantassurance of
theintegrity, objectivity and reliability of
financial information at a reasonable cost.
The managerment duly considers and takes
appropriate action on recommendations
made by the statutory auditors, internal
auditors, and the independent Audit

Committee of the Board of Directors. More
on internal controls is given in the chapter on
Corporate Governance.

Dr. Reddy's follows the COSO-ERM
framework. The Enterprise-wide Risk
Management (ERM) function operates with
the following objectives:
% Proactively identify and highlight risks to
the right stakeholders
7 Facilitate discussions around risk
prioritization and mitigation
Provide a [ramework to assess risk capacity

and appetite; and develop systems to warn
when the appetite is getting breached
#“ Provide an analysis that a formal and
focused risk management process is
facilitating reduction in residual risks

The BERM team connects with each
business unit and function. These units/

66,038
640
1,537

68,215

1,063
1,773
17,542

5,489
855

17,920
3,076

(1,048) 42
‘5813 696
8661 2,720

6,251 1,417
1,025 (1,702)

9,378 2,990
3,011 17
636 ' (22)

12,592 4940
3468 1,409
9,124 3,531

functions are the primary source for risk
identification.

RISK IDENTIFICATION AND MITIGATION AT
THE BUSINESS UNIT OR FUNCTION LEVEL
The ERM team conducts interviews,
facilitates polls and enables prioritization

at the unit/function level. While there

are independent assurance processes for

compliance-—both general and with respect
to those mandated under the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act (SOX)—the ERM team focuses on
identification of business, operational and
strategic risks, as well as potential compliance
and financial issues.

Mitigation plans for the key business
risks are identified with timelines and
owners. Though the responsibility for risk
mitigation lies with the risk owners, the
ERM team periodically ensures oversight of
the mitigation process through discussions
or reviews and updates are provided to the
Management Risk Committee. Detailed polls
andinterviews are carried out once in two
years and risk registers are updated with the

new and/or emerging risks.

clssion g anaiysis R




RISK AGGREGATION, PRIORITIZATION
AND MITIGATION AT THE
ORGANIZATIONAL LEVEL
Risks are aggregated at-the unit/function
and organization level by risk groups. There
are some 60 such groups bucketed into the
categories.ol (i) strategic, (i) operational,
(iiiyfinancial and (iv) compliance.

A management-level Risk Committee
comprising of business segment heads
and people from finance, legal, HR, safety,
Pharmacovigilance and quality function is

entrusted with prioritizing organization wide
risks, reviewing these and steering mitigation

effortsin line with the Company’s risk
capacity and appetite.

REVIEWING THE STATUS OF MITIGATION
AND RESIDUAL RISKS

The ERM function’s responsibility is

view of (i} risks

to provide a periodicre
identified and prioritized across the
Company, (i) any breaches, and how these
have been dealt with, (3ii) the status of
mitigation, and (iv) residual risks.

U O REDDYIS I ABORATORIES L

i

ERM provides periodic updates to the
Risk Committee of the Board of Directors.
These are provided:

Quarterly, on the status of key de-risking

initiatives and/or any new initiatives or

projects taken up by the ERM team

# Annually, on the key risks and their
movement compared to the previous
year’s along with measures of residual risk

During FY2013,the Board was appraised
of these. In addition, the FRM team led a

roll-out of the Firewall Initlative relating

to Information Security. The pilot phase of

the initigtive-—comprising [T and five key
units—was completed in September 2011,
Subsequently, roll-out to 13 more sites in
India.was completed in November 2012,

We anticipate human resource (HR) needs
for tomorrow and work to secure a reliable
pipeline of skilled workers and tomorrow’s
leaders, Today, our diverse workforce

comprises of more than 16,500 employees of
which around 3,000 are at locations outside

focus for FY2013 continued on
increasing productivity and building strength
on niche skills to support the Company’s
business growth plan. Key initiatives such

as ‘PACE’ (relating to costoptimisation) and
lence insafety)

‘Parivartan’ (involving exce
have reaped benefits in line with set targets.
This year, Parivartan has been extended to
drive transformation of the Guality culture in
Dr. Reddy's.

Organization health is a lead indicator
for long term sustenance and growth ofa
commercial entity. This year, we chose to
participate in the Organization Health Su
programme by McKinsey and Company. This

ey

survey isannually conducted-across 800+
global companies,

Overall, the results have beenpositive.
Hne

We were in the top quartile in six out of
dimensions, namely (i) culture and climate,

(it) innovation and learning, (i) Direction,

(iv) co-ordination-and.control;



(v) capabilities, and (vi) external orientation
and motivation,

Talent management and leadership
development are key focus aveas and form

part of the HR score card tor the organization.

We have identified top critical positions
and worked on succession planning for
these posts, This year there was a special
emphasis on developing plant leadérship
capabilities through focused group forums
andformal collective learning platform:
An exclusive EGMP {Executive General
Managenient Programme) waslaunched in
collaboration with ITM Kelkata for identified
voungleaders. [t aims at developing general
management capabilities for ourinternal
talent. :
Our HR efforts have beenacknowledged
by various institutions. We stoodin top 5
Great Place to Work in the category of 10,000
employees and above: And were the best
in Pharmaceuticals and Health Care. We
received the ‘Best Management Award’ from
the Deparimentol Labour, Government
of Andhra Pradesh, in recognition of
harmonious relations, productivity and
contribution to labour welfare, We also
received our third CITHR Excellence Award
for “Strong Commitment o HR Excellerice’;
InFY2013, our attrition rate was 12.3%,
which we believe is the lowest among

pharmacedtical companiesin the country.

The-Company believes thatits focus on
profitable growth and targeting a leadership
position in GG and PSALwill create
significant value in‘the near tern.

In' GGy improving depth through
portfolio expansion, cost leadership,
consistent delivery of limited competition
products and supply chain excellence should
lead to aleadership position in key markets,
InPSAL the objective is to be the pariner
of choice by creating compelling value for
customers through leveraging 1P technology
and costleadership.In Proprietary Products,
theaimis to create a viable business by
calibrating investments to produce a self
sustainable model.

The Company has apositive outlook
for the next year. The largestincrement of
growthiis expected to be contributed by the
North/America generics business. It also
expectscontinued momentum fromits key
Ermerging Markets.

In a dynamic business environment,
the Company’s base business model in
pharmaceuticalsis exposed to-considerable
volatility, both upwards and downwards.
While the upsides cre
the organization, there is a conscious attempt
to protectit against the downsides.

ate non-linear value for

Themanagement of Dr. Reddy’s has
prepared and isresponsibleforthe inancial
statements that appear in thisreport: These
finandial statenventsare i conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards,
asissued by the International Accotmnting
Standards Board and accounting principles
generally acceptedinindia and therclore
miclude amounts based oninformed

judgmentsand estimates. The management

also accepts 'x,‘esponsibility for the preparation
ot other financial information thatis included
in this report, This wiite-up includes some
forward-lovking statements; as defined inithe
US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995, The management has based these
forward-looking statements onits current
expectations and projections about future
events: Such statements involve known

and unknown risks, uncertainties and

other factors thatinay cause actual restilts
ta:differ materially. These factors include;
butarenotlmited to, changesiniocal and
global economic conditions, the Company’s
ability to successfully implenient its strategy,
the marketsacceptance ol and demand
forits products, growthiand expansion,
technological change and exposure to market
risks: By their nature, these expectations and
projections are only estimates and could be
materially differentfrom actual resulisinthe
future:

ANAGENEN
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“It is only an open mind that
can bring about this creativity, a
mind that is exposed to varied
inputs, one that is flexible

and continuously learning,

that absorbs new ideas and

is a veritable idea-bank. It is
crucial to stimulate it with new
information. It is, therefore, the
duty of each of us to ourselves
to keep the flame of learning
burning continuously.”

—DR. K ANJIREDDY
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Dr.J P Morecau joined the Company's
Board in 2007. He founded Biomeasure
Incorporated based near Boston and has
beenits President and CEO. Prior to thathe
wis working as Executive Vice-President
and Chiet Scientific Officer of the IPSEN
Group and was responsible for the Group's
Discovery and Innovation with facilities in

Paris, London, Barcelonaand-Boston. He was
Vice-Prestdent: Research from April 1994
and hagbeen a member of the Executive
Committee of IPSEN Group since that date.
He has published over50-articles inscientific

journalsandhas more than 30 patentsto-his

name;Heds aregularspeakeratscientific
conferences and a niember oI Nitto Dénko
Scientific Advisory Board: Dy Morgau was
also respansible forestablishing Kinerton

Limited.in Ireland in March, 1989, a
wholesalemanulacturer ol therapeutic
peptides.Dr. Moreat is'also on the Board
ol Mulleris Therapeutics Inc., USA, and
ChondioThera Inc., USA:

Di.Moreauhasadegree in Chemistry
from the University of Orleansand a DD.Sc¢,
in biochemistry., He has also conducted
post-doctorate research at the Ecole
Polytechnique:

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Ms. Kalpana-Morparia joined the Company's
Board in 2007 She isthe Chiel Executive
Officerofd.P-Morgan, India, where she leads
their Business Groups (investment banking,
asset management, treasury services and
principal investment management) & Service
Groups (global research, finance, technology
and operations). Sheis also amemberof J.P.
Morgan’s global strategy team headquartered
inNew York and the J.P. Morgan Asia Pacific
cutive Cormmittee:

Exe

Prior 1o becoming CEO of J.P Morgan
India, Ms. Morparia served as Vice Chair
o the Boards of ICICT Group: Shejoined
the ICIET Groupin 197 5% and was the Joint
Managing Director ol ICICHGroup from 2001
to 2007, She'wasnamed one of “The 50 Most
Powertul Womren’ in ‘International Business’
by Fortune magazine in 2008; one of the 25
most powerful women:in Indian business
by Business Today, a leading Indian business
magazine i 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2008;
and one of The 100 most Powerlul Women'

by Forbes magazine in 2006, She also serves

on the Boards of: Bennett, Coleman & Co.
Limited, CMC Limited, J.P Morgan Services
India Private Limited, J.P. Morgan-Asset
Management India Private Limited and Philip
Morris International Inc, - USA: Sheis also
amemberof the Governing Board ol Bharti
Foundation:

Avgraduate in law from Bombay
University, Ms. Morparia has served on
several committees constituted by the
Government of India.

INDEPENDENT !)iRF;CTﬁR
Dr-Omkar Goswaniijoinedthe Company’s
Board in 2000. Since Apri} 2004, he has been
the Founder and Chairman of CERG Advisory
Private Limited; a f()ﬁ&;‘ultingandzadvis’ory
firm:He taughtand résearched Economics for
18 years at Oxford University; Dethi School
ofBconomics, Harvard University, Tufts
University, Jawaharlal Nehru University,

Rutgers University and at the Indian
Statistical Institute. In March 1997, he'moved
away from formal acaderics to become the
Editorof Busivess India, one ol India’s leading
business magazine, From August 1998 up

to March 2004, Dr: Goswamiservedasthe
Chiel Economist of the Confederation of
Indian Tndustry=the premier apex industry
association'of India; He is alsoan Independent
Director on the Boards of: Infosys Limited,

Cromipton Greaves Limited, IDFC Limited,
Ambuja Cements Limited, Cairn India
Limited, DSP Black Rock Investmerit
Managers Private Limited, Godrej Consumer
Products Limited, Bajaj Finance Limited and
Infosys BPO Limited.

A professional economist, Dr. Goswari
did his Masters in EconomicsTromthe Delhi
School ol Economics.and his D Phil (Ph.Dy)
from Oxford University:

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Mr.Ravi Bhoothalingam joined the

Company’s Board in 2000, Mr. Bhoothalingam

hasservedas the President of The Oberoi
Groupof Hotels and wasresponsiblefor the

Group’s worldwide operations. He has also
servedas Head of Personnelat British
Ametican Tobacco (BAT) Ple, Managing
Divectorol VST Industries Limited and asa
Director of ITC Limited, Heisalso a Director ol
Sona Koyo Steering Systems Limited.

Mr. Bhoothalingam holds-a Bachelor of
Science degree inPhysics from St Stepheny
College, Dethiand Master’'sdegree in
Experimental Psychology from Gonville and
Caius College, Cambridge University,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Mr: SridarTyengarjoined the Company’s
Board in 2011, Heisan independeﬁt
mentorinvestor in early stage start-upsand
companies. For more than 35 years, hie has
worked in the UK, US and India with a large
numberof companies; advising them on
strafegy and otherissues.

M. Ivengaris the former President of

Foundationfor Democratic Reforms inindia,
a US-based non=profitorganization. Helis
also anadvisorto several venture and private
equity funds in India:

Earlier,; My, Iyengar wasa seniorpartier
with KPMG inthe US and UK-andserved
for threeyearsas the Chairman and CEO of
KPMG s operations in India.

Mr lyengat also holds directorship in
Reditlcom Limited, Mahindra Holidays and

ResorisIndia Limited, CLEducate Limited,
Cleartrip Private Limited, AverQ In¢.; Kovair
Software Inc., Rediff Holdings Inc., Clearirip
Inc,, iYogi Limited; TiE Silicon Valley Inc.,
American India Foundation and ICICI Venture
Funds Management Company Limited.

He holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons.)
degree from the University of Calcutta and
isa Fellow of the Tnstitute of Chartered
Accountantsin England and Wales.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS







G VPRASAD

Age 53 | B.Sc.(Chem. Eng.), M.S.(Indl. Admn.)
Joined the Company on 30 June 1990

SATISH REDDY

Age 46 | B.Tech., M.5.(Medicinal Chemistry)
Joined the Company on 18 January 1993

ABHINT MUKHERJEE

Age 55 | B.Tech.(Chem.)
Joined the Company on 15 January 2003

DR. AMIT BISWAS

Age 53 | B.Tech.(Chem.),
Masters (Polymer Science), Ph.D.
Joined the Company on 12 July 2011

DR. CARTIKEYA REDDY

Age 43 | B.Tech., M.S,, Ph.D.
Joined the Company on 20 July 2004

B M v RAMANA

Age 45 | MBA
Joined the Company on 15 October 1992

DR. R ANANTHANARAYANAN

Age 48 | B. Pharm., Ph.D.
loined the Company on 6 August 2010

£l DR. RAGHAV CHARI

Age 43 | M.S.(Physics), Ph.D.
Joined the Company on 25 September 2006

SAMIRAN DAS
Exmonetive Y
FU gk Gt Py
Age 53| B.Tech.(Mechanical)

Joined the Company on 15 June 2011

SAUMENM CHAKRABORTY

Age 52 | B.Sc.(H), MBA (itv)
Joined the Company on 2 july 2001

UMANG VOHRA

Age 42 | B.E., MBA
Joined the Company on 18 February 2002

MANAGEMENT cOUNEIL




‘CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

FY2013 represents fiscal year 2012-13, from
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013, and analogously
for FY2012 and other such labeled years.

| 50 Telt e e O e P e ANNUAL REPORT

‘= 1. Reddy's Laboratories Limited
D' (‘Dr. Reddy’s” or ‘the Comparny’)
believes that timely disclosures, transparent
accounting policies and a strong and
independent Board go a long way in
maintaining good corporate governance,
preserving shareholders” trust and
maximizing long-term corporate value.
Given the Company’s size and
complexity in operations, Dr. Reddy’s
corporate governance framework is based on
the following main principles:
@ Appropriate composition and size of the
Board, with each Director bringing in key
expertise in different areas
Proactive flow of information 1o
the members of the Board and Board
Comimittees to enable effective discharge of
fiduciary duties
% Ethical business conduct by the Beard,
management and emplovees
# Well developed systems and processes
for internal controls on all operations, risk
management and financdial reporting
Timely and accurate disclosure of
all material operational and financial
information to the stakeholders

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) regulates corporate governance for
listed companies through Clause 49 of its
Listing Agreement. Dr. Reddy’s is in full
compliance with Clause 49, Itis also in
compliance with the applicable corporate
governance standards of the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE).

This chapter of the annual report
together with information given under the
chapters entitled Management Discussion
and.Analysis and Additional Shareholders’
Information constitute the compliance report
of the Company on corporate governance
during FY2013.

COMPOSITION
Ason 31 March 2013, the Board of
Dr. Reddy’s had 10 Directors, comprising

(1) two Executive Directors, including the
Chairman, and (ii) eight Independent
Directors as defined under the Listing
Agreementwith Indian Stock Exchanges
and the Corporate Governance Guidelinesof
the NYSE Listed Company Manual. Detailed
profilesof the Directors have been discussed
in this annual report.

TheDirectors have expertise inthe
fields of strategy, mavagement, finance,
operations; science, techuology, human
resource development and econonics.

The Board providesleadership, strategic
guidance, objective and independent view

to the Company’s management while
discharging its fiduciary respounsibilities;
thereby ensuring that the management
adheres to high standards of ethics,
transparency and disclosure.

Each Director informs the Company on
an annual basis about the Board and Board
Conunittee positions he/she occupiesin
othercompanies including Chairmanships
and notifies changes during the ternmi of their
directorshipinthe Company. Table 1gives
the composition of Dr. Reddy’s Board, their
positions, relationship with other Directors;
date of joining the Board, other Divectorships
and memberships of Committees held by
eachof them.

TERM OF BOARD MEMBERSHIPF

As perthe provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956, one-third of the Board members
{other than Executive Directors) who are
subjecttoretire by rotation, retire everyyear
and approval of shareholders is sought forihe
re-appointment of such retiring members; il
eligible:Executive Directors are-appointed

by shareholdersfora maximum period of
five years ata time;-and are eligible forre-
appointmentuponcompletion of the term,
The Board, on the recommendations of the
Norgination, Governance and Compensation
Committee, considers the appointiment and
re-appointment of Directors.




SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF

NEW DIRECTORS

Induction of any new member on the Board
of Directors is the responsibility of the
Nomination, Governance and Compensation
Committee, which is entirely composed of
Independent Directors. Taking into account
the existing composition and organization of
the Board, and the requirement of new skill
sets, if any, the Nomination, Governance
and Compensation Committee reviews
potential candidates in terms of their
expertise, skills, attributes, personal and
professional backgrounds and their ability

to attend meetings in India. The Committee
then places the details of such candidates
that meet these criteria to the Board of
Directors for their consideration. If the Board
approves, the person is appointed as an
Additional Director, subject to the approval
of shareholders in the Company's Annual
General Meeting.

DIRECTORS' SHARE AND DEBENTURE
HOLDING IN THE COMPANY

Table 2 gives details of shares and
debentures held by the Directors as on
31 March 2013,

Mr. GV Prasad @ Chairman and CEQ

Mr. Satish Reddy @

Dr. Omkar Goswami independent Director

Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam  Independent Director
Mr. Anupam Puri S endent
Dr.J P Moreau

Ms. Kalpana Marpaiz'ia/
Dr. Bruce L A Car‘tér o
Dr. Ashok S Ganguly

Independent Director
mdépendent Director
' Indepeﬁdent Director
Iﬁdgpendéfwt Dyirector
iﬁdepér\den't Director

Mr. Sridar tyengar Independent Director

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Company plans and prepares the
schedule of the Board and Board Committee
meetings in advance to assist the Directors in
scheduling their program. The schedule of
meetings and agenda for meeting is finalized
in consultation with the Directors of the
Company. The agenda of the meeting is
pre-circulated with presentations, detailed
notes, supporting documents and executive
sumimnary.

Under Indian laws, the Board of Directors
must meet at least four times a year, with a
maximum time gap of four months between
two Board meetings. Dr. Reddy’s Board met
four times during the financial year under
review: on 11 May 2012, 19 July 2012,

30 October 2012 and 14 February 2013, The
Company held a minimum of one Board
meetingineach quarterasrequired under
the Companies Act, 1956, Details of Directors
andtheir attendance at Board meetings

and Annual General Meeting are given in
Table 3.

The Board and its Committee meetings
at Dr. Reddy’s typically comprise of two-day
sessions. In the course of these meetings, the
business unit heads and key management
personnel make presentations to the Board.
The Board is updated on the discussions

at the Committee meetings and their
recommendations through the Chairman of
the respective Committees.

INFORMATION GIVEN TO THE BOARD

The Company provides the following
information to the Board and the Board
Committees. Such information is submitted
either as part of the agenda papers in advance
of the meetings or by way of presentations
and discussion materials during the meetings.

- Annual operating plans and budgets,
capital budgets, updates and all variances
Quarterly, half yearly and annual results
of the Company and its operating divisions or
business segments

@ Detailed presentations on the progress in
research and development (R&D) and new
drug discoveries

% Minutes of meetings of the Audit
Committee and other Committees

# Information on recruitment and
remuneration of key executives below the
Board level

Significant regulatory matters concerning
Indian or foreign regulatory authorities
Issues which involves possible public

or product liability claims of a substantial

nature, if any

1PS HELD AS ON 31 MARCH 2013

 Brother-in-law of
-~ Mr. Satish Reddy

Brother-in-law of
Mr. G V Prasad

1'8 January 1993

o

8 April 1986 / R r

None 30 October 2000 11 2 6 4
None 30 October 2000 2 12
None 4 June 2002 4 )

None 18 May 2007 1 2 - -
None 5 June 2007 3 4 1 1
None 21 July 2008 1 2 1 -
None 23 October 2009 3 2 - -
None 22 August 2011 6 8 2 5

W Other Directorships are those which are not covered under Section 275 of the Companies Act, 1956.
@ Membership/Chairmanship in Audit and Shareholders’ Grievance Committees of all public limited companies, whether listed or not, including Dr. Reddy's are considered. Foreign
companies, private limited companies and companies.under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been excluded.
@ Based on the recommendations of the Nomination, Governance and Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors has designated Mr. G V Prasad as the "Chairman and CEQ" and
Mr. Satish Reddy as "Vice-Chairman” in addition to his role of Managing Director and COO, both effective 30 March 2013.

Note: During the FY2013, Dr. K Anji Reddy, Founder and Chairman, passed away on 15 March 2013, and thus ceased to be a Director on the Board effective that date.
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# Risk analysis of various products, markets
and businesses

# Detailed analysis of potential acquisition
targets or possible divestments

% Details of-anyjoint venture or
collaboration agreements

# Transactions that involve substantial
payment towards, or impairmentof,
goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property

Significant sale of investments,
subsidiaries, assets, which are notin the
normal course of business

Contracts in which Director(s)-are
interested

. Materially important show cause;
demand, prosecution and penalty notices, if

any

# Fatal or serious accidents or dangerous
occurrences, if any

- Significanteffluentor pollution problems,
ifany

% Materially relevant default infinancial
obligations to and by the Company or
substantial non-paymertfor goodssold by
the Company, if any

# Significant labor problemsand their
proposedselutions, i any

@ Significant development in the human
resources and industrial relations fronts

2 Quarterly details of foreign-exchange
exposure and the steps taken by
management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement
Non~compliance of any regulatory or
statutory pature or listing requirements as

SHARES AND DEBENTURES HELD BY THE DIR

Mr. G V Prasad

Mr. Satish Reddy ™

Dr. Omkar GosWami

Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam

Mr. Anupam Puri (ADRs) o
Dr. J P Moreau (ADRs)

Ms. Kalpana Morpariaz
Dr. Bruce L A Carter (ADRS)/ )
Dr. Ashok S Cahguly/ i

Mr. Sridar lyengar

1,365,840 .

1205832 .
22,800 108,000
22,800 108,000
21,300
10,800 36,000

11,800 -
4,800

W ARS Trust.owns 83, 11% of Dr.-Reddy's Holdings Limited, which in turm owns 38,729,284 shares of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratoties
Limited: Mr GV Prasad, Mr. Satish Reddy. Ms. G Anuradha; -Ms.-Deepti Reddy and their bloodline descendents aré-the
béneficiaries of APS Trust: Late Dr. K Anji Reddy was,before his-demise on 15 March 2013, also a beneficiary of APS Trust:

DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETING

;&AME .

Dr. K Anji Reddy @
Mr, G V Prasad

Mr. Satish Reddy

Dr. Omkar Goswami
M. Ravi Bhoothalingam
Mr. Anupan Puri /
Dr. J P Moreau

Ms., Kalpana Morparié
Dr. Bruce L A Carter
Dr. Ashok § Ganguly
Mr. Sridar lyengar

FO N N N N N N N N N

AND AGM DURING FY2

Absent

4 Present
4 Present
4 Present
4 Present
4 Present
4 Present
46 Present
4 Present
4 Present
4’ ;' \ N Preser‘xt‘

0 pagsed away on 15 March 2013, and thus ceased to he a Director on the Board effective that date.

@ Was given leave of absence on request.
® Qne meeting attended through video-conference,
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well as shareholders® services suchasnon-
payment of dividend and delays inshare
transfer, ifany

i Subsidiary companies minutes, financial
statemeritsand signtficantinvestments

W Sigritficanttransactionsand
arrangements

POST MEETING FOLLOW-UP MECHANISM
The important decisions takenat the
Board/Board Committess' meetings

are communicated tothe concerned
departments/divisions promptly-Anaction
takeni/status report owthe decisions of the
previous meeting(syis placedat the next
meeting of the Board/Board Committees
for information and further recommended
action(s), itany.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
INEXECUTIVE SESSION

During FY2013, the Independent

Directors of Dr. Reddy’s met four times in
executivesessions withoutthe presence of
management. [ addition to these four; the
Company is ready to facilitate such sessions
as and when required by the Independent
Directors. An Independent Director, withior
without other Independent Directors, takes
the lead to provide structured feedback to the
Board about the key elementsthat emerge
out of these executive sessions.

ANNUAL BOARD RETREAT
During FY2013, the Annual Board Retreat
was organized at Mumbat, Indiaon

20=22 August 2012, In the retreat; the Board
discussed various business strategy and
governance matters. Presentations were made
on topics covering global pharmaceutical
trends. Further, as a part of the retreat agenda,
the Roard also conducted a strategy review of
the Company's business segmernts.

DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION

The Executive Directors are-appointed by

shareholders’ resotution for a period-of

five years. No severarice fees is payable

to the Executive Directors. Exceptthe

commission payable, all other components of

remunerationto the Executive Directors are

fixed andinline with the Comupany’spolicies.
The remuneration {or the Executive

Directors, including the commission based on

net profits of the Company; is recommended

by the Nomination, Governance and

CGompensation Committee to the Board for




consideration. The commission to be paid

to the Executive Directors is decided by the
Board every year, within the limits approved
by the shareholders.

The Independent Directors are entitled
to receive sitting fees for attending meetings
of the Board and its Committees and
commission based on the net profits of the
Company. The Board of Directors decided
to waive the sitting fee payable to them for
the Board and Board Committee meetings
held after July, 2012. The remuneration
including commission payable to the
Directors during the year under review was
in conformity with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, and duly
considered and approved by the Board and
the shareholders. The remuneration paid
or payable to the Directors for their services
rendered during FY2013 is given in Table 4.

The criteria for making payments to the
Executive Directors are:

i Salary, as recommended by the
Nomination, Governance and Compensation
Comumittee and approved by the Board and
the shareholders. Perquisites and retirement
benefits are also paid in accordance with

the Company’s compensation policies, as
applicable to all employees

# Shareholders of the Company have
approved the payment of commission

as a percentage of net profits calculated

in accordance with Sections 198/349 of

Dr. K Anji Reddy @
Mr. G V Prasad
Mr. Satish Reddy
Dr. Omkar Goswami
Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam
Mr. Anupam Puri

Dr. J P Moreau

Ms. Kalpana Morparia
Dr. Bruce L A Carter

Dr. Ashok S Ganguly
Mr. Sridar lyengar

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO THE DIRECTORS FOR FY2013

the Companies Act, 1956 to all Executive
Directors

# The Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee decide the
amount of comimission payable every year
within the overall limit, as approved by the
shareholders

Remuneration paid to the Executive
Directors is determined keeping in view the
industry benchmarks

The criteria for making payments to the
Independent Directors are:
# The Independent Directors were paid
sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or
Board Committee @ T10,000 per meeting
attended by them till July, 2012
Shareholders of the Company have
approved the payment of commission up
to 0.5 percent of net profits calculated in
accordance with Sections 198/349 of the
Companies Act, 1956 collectively to all the
Independent Directors
The Board decides the amount of
commission payable to the Independent
Directors every year, within the overall
limit of 0.5 percent of net profits and in
line with the Company's performance. The
compensation is also benchmarked with
some top Indian companies
# Remuneration paid to the Independent
Directors is determined by keeping in view
the industry benchmarks, and also on

50,000

- 72,500

. 72,500
60 7,614
70 7,071
50 7,750
50 7,478
40 7,071
50 7,750
50 7,343
60 7,478

6,300
3,600

the basis of their memberships in various
committees of the Board

Shareholders of the Company approved
granting of up to 200,000 stock options in
aggregate at any point of time during the
financial years starting from 2011~12 and
ending with 2015-16 to all the Directors
(except the Executive Directors). Of

this, up to 60,000 stock options can be
granted in a single financial year to the
Directors, as aforesaid, under any of the
stock option plans, either existing or to

be framed in future, on such terms and
conditions as the Nomination, Governance
and Compensation Committee/Board of
Directors may think fit

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company
head the following governance and/or Board
Committee functions:

# Mr. Anupam Puri Governance,
corporate strategy and Lead Independent
Director

# Dr. Bruce L A Carter Enterprise risk
management

# Dr. Ashok S Ganguly Science,
technology and operations

Ms. Kalpana Morparia Internal audit
and controls

Dr. Omkar Goswami Finance, internal

controls and financial risk management

IN 2 THOUSANDS

4,702
2,030
3,553

63,315
80,830
79,653
7,674
7,141
7,800
7,528
7,111
7,800
7,393
7,538

o Sitting fees include fees for Board as well as Board Committee meetings @ 210,000 per meeting. The Board of Directors decided to waive the sitting fee payable to them for the Board

and Board Committee meetings held after July, 2012.

@ payment of commission is variable, and based on percentage of net profit calculated according to Sections 198/349 of the Companies Act, 1956, The Board of Directors recommended for
a fixed commission of 34,895,010 (USD 90,000) per Independent Director, a specific commission of 21,087,780 (US[ 20,000) to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, T815,835

(LUSD 15,000) to the Chairman of Science, Techpology and Operations Committes, Nomination, Governance and Compensation Committee and Risk Management Committee, ¥543,890
WUSD 10,000) to the other members of the Committees; 271,945 (USD 5,000) variable fee per meeting based on the attendance at the Board meeting to every Non-executive Director.
Other than the above, a specific compensation of 281,584 (USD 1,500) per meeting was paid tawards foreign travel to the Directors.

@ perquisites include medical reimbursement for self and family according to the rules of the Company, leave travel assistance, personal accident insurance, Company's vehicle with driver for
official use, tefephone at residence and mobile phone, contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Scheme. All these benefits are fixed in nature.

@ passed away on 15 March 2013, and thus ceased to be a Director on the Board effective that date.
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Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam Compliance
and Ombudsperson for the whistle blower
policy of the Company

i Dy, JP Moreau Pharmaceutical
regulatory compliance

W Mr. Sridar Iyengar Subsidiary
governance and overview

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an enterprise-wide risk
management (ERM) system in place. An
independent Risk Management Committee
of the Board oversees and reviews the risk
management framework, assessmentof
risks, and management and minimization
procedures. The Committee reports its
findings and observations to the Board. A
section on risk management practices of the
Company under the ERM framework formsa
part of the chapter on Management Discission
and Analysis in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE REVIEWS

Dr. Reddy's has a dedicated team under an
identified Chief Compliance Officer (other
than such an officer under the Listing
Agreement) for overseeing compliance
activities—including monitoring, and

a defined framework to review the
compliances with all laws applicable to

the Company. The compliance status

is periodically updated to the senior
managementteam including the Executive
Directors through forums and review
meetings. Presentations are scheduled in
the quarterly Audit Committee meetings
regarding the status on compliance.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
AND OMBUDSPERSON PROCEDURE
The Company has adopted a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics (the "Code’), which
applies to all its Directors and employees of
the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates.
1t is the responsibility of all Directors and
employees to familiarize themselves with this
Code and comply with-its standards.

An Ombudsperson procedure has also
been made under this Code, which
(i) describes the Ombudsperson framework,
(if) takes into account procedures for
investigation and communication of any
report on any violation or suspected violation
(iil) accepts appeal againstany
decision taken by Ombudsperson, and
(iv) encourages the submission of complaint
against any retaliation-action against any
employee. An Independent Divector is the

S DR REDDY'S LABOR,

Ombudsperson; the reports and complaints
submitted to the Company and their
resolution status are reported through the
Ombudsperson to the Audit Committee.

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
and Ombudsperson procedure has been
posted on the Company’s website-——
www.drreddys.com

The Board and the senior management
across the globe annually affirm compliance
with the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics. A certificate of the Chairman and
Chief BExecutive Officer of the Company to
this effect is enclosed as Exhibit 1 to this
chapter.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of related party transactions are
discussed in detail in'page no. 117 of this
annual report. All related party transactions
during the year, in the oxdinary course of
business or otherwise, were placed before the
Audit Committee and subsequently before
the Board. All related party transactions were
on arm’s length basis.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Audit Committee of the Company
reviews the financial statements of the
subsidiary companies. The Audit Commitiee
also reviews investment made by subsidiary
companies, minutes of their Board
meetings, and the statement of all significant
transactions and arrangements entered into
by the subsidiary companies. None of the
Indian subsidiaries of the Comipany comes
under the purview of the term “material nons:
listed Indian subsidiary” as defined under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

DISCLOSURE ON ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
In the preparation of financial statements

for FY2013, there is no treatment of any
transaction different from that prescribed

in the Accounting Standards notified by the

Government of India under Section 21130

of the Companies Act, 1956.

Ccific

The Board Committees focus on sp
areas and make informed decisions

within the authority delegated. Each

such Committee is guided by its Charter,
which defines the composition, scope and
powers. The Committees also make specific
recommendations to the Board on various
matters whenever required. All observations,
recommendations and decisions of the

Committees are placed before the Board for
information or for approval.

The Company has sevenBoard-level
Comunittees, namely:

@ Audit Committee

Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Commitiee

Science, Technology and Operations
Committee

& Risk Management Committee
Shareholders” Grievance Commitiee
Investment Committee and

7

# Management Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The management is responsible for the
Company’s internal controls and the
financial reporting process while the
statutory auditorsare responsible for
performing independent audits of the
Company's financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices and for issuing reports based on
such audits.

The Board of Directors has entrusted the
Aundit Committee with the responsibility to
supervise these processes and thus ensure
accurate and timely disclosures that maintain
the transparency, integrity and-quality of
financial controland reporting. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:
% Supervise the financial reporting process
inancial

# Reviewthe quarterly and annual |
results before placing them to the Board
along with related disclosures and Bling
requirements :

# Review the adequacy of internal controls
in the Company, including the plan, scope
and performance of the internal audiy
function and remuneration of the Chief
Internal Auditor

# Discuss with management, the Company’s
major policies with respect to risk assessment
and risk management

Hold discussions with statutory auditors
on the nature and scope of audits and any
views that they have about the financial
control and reporting processe
# Ensure compliance with accounting
standards and with listing requiremernts with
respect tothe financial statements
Recommend the appointment and
removalof external auditors and their fees
Recommend the appointment of cost
auditors

W Review theindependence ofauditors




Ensure that adequate safeguards have
been taken for legal compliance both for

the Company and its other Indian as well as
foreign subsidiaries

# Review related party transactions

@ Review the functioning of Whistle Blower
mechanism

# Review the implementation of applicable
provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, 2002

The Audit Committee entirely comprises
of Independent Directors. Allmembers of
the Audit Committee are financially literate
and bring in expertise in the fields of finance,
economics, human resource development,
strategy and management,

Presently, the Committee consists of
M. Sridar Iyengar (Chairman), Dr. Omkar
Goswami, Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam and
Ms, Kalpana Morparia. All have accounting
and/or related financial management and/or
economic expertise.

The Audit Committee met five times
during FY2012: 4 April 2012, 10 May 2012,
19 July 2012, 29 October 2012 and
13 Pebruary 2013, It also met the key
members of finance team and internal audit
team along with the Managing Director and
the CFO to discuss matters relating to audit,
compliance and accounting. During the year,
the Committee also met statutory auditors
without the presence of the management
on more than one occasion. In addition, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and other
members met to review other processes,
particularly the progress on internal control
mechanisms to prepare for certification

under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, 2002,

The Company is in compliance with the
provisions of the Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, as amended, on the time
gap between any two Audit Committee
meetings, Table 5 gives the composition and
attendance record of the Audit Committee.

The Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, the CFO and the Chief Internal
Auditor are permanent invitees to all Audit
Commiittee meetings. The statutory auditors
of the Company are present in the Audit
Committee meetings during the year. The
Company Secretary officiates as the secretary
of the Committee.

Audit Committee meetings are
generally preceded by pre-Audit Committee
conference calls with the Committee
members, the CFO, the internal audit and
compliance teams, the external auditors
and other key finance personnel from the
Company. These calls are convened to
discuss major audit related matters and
identify items that need further face-to-face
discussion at the Audit Committee meetings.

The internal and statutory auditors of
the Company discuss their audit findings
and updates with the Audit Committee and
submit their views directly to the Committee,
Separate discussionis are held with the
internal auditors to focus on compliance
issues and to conduct detailed reviews of
the processes and internal controls in the
Company. The report of the Audit Comumittee
is enclosed as Exhibit 2 to this chapter.

NOMINATION, GOVERNANCE AND
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee entirely comprises
of Independent Directors. The primary
functions of the Committee are to:
Examine the structure, composition and
functioning of the Board, and recommend
changes, as necessary, to improve the Board’s
effectiveness
# Assessthe Company’s policies and
processes in key areas of corporate
governance, other than those explicitly
assigned to other Board Committees, with
a view to ensuring the Company is at the
forefront of good governance practices
# Regularly examine ways to strengthen
the Company's organizational health, by
improving the hiring, retention, motivation,
development, deployment and behavior
of management and other employees.
In this context, the Committee also
reviews the framework and processes for
motivating and rewarding performance at
all levels of the organization, reviews the
resulting compensation awards, and makes
appropriate proposals to Board for approval.
In particular, it recommends all forms of
compensation to be granted to Directors,
executive officers and senior management
employees of the Company

The head of Human Resources (HR)
makes periodic presentations to the
Committee on organization structure, talent
management, leadership, performance
appraisals, increments, performance bonus
recommendations and other HR matters.

Dr. Omkar Goswami @
Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam
Ms. Kalpana Morparia

Mr. Sridar lyengar &

/as given leave
One meeting at

of absence on request.
nded through video-conference.

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

5

5
5 400
5

@ Mr. Sridar iyengar has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee effective 14 May 2013. Di. Omkar Goswami continues to serve as a member of the Committee.

NOMINATION, GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE DURING EY2013

L
0

SR

Mr. Anupam Puri

Mr. Ravi Bhoothalingam
Ms. Kalpana Morparia
Dr. Ashok § Ganguly

W Was given leave of absence on request.
@ One meeting attended through video-conference.

kChairman
Member
’ Member
M@rnber'

woow W W
N




The Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee met three
times during the year: on 10 May 2012,
29.October 2012 and 13 February 2013
The Chairman and CEQ is permanent
invitee to all Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee meetings. The
head of HR is.the secretary of the Committee.

The report of the Nomination,
Governance and Compensation Committee
is enclosed as Exhibit 3 to this chapter.
Table 6 gives the composition and
attendance record of the Nomination,
Governance and Compensation Committee.

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE
The Science, Technology and Operations
Committee of the Board entirely comprises of
Independent Directors. Its primary functions
are to:
# Advise the Board and management on
scientific, medical and technical matters
and operations involving the Company's
development and discovery programs
(generic and proprietary), including major
internal projects, business development
opportunities, interaction with academic and
other outside research organizations
# Assist the Board and management to stay
abreast of novel scientific and technologies
developments and innovations and
anticipate emerging concepts and trends
in therapeutic research and development,
to help assure the Company makes well-
informed choices in committing its resources
Assist the Board and the management in
creation of valuable Intellectual Property (IP)
# . Review the status of non-infringement
patent challenges
# - Assist the Board and the management
in building and nurturing science in the
organization in line with its business strategy
The Chairman and CEOQ is permanent
invitee to all Science, Technology and
Operations Committee meetings. Corporate
officers heading IPDO, Proprietary Products
and Biologics are secretaries of the Committee
with regard to their respective business.
The Committee met four times during
the year;on 10 May 2012, 19 July 2012,
29 October 2012-and 13 February 2013,
The report of the Science, Technology
and Operations Committee is enclosed as
Exhibit 4 to this chapter. Table 7 gives
the composition and attendance record of
the Science, Technology and Operations
Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Risk Management Comumittee of the
Board entirely comprises of Independent
Directors. The primary functions of the
Committee are to;
¥ Discuss with senior management the
Company's Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) and provide oversight asmay be
needed
Ensure it is apprised of the most significant
risks along with the action managementis
taking and how it is ensuring effective ERM
Review risk disclosure statements in any
public documents or disclosures

The Vice Chairman-and Managing
Director is permanent invitee to all Risk
Management Committee meetings. The
Chief Financial Officer acts as secretary
of the Committee. The Comumittee met
thrice during the year: on 10 May 2012,
29 October 2012 and 13 February 2013. The
report of the Risk Management Committee is
enclosed as Exhibit 5 to this chapter. Table 8
gives the composition and attendance record
of the Committee,

SHAREHOLDERS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee is
empowered to perform the functions of the
Board relating to handling of shareholders’
queries and grievances. It primarily focuses
on:
@ Review of investor complaints and their
redressal
Review of queries received from investors
# Review of work done by the share transfer
agent
@ Review of corporate actions related 1o
shareholder issues

Thie Shareholders” Grigvance Committee
consists'of three Directors, including two
Executive Directors, The Chairman of the
Comimittee is an Independent Director.
The Committee met four times during
the year:on 11 May 2012, 19 July 2012,
29 October 2012 and 13 February 2013.

Table 9 gives the composition and
attendance record of the Committee.

The Company Secretary officiates as
the secretary of the Committee and isalso
designated as Compliance Officer in terms
of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges. An analysis of investor queries
and complaints received during the year
and disposed is given in this annual report
in the chapter on Additional Shareholders’
Information.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Commitiee reviews the
Company's capital investment proposals
and ongoing projects. It approvesloans

to subsidiaries or other entities/persons

up to-an overalllimit of $250 million; and
borrowings from any person up to.an overall
limitof T250 million. It consists of three
Directors, including twe Executive Directors.
The Chairman of the Committee is an
Independent Director.

The Committee met thrice duringthe
yvearon11-May 2012, 29 October 2012 and
13 February 2013-and all the miembers of the
Cominittee were present at the meeting. The
Company Secretary officiates as the secretary
of the Committee.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The role of Management Committee

is to authorize Directors and officers of

the Company to deal with day-to~day
business operations such as banking,
treasury, insurance, excise, customs,
administration and dealing with other
government/non-government authorities.
The Managerent Committee consists of
three Directors including one Independent
Director. The Chairman of the Committee
is an Executive Director, The Committee
met six titnes during the year: on

11 May 2012, 19 July 2012, 21 August 2012,
29 October 2012, 3 January 2013 and

13 February 2013, The Company Secretary
officiates as the secretary of the Committee,

The management of Dr. Reddy’s develops
and implements policies, procedures and
practices that atternpt to translate the
Company’s core purpose and mission into
reality. The management also identifies,
measures, monitors and minimizes risk
factors in the business and ensures safe,
sound and efficient operation. These are
internally supervised and monitored through
the Management Council.

MANAGEMENT COUNCIL
Dr. Reddy’s Management Coungil consists
ol senior ma/nagénieni members fromthe
business and corporate functions. Page nos.
48-49 of this annual report gives details of
the members of the Management Council.
The Council meets once in.a quarter for
two-days sessions. Background notes for
the meetings are circulated in-advance 1o
facilitate decision-making: Listed below are



some of the key issues that were considered
by the Management Council during the year
under review:

# Company’s long term strategy, growth
initiatives and priorities

# Overall Company’s performance,
including those of various business units

# Decision on major corporate policies.
Discussion and sign-off on annual plans,
budgets, investments and other major
initiatives

# Discussion on business alliances proposals
and organizational design

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
AMALYSIS

This chapter of the annual report constitutes
the Company’s Management Discussion and
Analysis.

MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

Senior management of the Company

(Senior Director level and above, as well

as certain identified key employees) make
annual disclosures to the Board relating

to all material financial and commercial
transactions in which they may have
personal interest, if any, and which may have
a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company. Transactions with key managerial
personnel are listed in the financial section

of this annual report under Related Party
Transactions. -

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has a policy prohibiting
Insider Trading in conformity with applicable
regulations of the SEBIin India and the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
of the USA. Necessary procedures have

been laid down for Directors, officers and
designated employees for trading in.the
securities of the Company. The policy and
procedures are periodically communicated to
the employees who are considered as insiders
of the Company. Trading window closure/
blackouts/quiet periods, when the Directors
and employees are not permitted to trade in
the securities of the Company, are intimated
to all Directors and employees, in advance,
whenever required.

Dr. Reddy’s has both external and internal
audit systems in place. Auditors have

access to all records and information of the
Company. The Board recognizes the work of
the auditors as an independent check on the
information received from the management
on the operations and performance of the
Company. The Board and the management
periodically review the findings and
recommendations of the statutory and
internal auditors and takes corrective actions,

whenever necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Company maintains a system of internal
controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding:
it Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
Adequacy of safeguards for assets
Reliability of financial controls
# Compliance with applicable laws and
regulations

The integrity and reliability of the
internal control systems are achieved
through clear policies and procedures,
process automation;, careful selection,
training and development of employees and
an organization structure that segregates
responsibilities. Internal Audit at Dr. Reddy’s
is an independent and objective assurance
function, responsible for evaluating
and improving the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance
processes. The internal audit department
prepares annual audit plans based on
risk assessment, and conducts extensive
reviews covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk mitigation.
Areas requiring specialized knowledge
are reviewed in partnership with external
experts. Suggested improvement in
processes are identified during reviews, and
communicated to the management on an
on-going basis.
The Audit Committee of the Board
monitors the performance of internal andit

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE DURING FY2013

\ COMMITIEE MEMBERS
Dr. Ashok S Ganguly
Mr. Anupam Puri
Dr.J P Moreau
Dr. Bruce L A Carter

Chaimgln

Member
Member
Member
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department on a periodic basis through
review of auditplans, audit findings and
speed of issue resolution through follow-ups.
Each year, there are at least four meetings
held, where the Audit Committee reviews
internal audit findings, in addition to special
meetings and teleconference calls.

CEQ AND CFO CERTIFICATION

A certificate of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer as well as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on
financial statements and applicable internal
controls as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement is enclosed as Exhibit 6 to

this chapter.

STATUTORY AND IFRS AUDITS

For FY2013, B S R & Co. audited the financial
statements prepared under the Indian

GAAP The Company had appointed KPMG
as independent auditors for the purpose of
issuing opinion ou the financial statements
prepared under IFRS.

While auditing the operations of the
Company, the external auditors recorded
their observations and findings with the
management. These were then discussed
by the management and the auditors at
the Audit Committee meetings as well as

conference calls with members of the Awdit
Committee, Remedial measures suggested by
the auditors and the Audit Committee have
been either implemented or taken up for
implementation by the management.

The independent statutory and IFRS
auditors render an opinion regarding the
fair presentation in the financial statements
of the Company’s financial condition and
operating results. Theiraudits are made in
accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, and include areview of the
internal controls, to the extent necessary, to
determine the audit procedures required to
support their opinion.

AUDITORS® FEES

During FY2013, the Company paid ¥9.96
million to B S R & Co. the statutory auditors
as audit fees,

BAEAME OF CORMBALEB AT
B Quarterly and annual results
Quarterly and annual results of the
Company are published in widely circulated

M

national newspapers such as The Business
Standard and the local vernacular daily,
Andhra Prabha. These are also disseminated
internationally through Business Wire and
made available on corporate website:

‘DETASLS OF COMMUNICATION MADE dUR!NG FY2013

Pressreleases/statements

Earnings calls

Publication of results

www.drreddys.com. The financialresults
are alsocomipunicated tothe shareholders
through their registered email addresses.
News releases; presentations, eto,
The Company has established systems

and procedures to disseminate relevant
information toits stakeholders, including
shareholders, analysts, suppliers, custorners,
emplovees and the sodety atlarge. Tvalso
conducts earning calls with analysts and
investors. An analysis of the various means
of dissemnination ofinformation during the
vear under review isproduced in Table 10
Bl website The primary source of
information regarding the operations of the
Company is the corporate website:
wwvw.drreddys.com. Allofficial news releases
and presentations made to institutional

investors and analysts are posted on this
website. It contains a separate dedicated
tion called ‘Investors’, where the

information for shareholders are available.

The webcast of the proceedings of the Annual
General Meeting is also made available on the
website. Iriaddition, the Company maintains
various portals such as www.customer2drl.
com, www.vikretaZdrl.com and
wyvw:housecallsindia.com which have
proved to be elfective and widely appreciated
tools for information dissemination.

‘CHAiRMANSHlP/MEMEERSHIP HELD BY DR, ASHOK S GANGULY IN OTHER COMPANIES

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Wipro-Limited

o
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Research & Development Commitiee -
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Corporate Governance Commitiée -

Nomination Commitiee -

| CHAIRMANSHIP/MEMBERSHIP HELD BY s KALPANA MORPF?\RIA IN OTHER COMPANIES

Bennett, Coleman & Co. Limited
CMC Limited

Philip Morris International Inc.
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Audit Committee
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¥ Annual report The Company's annual
report containing, inter alia, the Directors’
Report, Corporate Governance Report,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) Report, Audited Annual Accounts,
Consolidated Financial Statements,
Auditors’ Report and other important
information is circulated to members and
others so entitled. The annual report is also
available ont the website in a user-friendly
and downloadable form.

B Chairman’s speech Printed copy of
the Chairman’s speech is distributed to-all
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.,
The webcast of the speech is also made
available on the Company’s website.

B Reminder to investors Reminders to
en-cash unclaimed dividend on shares are
sent ta the shareholders, so entitled, as per
records every year.

Corporate Filing and Dissemination
System (CFDS) The National Stock
Exchange (NSE) and the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE), maintain separate CFDS
portal for submission of information
electronically by the listed companies.

In addition to the disclosures and
communications sent to the NSE and the
BSE in hard copies, such disclosures and
communications are also filed electronically
through CFDS portal, whenever required.
Designated exclusive email-id The
Company has designated an email-id
exclusively for investor services:
shares@drreddys.com.

Bl Register to receive electronic
commumnications The Company has
provided an option to the shareholders to
register their email id online through the
Company’s website to receive electronic
communications. Shareholders desirous of
receiving electronic communications from
the Company may register their email id

at http://www.drreddys.com/investors/
shareholder-information.hunl.

DR, ASHOK S GANGULY

Dr. Ashok S Ganguly joined the Company
as Director on 23 October 2009. He is the
Chairman of ABP Private Limited (Ananda
Bazar Patrika Group) and was a Director
on the Central Board of Reserve Bank of
India from 2001 to 2009, Dr, Ganguly isa

member of the Prime Minister’s Council on
Trade and Industry as well as the Investment
Commission, and the India-USA CEO
Council set up by the Prime Minister of
India and the President of the US. He is

also a member of the National Knowledge
Commission to the Prime Minister of India.
Dr. Ganguly was the Chairman of Hindustan
Lever Limited from 1980 to 1990, and
member of the Unilever Board from 1990

10 1997 with responsibility for world-wide
research and technology.

Dr. Ganguly is a recipient of the ‘Padma
Bhushan’ as well as Padma Vibhushan’,
two of Tndia’s prestigious civilian honors, At
present, heserves as a member of the Rajya
Sabha, the upper house of the Parliament of
India.

He also holds directorship in Mahindra
& Mahindra and Wipro Limited and serves
as a member of Advisory Board of Diageo
India Pvt. Limited. T addition to the
Committee chairmanship/membership in
the Company, he also holds positions in the
Board Committees of other companies (see
Table 11).

Dr. Ganguly holds 4,800 equity shares in
the Company ason 31 March 2013,

DR. J P MOREAU
Dr: JP Morecau joined the Company as
Director ont 18 May 2007, He founded
Biomeasure Incorporated, based near
Boston, and has been its President and CEO.
Prior to that, he was working as Executive
Vice-President and Chief Scientific Officer
of the IPSEN Group and was responsible for
the Group’s Discovery and Innovation with
facilities in Paris; London, Barcelona and
Boston. He was a Vice-President, Research
from April 1994 and has been a member of
the Executive Comumittee of IPSEN Group
since that date.

Dr. Moreau has a degree in chemistry
from the University of Orleans and a D.Sc
in Blochemistry. He has also conducted
post-doctorate research at the Ecole
Polytechnique. He has published over 50
articles in scientific journals and is named as
an inventor of more than 30 patents. He s a
regular speaker at scientific conferences and
a member of Nitto Denko Scientific Advisory
Board. Dr. Moreau was also responsible
for establishing Kinerton Ltd. in Ireland in
March 1989, a wholesale manufacturer of
therapeutic peptides.

Dr, Moreau also holds directorship in
Mulleris Therapeutics Inc. and ChondioThera

Inc., Delaware, USA. Apart from the
Committee membership in the Company,
he doesnot bold any position in the Board
Commmittees of other company.

Dr. Moreau does not hold any shares of
the Company as on 31 March 2013,

MS. KALPANA MORPARIA

Ms. Kalpana Morparia joined the Company
as Director on 5 June 2007. Sheis the Chief
Executive Officer of I.P. Morgan, India,
where she leads their Business Groups
(investment banking, asset management,
treasury services and principal investment
management) & Service Groups (global
research, finance, technology and
operations). She is also a member of J.P,
Morgan’s global strategy team headquartered
in New York and the J.P. Morgan Asia Pacific
Executive Committee.

Prior to becoming CEO of J.P. Morgan
India, Ms. Morparia served as Vice Chair
on the Boards of ICICI Group. She joined
the ICICI Group in 1975 and was the Joint
Managing Director of ICICI Group from 2001
10 2007. She was named one of “The 50 Most
Powerful Women' in international business
by Fortune magazine in 2008; one of the 25
most powerful women in Indian business
by Business Today, a leading Indian business
magazine in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2008; and
one of The 100 Most Powerful Women' by
Forbes magazine in 2006.

A graduate in law from Bombay
University, Ms. Morparia has served on
several committees constituted by the
Government of India. She also holds
directorship in Bennett, Coleman & Co.
Limited, CMC Limited, J.P. Morgan Services
India Private Limited, J.P. Morgan Asset
Management India Private Limited and
Philip Morris International Inc. She is also
a member of the Governing Board of Bharti
Foundation. In addition to the Committee
membership in the Company, she also holds
positions in the Board Committees of other
companies (see Table 12).

Ms. Morparia holds 10,800 equity shares
in the Company as on 31 March 2013,

Pursuant to Section 303A.11 of the NYSE
Listed Company Manual, Dr. Reddy's which

is a foreign private issuer as defined by SEC,
must make its US investors aware of the
significant ways in which the corporate
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governance practices differ from those
required-of domestic companies under NYSE
listing standards. A detailed analysis of this is
posted on the Company’s website
www.drreddys.com.

§# The Board The Chairman of Dr. Reddy’s
is an Executive Director and maintains

the Chairman’s office at the Company’s
EXPEnses.

Remuneration Committee The Board
of Directors has a Nomination, Governance
and Compensation Committee, which is
composed of only Independent Directors.
This Committee also discharges the duties
and responsibilities of Remuneration
Commitiee as contemplated under the
non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49,
Details of the Nomination, Governance and
Corpensation Committee and its powers
have been discussed in this chapter.
Shareholders rights The Company

did not send half-yearly results to-each
household of the shareholders in EY2013.
However, in addition to displaying its
quarterly and half-yearly results-on its
website www.drreddys.com and publishing
in widely circulated newspapers, it sends the
quarterly financial results to the registered
e-mail addresses of the shareholders.

B Audit qualifications The auditors have
not qualified the financial statements of the
Company.

Training of Board members The
Company believes that the Board be
continnously empowered with the
knowledge of the latest developments in
the Company’s businesses and the external
environment affecting the Company and
the industry as a whole. To this end, the
Directors were given presentations onthe
global business environment, as well asall
business areas of the Company including
business strategy, risks and opportunities.
The Directors also visited manufacturing and
research locations of the Company.

i3 Mechanism for evaluating non-
executive Board members A Director
among the Independent Directors has been
identified to provide structured feedback

to the Board on the functioning and
performance of the Board, and to-encourage
healthy discussions and-openness-amongst
the members-of the Board. The Company
also conducted an independent review

B on ceoovsia
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of its Board processes, functioning and
contribution of individual Board memibersin
enhancing overall Board’s effectiveness.

i Whistle blower policy The Company
has a whistle blower policy.

AL SH AT

The chapter on Additional Shareholders’
Information forms a part of this annual report.

The Company received the following awards
for its annual report and disclosures:

‘Best Managed Board of India” award

by the Stars of the Industry Group, Asian
Confederation of Businesses

& Titanium Award for Corporate
Governance and Investor Relations in
Medical and Healthcare sector from The
Asset Magazine, Hong Kong

# ‘Best Managed Board” award by Aon
Hewitt and Mint, along with the BSE and the
NSE

¢ Meritaward for Annual Report 2011 in

manufacturing sector by the South Asian
Federation of Accountants (SAFA)

DECLARATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF
BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Lirnited has adopted
a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“the
Code”) which applied to all employees and
Directors of the Company, its subsidiaries
and affiliates. Under the Code, itis the
responsibility of all employees and Directors
to familiarize themselves with the Code and
comply with its standards.

Thereby certify that the Board members
and senior management personnel of
Dr. Reddy's have affirmed compliance with
the Code of the Company for the financial
year 2012-13.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 14 MAY 2013

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRREDDY'S
LABORATORIES LEIMITED

The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors comprises four Directors. Bach
memberof the Committee is an Independent

Director as definedunderindianlaws, Clause
49 ofthe Listing Agreement and the New
York Stock Excliange Corporate Governange
Guidelines. The Committee operates-under
awritten charteradopted by the Board of
Directors, and has been vested with all the
powers necessary to effectively discharge its
responsibilities.

Dr. Reddy’s management hasprimary
responsibility for the financial statements
and reporting process, including the systems
of internal controls. During the year
20112~13, the Audit Committee met five
times. It discussed with the Company’s
internal auditors and statutery auditors
the scope and plans for their respective
audits. It also discussed the results of
their examination, theirevaluation of the
Company's internal controls; and.overall
quality of the Company’s financial reporting,

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities,
the Commiittee reviewedand discussed
the Company's quarterly unaudited and
annualaudited financial statements with the
management. B-S R & Co., the Company’s
independent auditors for Indian GAAP,
and KPMG, the Company’s independent
auditors for IFRS financial statements, are
responsible for expressing their opinion on
the conformity of the Company’saudited
financial statements with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

Relying on the review and discussions
with the managementand the Independent
auditors, the Audit Committee believes that
the Company’s financial statementsare fairly
presented in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the TFRS
in allmaterial aspects.

To ensure that the accounts.of the
Company are properly maintained and that
accounting transactions are in accordance
with the prevailing laws and regulations,
the Committee reviewed the internal
controls put in place by the.Compary. And
in conducting such reviews, the Committee
found no material discrepancy or weakness
in the Company’s internal control systems.

In 2005-06, the Company became
the first Indian manufacturing company
to comply with Section 404°of the US
Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOX), in‘advance of
the mandatory deadline of 31 March 2007,
which was applicable to foreign private
issuers.

The Committee hasalsoreviewed the
non-audited services being provided by
the Statutory Auditors and concluded that




such services were not in conflict with the
independence of the Statutory Auditors.
The Committee ensures that the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics has a mechaunism such that no
personnel intending to make a complaint
relating to securities and financial reporting
shall be denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board of Directors:

That the audited Standalone and
Consolidated financial statements

prepared as per Indian GAAP of Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories Limited for the year ended

31 March 2013, be accepted by the Board as a
true and fair statement of the financial status
of the Company.

That the financial statements prepared

as per IFRS as issued by International
Accounting Standards Board for the year
ended 31 March 2013, be accepted by the
Board and included in the Company’s annual
report on Form 20-F to be filed with the US
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Further, the Committee has recommended to
the Board the re-appointment of BSR & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, and KPMG, India as
statutory/independent auditors for Indian
GAAP and IFRS respectively for the fiscal
year ending 31 March 2014.

CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 13 MAY 2013

BT
REPORT OF THE NOMINATION,
GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE

TOTHE SHAREMOLDERS OF DR, REDDY'S
LABORATORIES LIMITED

The Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors comprises four Directors. Each
member of the Committee is an Independent
Director as defined under Indian laws, Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement and the New
York Stock Exchange Corporate Governarnce
Guidelines. The Committee operates under

a written charter adopted by the Board of
Directors, and has been vested with all the
powers necessary to effectively discharge its
responsibilities.

The Committee's primary responsibilities
are to:

Periodically examine the structure,
composition and functioning of the Board,
and recommend changes, as necessary,

to improve the Board's effectiveness and
oversee the evaluation;

Assess the Company’s policies and
processes in key areas of corporate
governance and the impact of related
significant regulatory and statutory changes,
if any, with a view to ensuring the Company
is at the forefront of good corporate
governance;

# Examine major aspects of the Company’s
organizational health, and recommend
changes as necessary;

# Review and recommend the
compensation and variable pay for Executive
Directors to the Board; and
i Establish, in consultation with the
management, the compensation program
for the Company, and recommend it to the
Board for approval. In that context:
& Establish annual Key Result Areas
(KRAs) for CEO and COO and oversee the
evaluation of their achievement.
& Review, discuss and provide guidance
to the management, on the KRAs for
members of the Management Council.

&

% Review the Company’s ESOP Schemes
and oversee administration of the ESOP
Schemes.

Ason 31 March 2013, the Company

had 793,867 outstanding stock options,
which amounts to 0.47% of total equity
capital. These stock options are held by

796 employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries under Dr. Reddy's Employees
Stock Options Scheme, 2002 and

Dr. Reddy’s Employees ADR Stock Options
Scheme, 2007. Out of the total 793,867 stock
options, 11,000 stock options are exercisable
at fair market value and 782,867 stock
options are exercisable at par value i.e. 35,

During the year, the Committee had
discussions around review of annual
performance appraisal, grant of stock
options, incentive plans for Proprietary
Products & Biologics, gender diversity, and
compensation and other human resource
related matters.

The Committee also devoted
considerable time to discussing the
organization health, organization design
and succession planning for critical positions
within the Company. It also reviewed the

Company’s system for hiring, developing and
retaining talent.

The Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee also recommends
to the Board, changes in committee structure
and membership and other steps that
would improve the Board's effectiveness in
overseeing the Company.

CHAIRMAN, NOMINATION, GOVERNANCE AND
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 13 MAY 2013

REPORT OF THE SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY
AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DR REDDY'S
LABORATORIES LIMITED

The Science, Technology and Operations
Committee of the Board of Directors
comprises four Directors. Each member of
the Committee is an Independent Director
as defined under Indian laws, Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement and the New York
Stock Exchange Corporate Governance
Guidelines. The Committee operates under
a written charter adopted by the Board of
Directors, and has been vested with all the
powers necessary to effectively discharge its
responsibilities.

The Committee's primary respousibilities
are to:

i Advise the Board and management on
scientific, medical and technical matters
and operations involving the Company’s
development and discovery programs
(generic and proprietary), including major
internal projects, business development
opportunities, interaction with academic and
other outside research organizations

# Assist the Board and management to stay
abreast of novel scientific and technologies

developments and innovations and
anticipate emerging concepts and trends

in therapeutic research and development,

to help assure the Company makes well-
informed choices in committing its resources
Assist the Board and the management in
creation of valuable Intellectual Property
(1P)

¢ Review the status of non-infringement

patent challenges
# Assist the Board and the management
in building and nurturing science in the

PoRATE GovernaNce TR



organization in tune with its business

strategy

The Committee met four times during the
finaticial year. The Science, Technology and
Operations Committee apprised the Board
on the key discussions and recommendations
made at the Committee meetings.

CHAIRMAN, SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 13 MAY 2013

REPORT OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

LABORATORIE :

The Risk I\/Ianag,cmcm Committee of
the Board of Directors comprises {our
Directors, Each member of the Committee
is an Independent Director as defined
under Indian laws, Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and the New York
Stock Exchange Corporate Governance
Guidelines. The Committee operates under
awritten charter adopted by the Board of
Directors, and has been vested with all the
powers necessary to effectively discharge its
responsibilities.

The Committee believes its primary
responsibilities are to:

@ Discuss with senior management, the
Company's Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) and provide oversight as may be
needed

# Ensure itis apprised of the most significant
risks along with the action management is
taking and how itis ensuring effective ERM
# Reviewing risk disclosure statements in
any public documents or disclosures

The Committee met thrice during the
financial year to review the enterprise wide
risks, review the status of mitigation of the
key risks (including review of insurance and
self insurance options) and evaluate residual
risk thereof, propose suitable areas to focus
on and recommend interventions from time
Lo thme.

The Risk Management Committee also
apprised the Board on the key discussions
and recommendations made at the
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Committee meetings and shared information
on enterprise wide risks.

e, Hevs
CHAIRMAN, RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 13 MAY 2013

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATE TO THE BOARD
PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING

AGREEMENT OF THE SEB!
We, G V Prasad, Chairman
Executive Officer, and Saumen Chakraborty,
7 tothe

and Chief

President and Chief Financial Officer,
best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:
We

statements including cash flow statement

ave reviewed the financial

(standalone and consolidated) for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013 and
that these statements:

i. donotcontain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be
misleading;

il. together present a true and fair view of the
Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

B There are no transactions entered into
by the Company during the year, which
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company's Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics.

[ We accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems
of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting and have disclosed to the auditors
and the Audit Comumittee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take

to address these deficiencies.

B We have disclosed, wherever applicable,
to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

i. the significant deficiencies in the internal
controls over financial reporting and
corrective actions taken;

ii. that there are no material weaknesses
in the internal controls over financial
reporting;

iii. that there are no significant changesin
internal control over financial reporting
during the year;

iv. all significant changes in the accounting
policies during the year, if any, and the

same have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial staternents; and

v. that there are no instances of significant
fraud of which we have become aware
of andinvolvement therein of the
management ovan employee having a
significarit role in the Company’sinternal
control system over financial reporting.

!
!
!
|
|
!
!
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PLACE HYDERABAD
BATE 14 MAY 2013

BERS OF DR REDDY'S

HRUES LIVMITED
We have examined the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance by
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited (“DRL” or
“the Company”}yfor the year ended 31 March
2013 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreementof the Company with the stock
exchanges.

The compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance is the responsibility
of the management. Ourexamination was
limited to procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It isneither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the
explanations given tous, we certify thatthe
Company has-complied with the-conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated inthe
above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such comipliance

is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management

has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 101248W

PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP NO. 32815

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 14 MAY 2013




ADDITIONAL

SHAREHOLDERS'’

INFORMATION

FY2013 represents fiscal year 2012-13, from
i April 2012 to 31 March 2013, and analogously
for FY2012 and other such labeled years.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

For the quarter ending 30 June 2013

REGISTERED AND CORPORATE OFFICE
D, REQDY'S LABORATORIES LIMITED
§-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad 500 034

Andhra Pradesh, India

TEL +91:40-4900 2900

FAX +91-40-4900 2999

wessITE http://www.drreddys.com

REPRESENTING OFFICERS
Correspondence to the [olowing officers
may be addressed at the registered and
corporate office of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

TEL +91-40-4900 2105
FAX +91-40-4900 2999
EmatL spoddar@drreddys.com

For the quarter and half-year ending 30 September 2013

For the quarter and nine months ending 31 December 2013

For the year ending 31 March 2014
AGM for the year ending 31 March 2014

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES AND STOCK CODES

INVESTOR RELATIONS

TEL +91-40-6683 4297

FAX +91-40-2373.1955

ematl kedaru@drreddys.com

DEDA

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
TEL +91-40-4900 2445
FAX +91-40-4900 2999
EMAIL rajans@drreddys.com

AN RETAIL INVESTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

TEL +91-40-4900 2105

FAX +91-40-4900 2999
EmMAtL shares@drreddys.com

Fourth week of July 2013
Last week of October 2013

Second week of February 2014
Second week of May 2014
Second fortnight of July 2014

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
New York Stock Exchange Inc. (NYSE)

500124
DRREDDY-EQ

934809
DRREDDY-N1
- RDY

ABDITIONALS bERS: INForNATION BTER




Movement of the Company’s Share Price ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

on NSE and S&P CNX Nifty Index pATE Wednesday, 31 July 2013

DURING FY2013 TIME 1030 AM.

vENUE Grand Ball Room,

Hotel Taj Krishna,

Road No. 1, Barijara Hills,

Hyderabad 500 034

Andhra Pradesh, India

LAST DATE FOR RECEIPT OF PROXY FORMS
Monday, 29 July 2013 before 10.30 A.M.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed a dividend of €15 per share {(300%)
on equity shares of T5 each. The dividend,

if declared by the shareholders at the 29
Annual General Meeting scheduled to be

Notes: (1) All values are indexed to 100 as on 1 April 2012. held or 31 July 2013, will be paid on or after
(2) S&P CNX Nifty Index is a well diversified 50 stock index accounting for 22 sectors of the Indian economy. it is owned and 7 August 2013
managed by India Index Services and Products Ltd. (iSL), which is a joint venture between N3E and CRISIL. - :

DEC 2012
JAN 2013
FEB 2013

MAR 2013

APR 2012
MAY 2012

B JUN 2012
@ 2012
B AUG 2012
SEP 2012
s OCT 2012
NOV 2012

BOOK CLOSURE DATE

Movement of ADR prices ‘
P The dates of book closure are from Tuesday,

and S&P ADR Index
@ 110 16 July 2013 to Friday, 19 July 2013 (both
DURING FY2013 . . . .
days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of
dividend.

ISIN is an unique identification number of
traded scrip. This number has to be guoted in
each transaction relating to the dematerialised
securities of the Company. (See Table 1),

The Committee on Uniform Security
Identification Procedures (“CUSIP”) of the
American Bankers Association has developed
Notes: (1) All values are indexed to 100 as on 1 April 2012 anumbering system for securities, A CUSIP
(2) The S&P ADR Index is based on the non-US stocks comprising the S&P Global 1200 traded in the US exchanges. For details  number uniquely identifies a security and
of the methodology used to compute this index please visit www.adr.com. o Coe .

its issuer and this is recognized globally by

' Premium on ADR traded on NYSE organizations adhering to standardsissued

versus price quoted at the NSE by the Intemaﬁgml Securities Orggguzatmn.
8 The Company’s ADRs carry the CUSIP

DURING FY2013 number 256135203,

12

[od

APR 261
DEC 2012
AN 2013
FEB 2073

» MAY 2012
JUL 2012
2 AUG 2012
5 SEP 2032
@ OCT 2012
2 NOV 2012
& MAR 2013

@ JUN 2012
E

2

OVERSEAS DEPOSITORY OF ADRs
JPMIORGAN CHASE & CO.

P.O. Box 64504

St.Paul )

MN 55164-0504

TEL (651)453-2128

-4 INDIAN CUSTODIAN OF ADRs
o g o~ - o o~ Il o o ™ - B JEMORGAN CHASE BANK-NA
5 = - - h o p &

"é * R 8 : A g g R 8 & « India Sub-Custody
" - = jes] b4 h . " .
G % = 2 by 2 ? s % # = 6" Floor, Paradigm B-'Wing

Note: Fremium has been calculated on a daily basis using RBI reference exchange rate.
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Mindspace, Malad (West)

Muibai 400:064; : Table 4 gives the monthly high/low and ' b %
Maharashtra, India the total number of shares/ ADRs traded per Dividend History

TEL +91-22-6649 2500 month on the BSE, NSE and the NYSE during FY2003-FY2013 8
FAX +91-22-6649 2509/2880 1117 FY2013. IN PERCENT N
emal india.custody.client.service® Chart 1 gives the movement of the

jpmorgan.com Company’s share price on NSE vis-a-vis S&P

CNX Nifty during FY2013.

Chart 2 gives the movement of
Dr. Reddy’s ADR prices on NYSE vis-d-vis
S&P ADR index during FY2013 and Chart 3
gives premium in per cent ont ADR traded on
NYSE compared to price quoted at the NSE.

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
306, Right Wing, 3™ Floor, Amrutha Ville,
Opp. Yashoda Hospital, Rajbhavan Road
Hyderabad 500082, 200 -

Andhra Pradesh, India Tables 5 and 6 give the data on shareholding

TEL +91-40-2337 4967 classified on the basis of ownership and
FAX +91-40-2337 0295 shareholders” class, respectively.

ematl bsshyd@bigshareonline.com

Chart 4 shows the dividend history of the
Company from FY2003 to FY2013,

Table 2 gives the names of the persons who
hold more than 1 per cent shares of the
Company as on 31 March 2013, Sharcholders/debentureholders holding
physical shares/debentures may, if they
BLEETY P g IMPARY so desire, may send their nominations
Table 3 lists equity history of the Company in Form 2B of the Companies (Central

since incorporation of the Company up to Government’s) General Rules and Forms
31 March 2013, Rules, 1956 to the Registrar & Transfer

Agent of the Company. Those holding
shares/debentures in dematerialised form

All shares issued by the Company carry the may contact their respective Depository
equal voting rights. The Bonus Debentures Participant (DP) to avail nomination facility.

issued by the Company do not confer any
right to its holders to attend and vote at the

“ >

Mmoo o oy & M
e . . 2 8 8 8 8 &8 8 5 5 & B
general meeting of the shareholders. 58 8 88 8 8 8 &8 d

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

Equity shares of 35 each INEO89A01023

Unsecured, redeemable, non-convertible fully paid-up debentures of 25 each (Bonus Debentures) INEOBIAD80S51

PERSONS HOLDING 1% OR MORE OF THE SHARES IN THE COMPANY AS ON 31 MARCH 2013

1 Dr. Reddy's Holdings Limited 39,729,284 23.39

2 First State Investments Management (UK) Limited, First State Investments International 9,667,791 5.69
Limited and their associates

3 Life Insurance Corporation of India and its associates 7,686,575 4.53

4 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Limited 4,924,419 2.90

5 Abu Dhabi Investment Authority 3,077,750 1.81

6  FID Funds (Mauritius) Limited ' 2,040,136 1.20

W Does not include ADR holding.

ABBITIONAL sHAREHOLDERS INFoRMATION BTER



EQUITY HISTORY OF THE COMPANY SINCE INCORPORjATlOVN‘ OF THE COMPANY UP TO 31 MARCH 2013

24 February 1984
22 ‘f\’l\(yn‘vémber 1984
14 June 1986

9 August 1986

30 September 1988
9 Augusyt 1989

16 December 1991
17 January 1993
10 May 1994

10 May 1994

26 July 1994

29 Septémber 1995
30 January 2001
30 Januéry 2001

11 April 2001

9 July 2001

24 Sébtember 2001
25 Cctober 2001
30 Jam)ary 2004
29 April 2005

13 February 2006
24 March 2006
31 I\/ieﬁ*ch 2006

11 May 2006

1 July 2006

16 August 2006
JO August 2006
22 Novembe? ZCO6
29 November 2006
19 December 2006
16 February 2007
20 March 2007 -
200'7;2008

20082009
2009=2010
2010-2011
2011-2012

2012-2013

Issue to Promoters
Issue to Promoters
Issue to Promoters
Issue to Public
Forfeiture of 100 shares
Rights Issue

Bonus [r;sue (1:2)
Bénus Issue (1:1)

Bonus Issue (2:1)

Issue to Promoters

GDR underlying equity shares

SEFL shareholders on merger

CDL shareholders on merger
Cancellation of shares held in CDL
ADR underlying equity shares
GDR conversion into ADR

ARL shareholders on merger

Sub division of equity shares*

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotrnent pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

~ Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

~ Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Bonus Issue (1:1)

ADR underlying equity shares

ADR underlying equity shares (Green Shoe option)
Allotment pursuarwf to exercise of Stock Options
Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options
Allotmerzt pursuant to axercise 5‘? STOLKQDUOW
Ailotmém pursuant ‘*(o exeréise of Stock Options
Aliotmém_ pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of ADR Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options
: A!Eetmerﬂ. pursuant 1o exercise o ADR Stock Options
Allotmerit pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotmerit pursuant to exercise of ADR Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options
Allotment pursuant to exercise of ADR Stock Options
Allotment pursuant to exercise of Stock Options

Allotment pursuant to exercise of ADR Stock Options

* Sub-division of one equity share of 10 face value into two equity shares of ¥5 face value.

200

743,300

6,500
1,116,250

819,750

1,092,950

3,278,850
13,115,400
2,250,000
4,301,076
263,062
5,142,942

6,612,500

56,694

3,001
20,000
68,048
12,573
75,000

7,683
34,687
20,862

76,757,802
12,500,000
1,800,000
13,958

70,782

11,836
260,566
223,605

72,426
302,451

a1

41,400

363,296

44,051
764,683
42,931
228,583
47,546

200
243,500
250,000

1,366,250
1,366,150
2,185,900
3,278,850
6,557,700
19,673,100
21,923,100
26,224,176
26,487,238
31,630,180
31,588,780
38,201,280

38,201,280

38,257,974
76,515,948
76,518,949
76,538,949
76,606,997
76,619,570
76:694,570
76,702,253
76,736,940
76,757,802

153,515,604

166,015,604

167,815,604

167,829,562

167,900,344

167,912,180
168,172,746

168,468,777

168,845,385

169,252,732

169,560,346

169,836,475



All queries and requests relating to share/
debenture transfers/transmissions may
be addressed to our Registrar and Transfer
Agent:

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
306, Right Wing, 3" Floor, Amrutha Ville,
Opp. Yashoda Hospital, Rajbhavan Road,
Hyderabad 500 082

Andhra Pradesh, India

TEL+91-40-2337 4967

FAX +91-40-2337 0295

emait hsshyd@bigshareonline.com

The Company periodically reviews the
operations ofits Registrar and Transfer
Agent: Thenumber of shares transferred/
transmitted inphysical form during the last
two financial years are givenin Table 7.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The Company’s scrip forms part of the
compulsory dematerialization segment for all
investors with effect from 15 February 1999,
To facilitate easy access of the dematerialized
systern to the investors, the Company has
signed up with both the depositories—
namely the National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL)—and has
established connectivity with the depositories
through its Registrar and Transler Agent,
Bigshare Services Private Limited.

HIGH, LOW AND NUMBER OF SH

Aprl 2012 1,818.00 - 1,690.00

178000

May 2012 1,626.00
June 2012 1,680.00 1,528.00
July 2012 172500 1,592.25
August 2012 1,707.00  1,604.00
September 2012 179770 = 1,617.00
October 2012 178100 1.639.80
November 2012 1,830.00 / 1,:71 1.60
December 2012 1,912.90  1,804.00
January 2013 1,968.60  1,820.25
February 2013 195800 1,727.40
March 2013 184535 1,72050

U One ADR s

jual to one equity share.

Chart 5 gives the breakup of l
dematerialized shares and shares in
certificate form as.on 31 March 2013 as
compared with thatas on 31 March 2012.
Dematerialization of shaves is done through
Bigshare Services Private Limited and on
an average the dematerialization process is

Break up of Shares in
Electronic and Physical Form
AS ON 31 MARCH 2013
AND 31 MARCH 2012
IN PERCENT

"y
NN
e ™~
o (s3]

completed within 10 days from the date of

B8 2012 572013

receipt of a valid dematerialization request
along with the relevant documents,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
For each quarter of FY2013, a qualified
practicing Company Secretary carried out
the reconciliation of share capital audit to
recondcile the total admitted share capital
with NSDL and CDSL, total issued and
listed share capital. The reports conflrm that
thetotalissued/paid up share capitalisin
agreement with the total number of shares in
physical form and dematerialized formheld
with NSDL and CDSL.

In addition to the above, a Sccretarial
Audit for FY2013 was carried out by
Dr. KR Chandratre, practicing Company
Secretary, having more than 26 years of
experience. The report of the said Secretarial

Auditforms a part of this annual report.

The Company’s ADRs are traded in the US
on New York Stock Exchange Inc. ("NYSE") sove S e

under the ticker symbol ‘RDY’. Each ADR o e e
is represented by one equity share. As on PHYSICAL LECTRONIC LECTRONIC

; FORM N5SDL
31 March 2013, there were approximately

S TRADED EVERY MONTH ON BSE, NSE AND NYSE DURING FY2013

261,450 1,815.85 1,685.85 .5272,893 4,641,525

29.34

33.94

302,746 1,780.75  1,63125 5,538,002 5,440,427
400239 168790 152640 7,748,008 29.68 2728 4,935,470
525642 171980 150050 8507,385 3142 2872 4,401,433
316,115 1,70800 161500 4,550,446 3052 2900 5,222,821
495630 181500 161630 9,139,143 32.58 2082 4,768,272
469,775 178200 152755 6726099 33.56 3107 4,136,654
1,107,503 1,830.00  1,711.05 6,036,102 3368 3126 4,365,763
284161 191550 1,811.00 6,073,882 34.87 3303 3,342,786
1,333,053 1,970.00  1,821.10 9,403,058 3649 3381 3,888,176
435011 196100  1,725.10 8,459,315 36.73 3243 4851312
177049 183400 172040 4560991 3376 3189 4,259,619

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS! INFORMATION {1




11,280 record holders of ADRs-evidencing
28,619,230 ADRs.

QUERIES &
FROM GHA
Table 8 gives details of types of shareholder
queries received and replied to during
FY2013. Pending queries and requests

were either received during the last week of

March 2013, or were pending due to non-
receipt of information/documents from the
shareholders.

s §

Table 9 gives the details of date, time,
location and business transacted through
special resolution at last three Annual
General Meetings. There is no proposal
to conduct postal ballot for any matter in
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

There are five pending cases relating to
disputes over title of the shares of the
Company, in which the Company has been

bISTRIBUTSQN OF SHAREHOLD!NGS ON THE BASIS OF OWNERSHIP

Promoter's holding

. Individuals

= Companies

={ndian Financial Institutions
=Banks

—Mutuai Funds
Foreign holdings

~ForeignInstitutional Investors

<= Nor Resident Indians

< ADRs/Foreign Nationals
brotl
Indian Public and Corporates

o
Change in percentage due to further ESOP allotment.

39729284
43417812
8,011,645

28670 630

100,169,840 , . 100,

3,688,528
39,729,284
417,812
11,634,285

28,518,365
: o

made a party. These cases, however, are not
materialin nature.

i Y SHMYERERY
Pursuant to Section 2054 of the Companies
Act, 1956, unclaimed dividends up to

and including for the FY2005 have been
transferredto the general revenue account of
the Central Government/Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

The dividends and interest on- debentures
for the following years, which remain
unclaimed for seven years will be transferred
to Investor Education and Protection Fund
established by the Central Government
under Section 205C of the Companies

(0.01)0
(0.04) W

253670 73,546 0.04 011
10477307 11,055,048 652 (0.35)
50367192 46,497,438 27.42 223
2437396 2,500,279 1.48 (0.04)

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDER CLASS AS ON 31 MARCH 2013

5,001-10,000
10,001-20,000
20,001-30,000
30,001-40,000
40,001-50,000
50,001-100,000
100,001and above

Total (Excluding ADRs)

Equity shares underlying ADR

O Held by beneficial owners outside India.

T3 b7 REDDY/S LABORATORIES

T ANNUAL REPORT

1314 183
937 130
347 0.48
204 0.28
108 0.15
266 0.37

5,603,546
11,925,231 113
2,744,275
1,743,573
1,396,837
- 986,734
3,804,056
122,922,993
1,217,2
28,619,230




SHARES TRANSFERRED/ NSMITTED IN PHYSICAL FORM

Number of transfers/transmissions : 74 ' 120
Number of shares 14,298 24,416

SHAREHOLDER QUERIES AND REQUESTS RECEIVED AND RE@UED TO IN EY20

o

Change of address

2 Revalidation and issue/of duplicate dividend warrants 53
3 Sub-division of shares (Ei(chanéé) 120 116 / 4
4 Share transfers / 109 509 : 1
5 Transmission of shares 17 5 / 13
6 SptiUConsol%daﬁon of shares - - - -
7 Stop transfers ' - 22 22 -
8 Power of attorney regiétraﬁon - - . -
9 Change of bank mandate - 98 98 -
10 Correction of name - 3 3 -
11 Dematerialization of shares 7 415 418 4
12 ’ Rematerialization of shares - - - -
13 Issue of duplicate share certificates of Dr. Reddy’s 1 31 29 3
14 Issue of duplicate share certificates of ARL/SEFL/CDL - 4 4 -
15 Letters & emails received from shareholders 3 857 852 3
16 Complaints received from Stock Exchanges/SEBI etc. ' - 21 21 -

0 The Company has since rescived all the shareholders’ queries which were pending as on 31 March 2013
The above table does not include those shareholders’ disputes, which are pending in various courls.

LAST ;FHREE ANNUA

o

L GENERAL MEETINGS

o o oy

2009-10 - 23 July 2010 at 11.30 A.M. Grand Ball Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, No Special resolution was passed.

Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034
201011 271 July 2011 at 11.30 A.M. Grand Ball Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, # Re-appointment of Dr. K Anji Reddy as
Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Whole-Time Director designated as Chairman.

# Payment of commission and grant of stock
options to Directors other than the Managing/
Whole-Time Directors.

2011-12 20 July 2012 at 11.30 AM Grand Ball Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, Extension of term of Dr. Reddy’s Employees
Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 Stock Option Scheme, 2002.

D/INTEREST
. -

ON

-

DEBENTURES

—

2005-2006 Final Dividend 28 July 2006 1,226,440 3 September 2013
2006-2007 Final Dividend 24 July 2007 2,240,970 30 August 2014
2007-2008 Final Dividend 22 July 2008 2,059,748 28 August 2015
2008-2009 Final Dividend 22 July 2009 3,238,763 28 August 2016
2009-2010 Final Dividend 23 July 2010 5,392,508 29 August 2017
2010-2011 Final Dividend 27 July 2011 5,890,140 27 August 2018
2011-2012 1st Year Debenture Interest 24 March 2012 2,086,518 23 March2019
2011-2012 Final Dividend 20 uly 2012 7,734,238 26 August 2019
2012-2013 2nd Year Debenture Interest 23 March 2013 7,516,705 23 March 2020

ADDITIONAL SHAREHGLDERS INFoRMATION TR



Act, 1956, Table 10 gives the transferdates in

thisregard. Shareholders/debentureholders
who have not claimed these dividends/
interest are, therefore, requested to do

so before they are statutorily transferred

to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund.:Shareholders/debenturcholders
whohave not encashed their dividend/
interest warrants as specified in Table 10 are
requested to immediately approach

M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited,
Hyderabad for the issue of duplicate
warrant(s)/demand draft(s) in lieu of the

original warrants.

There has been no instance of non-
compliance by the Company relating to

capital markets for the last three years.

FUMAMOIAL
COMEP

The quarterly, half yearly and annual results
of the Company are displayed on its website
www.drreddys.com. Presentations to
analysts, as and when made, are immediately
plaurd on the website for the benefit of

the shareholders and public at large. Apart
from the above, the Company also regularly
provides relevant information to the stock
exchangesas perthe requirements of the
Listing Agreements.

The Company alsosends the financial
results to the shareholders, at their email
addresses registered with the Company/
Depositories.

P Qi A AT

PR

The information is given in the Chapteron
Corporate Governance.

ST AMNURL GENERAL

Shareholders desiring any information
with regard to-the accounts are requested
to write to the Company at an early date so
as o enable the management to keep the
information ready. The queries relating to
operational and financial performance may
be raised.at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company provides the facility of
Investor-Helpdesk at the Annual General
Meeting, Shareholders may post their
queries relating to shares, dividends etc., at
this Investor-Helpdesk.

W0 DR OREDDY S LABORATORIES

An Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company may be called on the requisition
of shareholders. Such a requisition shall set
oul the matters of consideration for which
themeetingisto be called on; signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registeréd
office of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, members entitled
to make requisition for an Extraordinary
General Meeting with regard to any matter,
shall be those who hold not less than one-
tenth of the paid up share capital of the
Company as on the date of the requisition

carries the voting right in that matter.

5%

CFOR NOMINATIMNG
WM“ TR ON THE %M%MNW

Ll
Pursuant to Section 257 of the Companies

P

Act, 1956, any member intending to propose

a person for appointment on the Board of

the Company shall deposit a signed notice
ignifying candidature to the office of a

500 at the

registered office of the Company, not less

Director, along with a deposit of ¥
than fourteen days before the shareholders’
meeting. All nominations are considered
by the Nomination, Governance and
Compensation Committee of the Boardof
Directors of the Company which entirely
dent Directors.

comprises of Indepen

B

AN ARTICLES OF A550CIA ¢
The Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company are available at

the corporate website of the Company,

www.drreddys.con,

1, Sandeep Poddar, Company Secretary of
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited, hereby
confirm that the Company has:

a. Complied with the provisions prescribed
tion Nu
under Companies Act, 1956 and Director
Identification Nuniber Rules, 2006, as

for Directors’ Identificati mber

amended.

b. Maintained all
statutory registers prescribed under the
Companies Act, 1956.

¢. Filed all forms and returns and furnished

avy particulars to the Registrar of

the books of account and

all nec

G mnpariiés,él}ﬁ!or concerned authorities
as required under the Companies
Act; 1956,

d. Conducted the Board mueetings and
Annual General Meeting as pecthe
Companies Act, 1956 and the minutes
thereof were properly recorded fnthe
minutes books:

¢, Effected share/debenture transfe
despatched the certificates within the time

s and

limitpresaribed by various authorities,

. Notexceeded the borrowing or

investment Hmits.

Patd dividend to the shareholders and
interest to the debentureholders within
the prescribed time limit, transferred the
unpaid dividend to the Investor Education
and Protection Pund within the time limit
and has also complied with the provisions
of the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (Uploading of information regarding
unpaid and unclaimed amounts tying with
companies) Rules, 2072,

1. Complied withithe provisions-of the
Listing Agreements with the Stock
Exchanges, applicable rules and
regulations framed by the Securities
and Excharige Board of India and
the Companies Act, 1956, as may be
applicable

The certificate is given by the undersigned
a(‘(‘e}"dmg tothe best of his knowledgeand
belief, knowing fully that on the faith and
strength of what is stated above, full reliance

will be placed on it by the shareholders of the

Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

FLACE HYDERABAD
DATE 14 MAY 2013



APl MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

ARLHYDERARAD
PlotNo. 137, 138

DA Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal
Medak District, Andhra Pradesh (AP)
Pin: 502325

PLANT 1

\ ABAD PLANT 2

PlotNao. 758, 105, 1106 111
IDA Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal
Medak District, AP, Pin: 502 325

HY D FREANT 3

IDA Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal
Medal District, AP, Pin: 502 325

AP HYE

AD PLANY 4
Plot No. 9/A, 9/B, 22A, 22B & 22C
Phase.~ HI, IDA Jeedimetla

Ranga Reddy District, AP, Pin: 500 055

APENALGONDS PLANT

Peddadevulapally
Tripuraram Mandal
Nalgonda District, AP, Pin: 508 207

AP SRIK

AN PLANT

IDA Pydibheemavaram

Ransthal Mandal

Srikakulam District, AP, Pin: 532 409

Sector No. 28 & 34
Devurniipalavalasa Village
Ranastalam Mandal

Srikakulam District, AP, Pin: 532 409

FORMULATION MANUFACTURING
FACILITIES

FORMULATIONS HYDERABAD PLANT 1
Plot No. 146

IDA Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal
Medak District, AP, Pin: 502 320

s HYDERABAD PLANY 2
SYNo. 42,45, 4665 54

Bachupally, Quiubullapur Mandal
Ranga Reddy District, AP, Pin: 500 123

&TH

EATICINGS

FORMY ‘DERABAD PLANT 3
5Y No. 41
Bachupally, Qutubullapur Mandal

Ranga Reddy District, AP, Pin: 500 123

Plot No. 116, 116A & 126C & SY No. 157

FORMULATIONS YANAM PLANY
Ward-F Block-4, Adavipolam
Yanam, Pondicherry, Pin: 533 464

FORMULATICNS BADDI PLANT Y

Khol, Nalagarh

Solari; Nalagarh Road

Baddi, Himachal Pradesh; Pin: 173 205

Plot No. P1-P9, Phasg 111
Duvvada, VSEZ, Visakapatanam
AP Pin: 330046

LS
Village M:
Nalagarh Baddi Road, Baddi, District Solan
Himachal Pradesh, Pin: 173 205

uja Thana

FORMULATIONS SRIKAKULAM PLANT (58X}
Sector No, 9-13 & 17-20
Devunipalavalasa Village

Ranastalam Mandal

Srikakulam District, AP, Pin: 532 409

BIGLOGICS
Survey No. 47

Bachupally Village

Qutubullapur Mandal

Ranga Reddy District, AP, Pin: 500123

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT FACILITY

GRGANISA
Bachupally Village
Qutubullapur Mandal

Ranga Reddy District, AP, Pin: 500 123

AUSRIGERE DMSCOVERY TECHNOLOGIES
LIRHTED (ADTL), BANGALORE

30-40; KIADB Industrial Area,
Electronic City Phase 11, Hosur Road
Bangalore, Karnataka, Pin: 560 100

Bollaram Road, Miyapur
Hyderabad, AP, Pin: 500 049

TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT CENTRE

Bollaram Road, Miyapur
Hyderabad, AP, Pin: 500 049

By
Plot 314,

DA, Jeedimetla

Hyderabad, AP, Pin: 500 050

ROTAM REDDY
TACEUTICAL T L 2
N0.258, Huang Pu han;, (M} Road
Kunshan Development Zone

Jiangsu Province, P R. China 215 300

AP CUERNAVACA PLANY

STRIAS QUIMICAS FALCOR
Carretera Federal Cuernavaca-Cuautla
KM 4.5 CIVAC, Jiutepec, Morelos
Mexico 62578

ABGRATORIES (LK) LIMITED

6, Riverview Road, Beverly, East Yorkshire
HU 17 OLD, United Kingdom

Steanard Lane, Mirfield, West Yorkshire,
WF 14,8HZ, United Kingdom

410 Cambridge Science Park
Milton Road, Cambridge
CB4 0PE, United Kingdom

FORRM ORT PLANT
LOLFRIANA LLC
8800 Line Avenue, Shreveport

Louisiana 71106, USA

DR, RERDY'S LABORS

LATIHONS BRIZTOLPLA
HE YIS LABOQRATORIES

P.O. Box 9002, 201 Industrial Drive
Bristol, TN 37621-9002, USA

SHULATIONS MUIDDLEBURYL
DR REGDY S LABORATOHIES NEW YORK
1974 Route 145,

Middleburgh, New York 12122, USA

PPRAENT CENTRE LEIDEM

Zernikedreef 12, 2333 CL Leiden,
The Netherlands

TAREHOLDERS iNForMATIoN BEERR




FIVE YEARS AT A GLANCE

Revenues 116,266 3 69,441
Cost of revenues , 55687 3,43 32,941
Gross profit . ' 3 ‘

as a % of revenues

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development eﬁpenses
Impairment loss on intangible asseté
Impairment loss on Goodwill

Other Operating (income)expenses, net

Results froh’t oberating activites (2,834)

(4)

as a % of revenues

Finance income oaaue
Finance expenses ) (1,018
Finance (expe ' o 460
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of income tax L 104
Profit/(loss) before income tax 21676 18,466 12,443
Income tax {expense) a0 {4,204) (1,403} :
Profit/(loss) for the year 16,776 14,262
4

{3,996)
(1,172)
{5,168)

asa

% of revenues

- Basic
- Diluted
Dividend declared per share of 35 (%)

Cash and cash equivalents (net of bank overdraft) 5054 : 5,660

Operating waorking capital* 41,710 35,189 25,194 16,009 21,831
Total assets 142,369 119,477 95,005 80,330 83,792
Total long-term debt, excluding current portion SRBlS 16,37 5,271 5,385 10,132

Total stockholders’ equity ) , 73108 : / 45,996. /424915 42,045

ng activities 13162 8,(;)/09 13,226

Operati )
(6,998) (3,472)

Investing activities / i (’1,3,943},' (8,658)

Financing activities U3 ' 377) (5,307) (2,527)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 141 246 (114)
Expenditure on property, plant and equipmen{ & Intangible (11,6086) (4,283) (4,761)

(1) All figures are based on IFRS Financials
* Operating working capital= Trade receivables + inventories - trade payables

DR REDBY'S LABORATORIES LimiTen RTINS



KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

EBITDA/Turnover
Gross Margin/Turnover 54% 52% 53%
65% 60% 61%
26% 33% 30%

14% 13% 12%

- Globat Generics
- PSAl
PAT/Turnover®

Fixed Asset Turnover

Total Assets Turnover

Working Capital Days

Inventory Days 156 143 135
Debtors Days 72 69 56
Creditor Days
Net Deb¥/Equity 0.10 0.37
interest Coverage

Earnings per share | - 98 )
Book Value per share - 429 338 271 253 250
Dividend Payout : 07 02 02 18 -
Trailing Price/Earnings Ratio ' 171 19.6 28.7 189 15.8

(1) Fixed Asset Turnover: Net Sales / Avg Net Fixed Assets (Property, plant and equipment)

(2) Total Asset Turnover: Net Sales / Avg Nat Assets

(3) Working Capital Days: Inventory Days + Receivable Days -~ Payable Days

(4) Inventory Days: Average Inventory / Cost of Revenue * 365

(5) Receivable Day: Average Trade Receivables / Turnover » 365

(6) Payable Days: Average Trade Payables | Cost of Revenue * 365

(7) interest Cover Ratio: Farnings before interest and tax before exceptional items/finance expense
(8) Book Value per share: EquitytOutstanding equity shares

* PAT adjusted for non-cash impairment charge and other non-recurring costs

RATIO ANALYSIS Lok




 SECRETARIAL |
AUDIT REPORT

BB2Y or reonyss casoRaToRIES LiviTED BN

DR, REDDY'S LABORATORIES LIMITED
8-2-337, BANJARA HILLS, ROAD NO. 3
HYDERABAD 500 034

Thave examined the registers, records and
documents of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories
Limited (“the Company”) for the financial
yearended on 31.March 2013 according 1o
the provisions of--

% The Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules
made under that Act;

@ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the
Regulations and Bye-laws [ramed under that
Act;

# The Securities Contracts (Regulation)
Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the Rules made
under that Act;

i The following Regulations and Guidelines

prescribed underthe Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI
Act’):

The Securities and Exchange Board of

india (Substantial Acquisttion of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

# The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
© The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Employee Stock Option Scheme

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;
# The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;
The Bquity Listing Agreements with
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, Debt Listing
Agreements with National Stock Exchange of
india Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and Listed Company Manual of New
York Stock Exchange Inc,

Bl Based onmy examination andverification
of the registers, records and documents
produced tome-and according tothe
information and explanations given to
me by the Company, Lreport that the
Company has, in my opinion, complied
with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and the Rules made
undertheActandthe Memorandum and
Articles of Association ol the Company;
with regard 1o

a. maintenance of various statutory registers
and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

b. closure of the Register of Members/
Debenture hiolders;

¢. forms, returns, documents andresolutions
required to be filed with the Registrarof
Companiesand Central Government,

d.service of documents by the Company
onits Members, Debenture holders,
Debenture Trastees, Auditors and the
Registrar of Companies;

e. notice of Board meetings and Committee
meetings ol Directors;

{. the meetings of Directors and Committees
of Directors including pas
resolutions by circulation;

g, the 28th Aunual General Meeting held on
20 July 2012;

h. the Order of the Hon'ble High Court of
Andhra Pradesh with regard to Scheme of

ingof

Arrangement between the Company and
its members for issue of bonus debentures;

i. minutes of proceedings of General
meetings and of Board and its Committee
meetings;

i. approvals of the Members, the Board of

Directors, the Committees of Divectors
and government authorities, wherever
required;

k. constitution of the Board of Directors/
Committee(sy of Directors and
appointment, retirement and re-
appointment of Directors including the
Managing Director and Whole-time
Directors;




i

V.

<
S

<

.

payment of remuneration to the Directors
including the Managing Director and
Whole-time Directors; C.

.appointment and remuneration of

Auditors and Cost Auditors;

. transfers and transmissions of the d.

Company's shares and debentures,
issue and allotment of shares and issue
and delivery of original and duplicate
certificates of shares and debentures;

. payment of interest on debentures;

declaration and payment of dividends;

. transfer of certain amounts as required

under the Act to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund; 3}
borrowings and registration, modification

and satisfaction of charges;

investment of the Company’s funds

including inter corporate loans and
investments and loans to others;

giving guarantees in connection with

loans taken by subsidiaries and associate

companies;

form of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account under the Act; @
Board’s Report; a.

L contracts, common seal, registered office

and publication of name of the Company;

. generally, all other applicable provisions

of the Act and the Rules made under that
Act; and

. the Company has not accepted any

fixed deposits and hence provisions of

Sections 58A and 58AA and Rules framed
thereunder are not applicable to the b.
Company.

[urther reportthat:

. the Directors have complied with

the requirements as to disclosure of

interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholdings/debenture c
holdings and directorships in other

companies and interests in other entities;

. the Divectors have complied with the

disclosure requirements in respect of their
cligibility of appointment, their being
independent and compliance with the

Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for
Directors and Management Personnel;
the Company has obtained all necessary
approvalsunder the various provisions of
the Act; and

there was no prosecution initiated and no
fines or penalties were imposed during the
year underreview under the Companies
Act, SEBLAct, SCRA, Depositories Act,
Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations
and Guidelines framed under these Acts
against/on the Company, its Directors and
Officers.

[ further report that the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Depositories Act, 1996 and the Bye-laws
framed thereunder by the Depositories
with regard to dematerialisation/
rematerialisation of securities and
reconciliation of records of dematerialised
securities with all securities issued by the
Company.

I further report that:

the Company has complied with the
requirements under the Equity Listing
Agreements entered into with the
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, the
Debt Listing Agreements with National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
Listed Company Manual of New York
Stock Exchange Inc.;

the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
including the provisions with regard to
disclosures and maintenance of records
required under the Regulations;

the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Roard of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 including the
provisions with regard to disclosures and
maintenance of records required under
the Regulations;

d. the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and
Debenture Trust Deed with regard to the
disclosure under the Deed.

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICE NO. 5144
DATED 25 APRIL 2013

i
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DIRECTORS’

REPORT

FY2013 reprasents fiscal yoar 2012~13, from
1 Aprif 20712 to 31 March 2013, and analogously
for FY2012 and other such fabeled years

B0 on weopvs iasorarories tiviten B

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present
the 29th annual reportfor the year
ended 31 March 2013,

Table 1 gives the financial highlights of
the Company for FY2013 as compared to
previous financial year on Indian GAAP
standalone basis,

Your Directors are pleased to recomumend

a dividend of ¥15 on every equity share of

25 each (300%) for FY2013. The dividend,

if approved at the 29th Annual General

Meeting, will be paid to those shareholders

whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company as on 16 July 2013,
The dividend would be tax-free in the

hands of the shareholders.

The paid-up share capital of your Company
increased by T1.38 million in FY2013 due

to the allotment of 276,129 equity shares

on exercise of stock options by the eligible
employees under Dr, Reddy’s Employees
Stock Option Scheme, 2002 and Dr. Reddy’s
Employees ADR Stock Option Scheme, 2007,

The bonus non-convertible debentures
(NCDs) issued by the Company in FY2011
are listed on the Bombay Stock Bxchange
and the National Stock Exchange and rated
LAA+ by ICRA.

During FY2013, the second year’s interest
on these NCDs was paid on due date.

B AL (AT AT 818
A detailed report on the corporate
governance systems and practices of the
Company is given in a separate section of the

annual report 2012-13. Detailed information
for the shareholders is given in Additional

Shareholders” Information section,

A detailed report on the Management
Discussion and Analysis is provided as a
separate section in the annual report.

G RES T mErORY
A detailed Business Responsibility report
is given as a separate section in the annual

report.

The Company has 50 subsidiaries as on
31 March 2013.

During FY2013, the Company has
acquired 98.91% of the issued and
subscribed share capital of OctoPlus
N.V., Netherlands, an entity listed on the
Amsterdam stock exchange. OctoPlusisa

specialty pharmaceutical company focused
on the development and manufacture of
improved injectable pharmaceuticals based
on proprietary drug delivery technologies
that exhibit fewer side effects, improved
patient convenience and a better efficacy/
safety balance than existing therapies.
Subsequently, the shares of OctoPlus N.V.
were delisted from the Amsterdam stock
exchange w.e.f. 16 April 2013,

Further, subsidiaries of OctoPlus
N.V., namely OctoShare BV, OctoPlus
Development BV, OctoPlus Technologies BV,
OctoPlus Science BV, OctoPlus PolyActive.
Science BV and Chienna BV also become the
subsidiaties of the Company.

During FY2013, Reddy Pharmaceuticals
Hongkong Limited, Hongkong; Dr. Reddy's
Laboratories ILAC TICARET, Turkey; 000
Alfa, Russia; Trigenesis Therapeutics Ing.,
USA; and Dr, Reddy's Laboratories (Canada)
Inc., Canada ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company.




As per Section 212 of the Companies
Act, 1956, the Company is required to
attach the Directors’ Report, Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit and Loss of the
subsidiaries to the annual report.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India vide its circular
No.2/2011 dated 8 February 2011 has
provided an exemption to companies {rom
complying with Section 212, provided such
companies publish the audited consolidated
financial statements in their annual report.
Accordingly, the annual report 201213 does
not contain the financial statements of the
subsidiaries. The audited annual accounts
and related information of the subsidiaries,
where applicable, will be made available
forinspection during business hours at
our registered office in Hyderabad, India,
The same will also be published on the
Company's website, www.drreddys.com.

The members, if desire, may write to
the Company Secretary at Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories Limited, 8-2-337, Road No. 3,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500 034 to obtain
a copy of the financials of the subsidiary
companies.

The consolidated financial statements, in
terms of Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement
and prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standard 21 as specified in the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 also
forms a part of this annual report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

sy z

Total revenue
Profit before depreciation and tax
Depreciation

Profit before tax

Tax expense

5

Add: Surplus at the beginning of the year

Appropriations:
Proposed dividend on equity shares

Tax on proposed dividend

Credit of dividend distribution tax
Dividend of previous years (including tax)
Debenture Redemption Reserve

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance carried forward

On 15 March 2013, Dr. K Anji Reddy,
Founder Chairman of the Company, passed
away at Hyderabad. His mission in life was
to provide affordable medicines to millions
of patients worldwide while also innovating
for healthier life. Under his leadership, the
Company became a pioneer and trend setter
in the Indian pharmaceutical industry.

Dr. Reddyalso set-up the ‘Dr. Reddy’s
Institute of Life Sciences’ at Hyderabad,
which is a public-private partnership with
the Government of Andhra Pradesh for
carrying out cutting edge research in Life
Sciences. Critically aware of his responsibility
to society, Dr. Reddy in the last decade was
engaged in outcome based institutionalized
philanthropy that positively impacted the
lives of nearly 5 million underprivileged
citizens, mainly children and youth.

The Board places on record its enormous
appreciation for the contribution made by
Dr. K Anji Reddy for creating and growing
the Company.

Following the demise of Dr. K Anji
Reddy, Founder Chairman, the Board of
Directors, based on the recommendation
of the Nomination, Governance and
Remuneration Committee, has designated:
Mr. GV Prasad as Chairman and Chief

Executive Otficer of the Company; and

# Mr. Satish Reddy as Vice Chairman in
addition to his role of Managing Director and
Chief Operating Officer.

IN ¥ MILLION

68,215
0,660 15,603
3128 3,011
17,532 12,592
4y 3,468

e
36,049
48,704

obag

2,331
433 378
@ -
; 3

848

9

36,049

The above changes were effective
30 March 2013. The terms and conditions
like remuneration, balance tenure and
others relating to the appointment of
Mr. G V Prasad and Mr. Satish Reddy, as
approved by the shareholders at their annual
general meetings held on 21 July 2011 and
20 July 2012, respectively, remain the same.

The disclosure regarding change in
designations of Mr. G V Prasad, Chairman
and CEO and Mr. Satish Reddy, Vice
Chairman and Managing Director in this
section of annual report may also be regarded
as an abstract and memorandum of interest
of Directors under Section 302 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

As per Article 113 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Dr. Ashok S
Ganguly, Dr. J P Moreau and Ms. Kalpana
Morparia retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting
scheduled to be held on 31 July 2013 and
being eligible, seek re-appointment.

The brief profiles of Dr. Ashok S Ganguly,
Dr.J P Moreau and Ms. Kalpana Morparia
are given in the Corporate Governance
section of the annual report for reference of
the members,

i

o1,

The statutory auditors of the Company,

B SR & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

and have confirmed their eligibility and
willingness to accept office of the statutory
auditors for FY2014, if re-appointed. The
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
recommend the re-appointment of BSR &
Co. as statutory auditors of the Company for
FY2014 for shareholders” approval.

Pursuant to Section 223B of the Companies
Act, 1956, the Central Government has
prescribed an audit of cost accounting records
in respect of Pharmaceuticals business of the
Company.

Based on the recommendations of
the Audit Committee, and subject to the
approval of the Central Government, the
Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Sagar
& Associates as cost auditors of the Company
for FY2013. The cost audit report would be
filed with the Central Governmentas per
timeline.

The relevant cost audit reports for
FY2012 were filed within the due date on

‘DIRECTORS REPORT IEER
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27 February 2013, The due date for filing
these reports was 28 February 2013,

GECRETARIAL ASRET
A secretarial audit for FY2013 was carried out
by Dr, KR Chandratre; practicing Compaiy
Secretary. The secretarial atiditreport forms a
part of the annual report.

The said secretarial auditreport confiring
that the Company has complied with all
the applicable provisions of the:Companies
Act, 1956, Depositories Act, 1996, Equity
and Debt Listing Agreements with the Stock
Exchanges, Debenture Trust- Deed, Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956and all the
regulations of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) as applicable to the Company,
BI (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
and the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992,

including the

POMSIBILITY

In terms of Section 217 (2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, your Directors confirm
as under:

B In preparation of annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standardshave been
followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

FI Accounting policies have been selected
and applied consistently and judgments
and estimates made, are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
thestate olatfairs of the Company atthe
end of the financial year 201 2-13 and of
profit of the Company for that period;

Proper and sulficient care hasbeen taken
to maintain adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of
this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

Anpualaccourits have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Pursuant to the provisionsof Section
205A(5) of the Companies Act, 1956, the
declared dividends, which remained unpaid
or unclaimed for a period of seven years,
have been transferred by the Company

to the Investor Bducation and Protection
Fund (IEPF) established by the Central

Governmentpursuant to Section 205C of the
said Act:

EPTEEN

The details of stock optionsason

31 March 2013 underthe "Dr. Reddy's
Employees Stock Option Scheme, 20027

and the “Dr.Reddy’s Employees ADR Stock
Option Scherme, 20077, interms of Guideline
1 2ol the Securities and Bxchange Board

of India (Employee Stock Option Schieme
and Employee Stock Purehase Scheme)
Guidelines; 1999, as ametded, aresetoutin
the Apnexure 1 tothe Directors” Report.

ULARE-OF EM
Pursuarnt to the provisions.of Seciion

217 (2A ) ofthe Companies Act, 1956 read
with Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules; 1975, asamended, the names.and
otherparticulars of employeesare set out in
the Annexire 2 10 the Directors"Report.

AND

The particulars as prescribed under Section
217{1){ey ofthe Companies Act, 1956,
read with the Companies (Disclosure

of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out in the
Annexure 3 to the Directors’ Report.

Your Directors place on record thelir sincere
appreciation for the significant contribution
made by the employees through their
dedication, hard work and commitment
and the trust reposed on us by the medical
fraternity and the patients, We also
acknowledge the support and wise counsel
extended tous by theanalysts, bankers,
governmentagencies, shareholders and
mvestars at large Welook lotward fohaving
the same support in our endeavor to hielp
peoplelead healthier lives,

For Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PLACE HYDERABAD
DATET4-MAY 2013




ANNEXURE 1

Pursuant to the provisions of Guideline 12of the Securities.and ,Exchaﬂ,ge Board ol India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme), Guidelines, 1999, as amended, the details of stock options as on 31 Marchr2013 under the Dr. Reddy’s Employees Stock
Option Scheme, 2002 and the Dr. Reddy’s Employees ADR Stock Option Scheme, 2007.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES

Total Options granted 6,592,736

2 Pricing formula

3 Options vested as at
31 March 2013

4 Total Options exercised

w :

arising as a result of
exercise of options

Total Options lapsed

7 Variation of terms of
Options

Total number of shares

underlying equity shares on the date of grant

Dr. Reddy’s Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2002
provides for the grant of options in two categories:
Category A 505,939 stock aptions out of the total
of 4,349,102 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the
underlying equity shares on the date of grant; and

Category B 3,843,163 stock options out of the total
of 4,349,102 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to the par value of the underlying
equity shares (i.e., T5 per option).

The fair market value of a share on each grant date
falling under Category A above is defined as the
weighted average closing price of the Company’s
equity shares for 30 days prior to the grant, in the stock
exchange where there is highest trading volume during
that period.

71,296

2,223,468

2,223,468

3,674,009

1. Members of the Company approved the amendment
in Dr. Reddy's Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2002
at the Annual General Meeting held on 28 July 2004.
The amendment enabled the Company to grant Stock
Options in two categories of par value and fair market
value. Before this amendment, the Scheme provided for
grant of options at fair market value only.

2. Members of the Company further approved the
amendment in Dr. Reddy's Employees Stock Option
Scheme, 2002 at the Annual General Meeting held on
27 July 2005, The amendment enabled the Company to
grant options in the following categories:

Category A 300,000 stock options out of the total
of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the
sand

that period.

Dr. Reddy’s Employees ADR Stock Option Scheme, 2007
provides for the grant of options in two categories:

Category A 382,695 stock options out of the total
of 1,530,779 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the
underlying equity shares on the date of grant; and

- Category B 1,148,084 stock options out of the total

of 1,530,779 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to the par value of the underlying

aguity shares (i.e., T5 per option).

The fair market value of a share on each grant date
falling under Category A above is defined as the closing
price of the Company’s equity shares on the trading day
immediately preceding the date of grant, in the stock
exchange where there is highest trading volume during

4,328

281,111

281,111

148,959

1. Members of the Company approved the amendment
in Dr. Reddy's Employees ADR Stock Option Scheme,
2007, at the Annual General Meeting held on

22 July 2008, to exercise the right to recover from the
relevant employees, the fringe benefit tax, in respect

of options granted to or vested or exercised by the
eligible employees under provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961,

DIRECTORS REPORY B



[EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Category B 1,995,478 stock options out of the total
of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an
exercise price equal to-the parvalue-of the underlying
~equity shares (i.e., 25 per option).

3 Members of the Company further approved the
“amendment in Dr. Reddy's Emiployees Stock Option
Scheme, 2002, at the Annual General Mestingheld-on
22 July 2008, to exercise the right to recover from the
relevant employees, the fringe benefit tax, in respect
- of options granted-to or vested o exercised by the

eligible employees under provisions of the Income Tax

Act, 1961. Further, pursuant to changes in the work

levels in the organization structure of the Company,

the Members of the Company approved remaoving the
grades and designations prescribed in the scheme.

The Government of India has abolished fringe benefit
tax through the Finance Act, 2009, Under this Act the
fringe benefit tax payable by the employer as a result
of share based payments would be replaced by an
incomie tax payable by the employees as a "perquisite”
(as defined in the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961) based
on the value of the underlying share as on the date of
exercise of the eptions. Consequent to this abolishment
and in furtherance of the resolution passed by the
Company on 22 July 2008, management resolved to
absorb the consequent perquisite tax for the options
granted on or prior to 18 May 2008,

i o - !‘ H ' o i
8 Total;Money reg.tsfed by 162,988,514 %1 405,555
exercise of options

9 Total number of options
in force

695,259 98,608

Employee wise details of
options granted during
the year to:

i Senior managerial

Personnel e NaME. e
Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee Par Value 7,500 Dr. Raghav Chari Par Value 4,000
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty Par Value 5,000 N
Mr. Umang Vohra Par Value 5,000
Dr. Cartikeya Reddy Par Value 4,000
Dr. Ananthanaryanan Par Value 5,000
Mr./M V-Ramana Par Value 4,000
Mr. Samiran Das Par Value 4,000
Dr. Amit Biswas Par'\faéue 4,000

i Any other employee who
receives a grant ir any one
year of option amounting None None
10 5% or more of option
granted during that year.
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on EPS of the Company

stock

dentified employees

- who were granted

option, during any

one year, equal to or
exceeding 1% of the
issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the
Company at the time of
grant

None None

Diluted Earnings Per
Share (EPS) pursuant

1o issue of shares on
exercise of option
calculated in accordance
with Accounting
Standard (AS) 20
'Earnings Per Share’

37417

The difference between * The employee Compensation Cost on account of ESOPs in the financial year 2012-13 based on Intrinsic Value

the employee Method is T421 million. Had the Company used the Fair Value Method, the ESOP cost in the financial year would
compensation cost have been 2390 million, which would have a consequential impact on profit.

computed under Intrinsic

Value Method and the However, there would not have been any significant adverse effect on the Profit and EPS, on using fair value

employee compensation  method of accounting.
cost that shall have been

recognized if the

Company had used the

Fair Value Methods and

its impact on profits and

Weighted-average

exercise prices and on 31 March 2013 was T441 and ¥208 respectively.
weighted-average fair
values of options for Weighted average exercise price and weighted average fair value of the outstanding Par Value options as on

options whose exercise 31 March 2013 was 5 and ¥1,428 respectively.
price either equals or

exceeds or is less than

the market price of the

Description of the The Company has opted Intrinsic Value Method for accounting of Compensation Cost arising out of ESOPs.
method and significant However for disclosures in para 12 above the following assumptions have been used:

assumptions used during

the year to estimate the

fair values of options:

(i) Risk-free interest rate 8.08% - 8.34%

(i) Expected life 12 months to 48 months
(iiiy Expected volatility 18.22% - 30.34%

(iv) Expected dividends 0.81%

(v) The price of the 71,697.65

underlying share in
market at the time of
option grant
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BNNEXURE 2 i
formation required under Section 217(24) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Particulars ot Employees) Rules; 1976 and
forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

NAME OF THE EMPL DESIGNATION

GV Prasad 53 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 80,830,388
2 Satish Reddy 46 Vice-Chairman and Managing Director 79,652,644
3 Abhijit Mukherjee 55 President / 23,654,351
4 Dr. R Ananthnarayanan 48 President 20,252,164
5 . Saumen Chakraborty 52 President : / 18,889,200
6 Dr. Amit Biswas 53 Executive Vice President / 11,587,929
7 Samiran Das 53 Executive Vice President / 14,733,253
8 Dr. Cartikeya Reday 43 Senior Vice Fresident 14,023,251
9 K Ganesh 50 Senior Vice President 8,278,273
10 Dr. KV S Ram Rao 50 Senior Vice President 9,576,452
11 MV Ramana 45 Senior Vice President 13,689,105
12 Alok Mehrotra 45 Vice President 7515916
13 \' Atanu Roy 44 | Vice Presidém 7,458,670
14 Atul Dhavle 43 Vice President 7,101,520
15 - Dr. Harshal P Bhagwatwar 50 Vice President 7,752,434
16 K P Gopala Krishnan 56 Vice President 9,248,753
17 Dr. KVyas 55 Vice President 6,033 464
18 Kaushik Ray 41 Vice President 7,256,199
19 MV Narasimham 45 Vice President 6,412,284
20 - MVSMARaja 42 Vice President 8,041,413
21 Manoj Mehrotra 51 Vice President 8,168,715
22 Nichotés Cabpuccino* 61 Vice President ’3’5,145,737
23 PV Sankar Dass 51 Vice President 8,291,140
24 PYugandhar 41 Vice President 7,897,206
25  Prabhakaran B Nair 48 Vice f’residem 8,253,999
26 Rajeev Singh Raghuvanshi 48 \/icé President 7,384,777
27 Rajorshi Ganguli 42 Vice President 6,678,771
28  Raju Subramanyam 47 Vice President 9,,4“:9,523
29 . Dr Ravirgj Pillai 52 Vice President 7,844,461
30 - Sanjay Mahadeo Gade 48 Vice President 6,239,960
31 - Sanjay S Shetgar 44 Vice President 6,432,646
32 Singhai Sunil Chand 58 - Vice President 8,538,455
33 . Dr V Narayana Reddy 50 Vice President 7,011,746
34 -V V Parsuram 46 Vice President 6,506,393
35 Dr V Venkateswarlu 53 Vice President 8,136,673
36 - Dr Vilas Dahanukar 47 Vice President 8,180,747
37 - Zoher T Sihorwala 43 Vice President 6,992,663
38  Gautam Mohan Swaroop 35 Senior Director 6,738,980
39 Kacharu S Toshniwal 44 Senior Director 6,022,717
40 Poonam Raghuvanshi 49 Senior Director \ 7,093,920 ’
41 Swarninathan Nathan* 44 Ser'yicﬁ{* D’iréc{or ‘ 1400421 T
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EXPERIEN N E
QUALIFICATION YEARS ( CEMENT 1 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYMENT

B. Sc. (Chem. Eng.), M.S. (Indl. Admn.) 29 30.06.1990 = Promoter Director, Benzex Labs Pvt. Ltd.
B.Tech., M.S. (Medicinal Chemistry) ‘ 21 k 18.01.1993 Director, Globe Orgam(s Lid.
B.Tech. (Chem.) 33 ’ 1501;2'003 President, Atul Ltd.
B. Pharm.,y Ph.DD. 25 06.08.2010 Pres dent, Aurosourcp USA
B.Sc. (H), MBA-IIM 20 0207.2001  Vice President, Tecumseh Products India Pv. Ltd,
B"Tech‘ (Chem.), Masters (Polymer Sc.) Ph.D. - 24 12.07.2011 . Senior Vice President, Rehance Industries Ltd.
R."i’ech (Méch} - / / 31 15‘.0620?"1 Executive Director, Pepsico India -
B.Tech., M.S., Ph.D. 22 ' 20.'0‘7',20'(')4' Semou Engineer, Genetﬂch Inc.
B.’CQ’!’“ﬂ: ACA / / ' 25 14.10.2005 . Country Treasurer, Philips Hectromcs Ltd.
B. 1ech M.E Ph D. ' 20 03.04.2000 © Sr. Manager, Vam Organic Chemicals Ltd.
MEA 20 15.10.1992 -
~ MTech. 20 05.04.2011  Head-QA, Reckitt Benckiser India Ltd.
BTech,, MBA 9 18.07.2011  Country Manager, Hewlett Packard
B.E. 21 07.03.2011 = Deputy Manager, Du Pont Fibres Ltd.
M.Pharm., M.S., Ph.D. 20 02.08.2004 Assbciate Director, Wockhardt Ltd.
B.E,PG.D.PM. ‘ 30 16.04.2003 | General Manager, Sanmar Speciaflity Chemicals Lid.
M.S¢, PhiD. : 33 15.07:1994 - Post Doctoral Fellow, Universi;[y of California
: MUAG, MBA e ’ 21’ ’ k 07.07.2008 l Associate Vice President HR, Infosys Technologies Ltd.
B.Com, ACA, [mer’A/CS‘ - ' ’ 'ZZ A i2,06.ZOOO ] Exécutive Manager, Sanmar Group
M.Pharm. i ‘ 19 03.021 1 998 Product Manager, Intas Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
BTech PGDBM. 16 25.07.2007  Vice President, SRF Ltd. /
M.S., Ph.D., MBA 32 11.07.2011  CEQ, Pharmaceutical Intellectual Resource Services LLC
B.Sc, DMM / / 31 07.10.1991 . Product Executive, TDPL
MMS, 19 21.02.2001  Manager, i Lilly Ranbaxy Ltd.
M.Pharm., MBA 24 ’ 23,12,2008 | \/rce President, IPCA Laboratories Ltd.
- M.Pharm, Ph.D. 24 ) 22 04 Z(HQ H Dlrector Ranbaxy Research Lab.
B.5¢., PG.D.EM.IR. 18 1 08 2004 Semor Officer, Bharat Petroleur Corporation Ltd.
\ B. T@ch M.M. - ‘ - ‘ o 22 P \18.02,2008 H ?r‘ojéct Manager, E | Dupont India Pvt. Ltd.
M.S., Ph.D. 21 15,04,2010 Site Head, Perrigo Laboratories
M. Tech. 25 18.07.2011 Dire(ztor‘, Plizer Pharmaﬁeutical India Pvt. Ltd.
M.Sc. 23 16.12.2002 - Head-QA, Cipla Ltd. /
M.Pharm. - B 35 ' 1902:20'01 ' Ger\éra! Manager, §ar)baxy Laboratories Ltd.
M.A., Ph.D. / 26 01.03.1990  APO, Novapon Lid. /
ACA, PG Diploma, AICWA 25 06.12.2000 © Senior Manager, Tecumseh Products India Pvt. Ltd.
M. Pharm., Ph.D. ‘ / 28 17.08.2005 - Principal & Professor, Kakatiya University
M.Pharm., Ph.D. : 19 12.06,2003 Senior Principal Scierﬁist, Scherihg Plough
M. Pharm. R R i ’19 i o1 D4 2008 \/’ice ’Prevsidem, Glenmark Pharmaceutical Ltd.
' MBA - v E ' ' " ' '01 11.2011  Assodate Principal, McKinsey & Company, India
B.Tech. 22 05,04.2007 . General Manager, Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
 M.Pharm, Ph.D. | 20 13.05.2010 Director, Ranbaxy Research Lab
 BTech,, ME, MBA 19 02.09.2011  Senior Director, El Lily and Co.
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NAME OF THE EMPLOYEE 2 DESIGNATION GROSS REMUNERATION (%)

Late Dr. K Anji Reddy . Chairman 113,314,502
Umang Vohra g Executive Vice President 12,920,886
 Alok Sonig* 41 SeniorVicePresident 17,365,545
DrJuliusAnthony Vaz > Semox; Vice Presideht ‘ 3137462
46 Ritha Chandrachud 49 Senior Vice President 2,648,443
47 Milind R Kulkarni* 51 Vice President 3,699,533
48 - Vinod Kumar Trivedi* 53 Vice President 2,648,824
49 Padmanabhan Mani* 48 Vice President 1,547,159
50 - Dr. Sanjay Chaturvedi 43 " Vice President 6,190,492
51 N Thyagarajan 62 Senior Director 4,616,988
52 Vinayak Nerurkar 48 Senior Director 2,898,414
53 MR Syam Sundar 47 Director 1,844,082
54 Sanjay C Wagh 40 Director 1,361,104
55 Tamal Raha 43 Director 1,296,855

W Ajl the above employments are contractual.

@ i, GV Prasad and Mr. Satish Reddy are relatives within the meaning of Section 6 of the Companies Act, 1956,

@ Late Dr. K Anji Reddy, Mr. G V Prasad and Mr. Satish Reddy are also efigible for commission on the net profits of the Company. The commission has been inciuded in the remuneration
specified above.

* Includles one time payment.

AMNNEXURE 3
FORM FOR DISCLOS

ARG WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION

WL

Purchased
Unit 218,708,583
Total amount () 908,082,508
Rate / unit (%)

Unit 44,386,029
Units per ltr. of diesel oll 356
Rate / unit (3) 13.56

Quantity (tonnes)
Total Cost ()

Average rate (1)

Quantity (K Lts.)
Total Cost ()

Rate / unit (3)

277,044,783
40,334

EXPENDITURE ON R&D

Capital & million) 391
Recurring (& million) 6,509
Total (% millior) )
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QUALIFICATION

B.Sc. (Tech.), Ph.D.
B.E, MB.A.
B.E., MBA
M.B.B.S.,, M.D.
B.Sc., M.M.S.
B.E.

B.Tech.
AICWA, ACA
M.Sc., Ph.D.
B.Tech., PGDM
M.5¢c., Ph.D.
M.Pharm.
M.Pharm.
M.S¢., Ph.D.

Specific areas in which Research and
Development (R&D) activities were
carried out by the Company are:

Gur research and development activities can
be classified into several categories, which
run parallel to the activities in our principal
areas of operations:

% Global Generics, where our research

and development activities are directed at

the development of product formulations,
process validation, bioequivalence testing
and other data needed to develop the drugs
that are equivalent to brand name products
for sale in the emerging markets or whose
patents and regulatory exclusivity periods
have expired or are nearing expiration in the
highly regulated markets of the United States
and Europe. Global Generics also include

our biologics business, where research and
development activities are directed at the
development of biologics products for the
emerging as well as highly regulated markets.
Our new biologics research and development
facility caters to the highest development
standards, including cGMP, Good Laboratory
Practices and bio-safety level ITA

# Pharmaceutical Services and Active
Ingredients, where our research and
development activities concentrate on
development of chemical processes for

EXPERIENCE INT DATE OF
YEARS | COMMENCEMENT

24021984

18 18.02.2002

18 11.06.2012
23 01.07.2009
27 14.07.2003
27 27.09.2012
32 26.12.2012
22 22.01.2013
21 03.05.2010
42 13.09.2007
2 26.07.2004
24 07.05.1999
17 13.11.2006
13 19.09.2005

PARTICULARS OF LAST EMPLOYMENT

Managing Director, Standard Organics Ltd,

Manager, Pepsico, India

Managing Director, Bristol Myers Squibb

Medical Director, Novo Nordisk Pharma India Ltd.
Sr. Director, Fulford (India) Ltd.

Vice President, Emcure Pharmaceutical Ltd.
Senior Vice President, Jubilant Life Sciences Ltd.
Assistant Vice President, VodafoneNWest Ltd.
General Manager, Dow Advanced Materials Division
Head-Projects, Jubilant Organosys Ltd.

Manager, Wallis Labs Ltd.

Deputy Manager, Spic Pﬁarma Ltd.

Research Scientist, Lupin Ltd.

Senior Scientist, intas Biopharma Ltd.

the synthesis of active pharmaceutical
ingredients and intermediates (“"APT") for
use in our Global Generics segment and

for sales in the emerging and developed
markets to third parties. Our research and
development activities also support our
custom pharmaceutical services business
and enable us to leverage the strength of

our process chemistry and finished dosage
development expertise to target innovator as
well as emerging pharmaceutical companies.
The research and development is directed
towards providing services to support the
entire pharmaceutical value chain—from
discovery all the way to the market

¥ Proprietary Products, where we are
actively pursuing discovery and development
of new molecules, sometimes referred to
as “New Chemical Entity” or “NCEs” and
Ditferentiated Formulations. Our research
programs focus on the following therapeutic
areas:
Pain
Anti-infectives
Dermatology

We are focusing on an integrated
research strategy to build a coherent pipeline
of New Chemical Entities and Differentiated
Formulations with critical mass and
demonstrate repeated success in the chosen
therapeutic area.
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Benefits derived as aresult of
the R&D
i Development of new products
' Modification of existing manufacturing
processes to achieve savings in cost of
production
Modification of existing manufacturing
processes to reduce the time cycle
! Indian patents and US patents filings
for protection of Intellectual Property
generated during R&ED

Future plan of action
Commercialisation of new products for
which the products are under trials at
development stage. Several new products
have been identified after a thorough
study of the market and the processes

to manufacture these products will be
developed in the R&D lab.

Expenditure on R&D
Expenditure on R&D is given in Table 2.

GY ABSORPTION, AT
£ MENOVATION

Table 3 contains the details of technology
absorption, adaptation and innovation.

FORM C

Please refer information given in the note
1os. 2.33 and 2.34~Notes to financial
statements.

B or wivoys LasoRATOl

1

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION éNEi INNOVATION

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology
absorption, adaptation and innovation

Benefits derived as a result of the above
efforts; e.g., product improvement, cost
reduction, product development, import
substitution, etc.

in case of imported technology (imported
during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following
information may be furnished:

a) Technalogy imported

b) Year of import

¢) Has technology been fully absorbed

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has
not taken place, reasons therefore and future
plans of action.

The Company has.a full-fledged R&D division
continuously engaged in research onnew
products and on process development

of existing products. The Company has
developed indigenous technology in respect
of the.products manufactured by it.

As soon as the technology is developed for
a product, it is tested in a Pilot Plant and
thereafter commercial production is taken
up. Itis our philosophy to continuously
upgrade the technology.

Product guality improvements, cost
reduction, product development, import
substitution etc. The continuous upgradation
and adoption of new technology has
benefited the Company in the form of
better production process, better yields,
better guality of the end product and cost
reduction.

No imported technology




% v
s (W;;a\v‘; W‘Mv/

ew\mw«\»m (\‘ V'W i

& L v%ayfw‘i”rm“‘
o ‘0 Ww”uw xwr i ,,})rf}m,:ru,\m
¥ S H' \ m i
w’ o . o w‘mi W«W o
s WMW «W i
\”’“ ‘@ s it i S
o .I\“Ml‘l,‘\ “”
b o Wv

Sl

.

i i

o M«‘\?,,’Q\A“‘N m, 7“

"”(f‘“'gx L ‘Uu

4 Ve

M \,ze‘uwwm

. WI;W ,'ﬁ\ s

s

M%\‘*‘Mﬂ%

kol
L M’Y”w

\\wzﬁ !
. .

i

?%

.
rm\ré«”/ v
i W 4 o

oty
xv g on’
» ;s/ W’ W’ W‘ W

‘z

kx

i
i W W’ 1!1
o

. \WW '
>e« w L W .
% W\” i !

\\w})ﬂ

e&}
f S ; e n ;/ W
MM\‘Y 3
\\‘M“ (m‘.%‘ e

o wA
i ,v\ »

(} ”

"’>7

i /»‘

i w

CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

L ;5 /

i Sl

i MH uo\\\.@w i /M‘ 0
,(, ‘,’" %M, ) M’yv"’(’ \?«V“‘/Y';«\* rf’»aY'

, S ‘z"
. u}j,@‘?’ yﬁ” @ W g

; i
o Wz‘ w ,
il ’ /
o \,ksg\'Www»M ) s
it . Y/ . ﬂ M
L 3?'/ Ay m,v% v "” . /
i ! ~ 7 ‘\\/er ity i ’@\‘%’ﬁw!ﬁ’w "« N»W Y’W W ’
o : . ” mm o W\N‘”W’

o ‘A;,‘uu)ff\“ rﬁWﬂ’" W \»’3,‘ '(/WY m
07“ m; M*s G G

4 M /@ ’r
i

o
%1

e WW
o M A.r
§l‘ mf,ﬂ%m‘ %W‘ ,,«

s m w,

A ',X)’\%M c,\(r\»f/;/g'flﬂ pi .
o e L
ey ’\¢ bl
i L i ,,% g
i ol M? i 'W i
,,\\rw“r’wj{\‘,w“" o o c G

o
A

it ,47:\’%% \”(: m}%/\ ’
\ﬁ s 'w(\’v,“,““\ \,W/’ ‘ﬂ;b]’«/\;‘ i

- .

. i G /f" iy vf W‘

¢ w{w«% ! ,?5,( 4 A\r . ’\u s} \’& ,ﬂ,» ,uu ﬁ'\&‘

. . ~ ‘,s,,“:»ew“W' L
MO “‘/«‘M’:M gsﬁy i | wﬂ“ng\u . Mf i
w\ i o

L
’A’Mf@*m ,/\ M ;’«*}W
: . c>

o

: L /

A ) e

v ‘m/ o w
9{@,m‘h“ W ”W“’

M“

i

! (m, i NNM

o ({f"w,% »,N/@*&Mv S
'

’\“ “‘s’ ; vﬁ,

Sl M i L
G *“ L (wm
\ ”mﬂ” ,{;y “M ‘“ W‘W
£ » e
i HWV’ ; \A’/ i : '
w (Z“,:mefx‘w /ﬂk \ s/ M “/ '
o o ,z’/ i

| M’m i N
K* L MN Y

’, ’M"“

(/ Y
w»
f{?’ e

i i
o %‘ ” ) A
;f:*“auv Mﬁ“a f’w

>
/) W»’%* ) Mﬂm M

M »5’”
,(V(

;« e
md"‘\,;\
i Al
s (m mn\ i
k{, W i ‘fn i W)ﬂ‘?’
- -

94 : o i

o i
M’: 4‘« ;
| \»\,N,V o
a t‘)'\ 2

,N
P ‘W /
0‘%&’@5{& G 'W”M w; (

f:/

o
i
v v e . i W'w
i . f /. / ey o (u w i
»»Mx i i sé, ‘ i
W W W %ﬁ ﬂ\f \s
,,‘ s
M

M/M,,‘

w
‘/ \v% i M i

ww

W}w»
W

M "
o

MV
o
. wfj}?% w{m‘ . w’\
% WVWY WW' kv
m,% \M w',y\ i
/W w‘ M/ o “"m’,« i
o i
g T ‘M i
.«‘”@w,'&” ,M e 'w,, V i i e

Sy

i s' "'5'»?? i
i s w“ o )

i /W",?;M«f iy e ¢ ‘;;fmjd f’v

\‘,‘A‘yx/\p.\\wtfﬂ o e ) L

)./\ w%j’b"h i w M

o ’,w"‘\‘ S (»’r"

il "vi"i{\?‘/‘»“ }W’ ?:f o f
{?’f (

i

’ W
G
ek : KM i Mw«'\w\\ e W \‘M v,\fdi/‘ 773(
W g ’x’* www" w% G
’M o e 7 ‘””“ ’W"“’ W/)w ﬁywl»
’r“ SR S
W v"{j,«, )1w M\“

,/M,,\
(\” e

e «“ o i
M/\,ﬁ‘f’ :




To the Members of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of D Reddy's Laboratories Limited (“the: Company”) which compii he balance
sheet as at 31 March 2013, the statement of profit andloss and the cash flow statement [or the year then-ended and a summary ‘of significant
accounting policies-and other explanatory informatio.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and-{air view of-the financial position; finaricial
performance and cash flows of the Company in‘accordance with the Accounting Stanidards referred to-in-subssection (3C) of Section 211 of
the preparation and presentation of the financial statensents thai give a true and fair view and-are free from material misstatement, whether
dueé to fraud or error.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibilify is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
tlie Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we cotnply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements: The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finandial staterents, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and faic
presentation of the finandial statemerits i order to design audit procedures that are appropriaté in the drcimstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabileness of the accounting estimates made by Management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statenients:

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a-basis for ouraudit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to'the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the informaton
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
it fndia: L B o R

(a} in‘thecase of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2013;

(b) - in the case of the statement of profic.and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date;:and

(¢) in the case of the cash flow staternent, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. “As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”), as-amended, issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statcruent on the matters specified in-paragraphs 4 and-5
of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section-227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) - we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose
of ouraudit;

(by - in oir opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as-appears from our ¢xamination
of those books;

(¢} the balance sheet, the statement ol profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(dy in our opinion, the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement comply with the Accounting Standards
referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable; and

(e} on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2013, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on 31 March 2013, from-being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) -of Section 274 of the Compariies Act, 1956,

forB SR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W.

Natrajh Ramakrishna
Parter

Membership No.: 032815
Place : Hyderabad

Date 14 May: 2013




The Annexure referred to in the auditors’ report to the members of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

We report that:

i (a)

ili. (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
The Company has a regular programne of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased
manner over a period of 3 years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going concern assumption.

Inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties have been physically verified by the management during
the year. In our opinjon the frequency of such verification is reasonable. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained,

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records.

The Company has granted loans to ten subsidiary companies (of which 4 loans are interest free) covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximuwm amount outstanding during the year was ¥ 6,254 millions and the
year-end balance of such loans was ¥ 5,549 millions.

In:our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans have been granted to companies listed in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

In the case of loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under Section 301, where stipulations have been
made; the borrowers have ‘been regular in repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and in the payment of interest, wherever
applicable,

There is no overdue amount of more than ¥ 1 lakh in respect of loans granted to any of the companies, firms or other parties listed
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not taken loans secured or unsecured from any companies, firms and other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

tv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and having regard to the explanation that purchases

of certain items of inventories are for the Company’s specialized requirements and similarly certain goods sold are for the specialized

requirements of the buyers and suitable alternative sources are not available to obtain comparable quotations, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of inventories
and fixed assets and with regard to the sale of goods and services. We have not observed any major weakness in the internal control
system during the course of the audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred
to in Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts and
arrangements referred to in point (a) above and exceeding the value of ¥ 5 lakh with any party during the year, have been made
at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time except for the purchases of certain
items of inventories which are for Company’s specialized requirements and similarly for sale of certain goods for the specialized
requirements of the buyers and for which suitable alternative sources are not available to obtain comparable quotations. However,
on the basis of information and explanations provided, the same appear reasonable.

vi. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 584, Section 58AA or other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under/the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (as applicable) with regard to deposits accepted from the public. Accordingly, there have been no

proceedings before the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal (as applicable) or Reserve Bank of India or any Court
or any other Tribunal in this matter and no order has been passed by any of the aforesaid authorities.

vil. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.




xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVIL

xXVii.

XViii.

XIX.

XX,

xxi.

We have broadly reviewed the books of-account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government
for maintenance of cost records under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, and are of the opinion that prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
amounts deducted/acerued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees State Tnsurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs duty,

Excise duty and othef material statafory dues have been generally regulatly deposited during the year by the Company with the

appropriate authorities.

(h) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Emplovees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Excise
duty and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2013 for a period of more than six months from the date
they becarne pavable.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues set out in Appendix - L in.respect.of Income tax, Sales tax,
Service tax, Customs duty and Excise duty have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes.

5 during the financial

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash los
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
its bankers or to any financial institutions or to debenture holders.

The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

I our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a chit fund/nidhi/mutual fund/

society.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and

other investments. Accordingly, clause 4{xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions on which the Company has
given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

i our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Cornpany did not have any term loans during the

year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we are
of the opinion that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long term investment.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies, firms or parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,

‘h 2011, the Company had issued unsecured debentures in accordance with the scheme of arrangement

During the year ended 31 Ma

approved by the High Court of Andhra Pradesh, India. Accordingly, no security or charge in respect of such debentures has been

created.
During the year, the Company has not raised any money through public issue.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported

during the course of our audit.

forB 8 R & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna
FPartner
Membership No.: 032815

Place : Hyderabad
D14 May 2013
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S’harehb’!{iergf funds
Share capi‘ta%ﬁ

Reserves and surplus

Non current ﬁébiiities -

Long term borrowings

Deferred tax liahilities, net

Other long term labilities

Long term provisi

iabiliti
Short term borrowings

o
. ﬁ\ge

.

o

8
66,330

Trade payables
Other current liabilities

Short term provisions

Non current assets

Fixed assets

Tangible assets
Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress

Non current investments

Long term |

Other non ¢

Current assets

Current investments

Inventories

Trade. receivables
Cash and bank balances
Short term yioa’ns and advances

Other current asset

Significant accounting policies

Notes to financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBS R & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W
Natrajh Ramakrishna

Partner

Membership No.: 032815

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 14 May 2013

ANNUAL REPO
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212 19,435
213 8,490
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

G V Prasad Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
K Satish Reddy Vice Chairman & Managing Director
Saumen Chakraborty President & Chief Financial Officer

Sandeep Poddar Company Secretary




ALL AMOUNTS ININDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE

WWX%
. )5(

s

Sales, gross
Less: Excise duty

Sales, net

.

»
.

L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 |

OTHERWISE STATED

Service income
License fees

Other operating revenue

Revenue from operations

Other income
Total revenue

Cost of material consumed (including packing material consumed)

68,215

Purchase of stock-in ade (traded goods)

Changes in inventories of finished goads, work-in<progress and stock-ir-trade

Conversion charges

3,076

218

(1,048}

Excie duty

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense

Research and development

505

534

219

8661

2.20

636

3011

Other expenses

5,813

Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of long-term investements

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax

Exceptional items

P{ofit ‘befarg extraordina / items and fax

Extraordinary ftems
Profit before tax

Income taxes

152
1,925

55,623

2592

12,592

Current tax expense

’ ’Qe.ef_e_rre\c} tax expense / (‘benefiit)

12,592

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic - Par value ¥ 5/- per share

Diluted - Par value T 5/- per share
Number of shares used in computing earning per share

Basic - Par valugj_S}/:per sharg

Diluted - Par value ¥ 5/- per srh,;";re“ »

169,470,729

Significant accounting policies

Notes to financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBS R & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W
Natrajh Ramakrishna

Partner

Membership No.: 032815

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 14 May 2013

G V Prasad

K Satish Reddy
Saumen Chakraborty
Sandeep Poddar

170,331,942

tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Vice Chairman & Managing Director
President & Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary




nents, net of reversat

Provision for inventory obsol
Provision for doubtful debts, net
Provision for doubtful advances, net
Operating cash flows before working capital changes

irade paye L o
other assets and Habilities, net

units
and jointventure
ven toy/repaid by subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

; 133

Proceeds from issue of share capital
Repayment of long term borrowings
- rm borrowings

it term borrowings -
hort term borrowings

Nez,in';rease / (decrease) in cash and cast ivalents

at the beginning of the year (refer note 2,13}
n cash and cash equivalents

A i

As per our report of even date attac

FOR THE YEAR ENI

21 MARC

103
87
21,404
(1,418)
(3,536

(7,069)
C(13,704)

forB 8 R & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accouniants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Natrajh Ramalkrishna G-V Prasad
Partner ¥ Satish Reddy
Membership No.: 032815

Place : Hyderabad Sandeep Poddar

Date @ 14 May 2013

Saumen Chakraborty

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Vice Chainman:& Managing Director
president & Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary




ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

i1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited (“DRL” or “the Company”) have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). IGAAP comprises accounting standards notified by the Central Government of India under Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956,
other pronouncements of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange

Board of India (SEBI). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees rounded off to the nearest million.

The preparation of the finandcial staternents in conformity with IGAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent fiabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Examples of such
estimates include estimation of useful life of tangible and intangible assets, assessment of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets, provision for obligations relating to
employees, provisions against litigations and impairment of assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Al the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule
Vi to the Companies Act, 1956,

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

a)  itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
by itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢ itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d)  itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a)  itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

by itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢ s due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d)  the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could,

at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include the current portion of non current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/liabilities are classified as non current.

Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated deprediation. The cost of fixed assets includes non refundable taxes, duties, freight and

other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the respective assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended

use are capitalised. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed

standards of performance.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under long term loans and advances. Cost of assets not ready

for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or based on the useful

ts are

lite of the assets as estimated by Management, whichever is higher. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the as:
sold or disposed. Individual assets costing less than ¥ 5,000/~ are depreciated in full in the year of acquisition. Assets acquired on finance leases are depreciated over the
period of the lease agreement or the useful life whichever is shorter. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful life, or the remaining period of

lease, whichever is shorter.




_Buildings
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Laboratory equipment - St 15
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Gains of losses from disposal of tangible fixed assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Fd

intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the

enterprise from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure in making the asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets are amortised on a systematic basis over the best estimate of their useful fives, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company-for its

use.

The Management estimates the useful lives for the various intangible assets as follows:

Technical k
Copyrights and Patents {including marketing / distribution rights) 3101

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Gains or losses arising from the disposal of

intangible assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

fnvestments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than 12 months from the date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All other

investments are classified as non current investments.
Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of investment.

Non current investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in vaiue, determined separately for each individual investment. The reduction in the
carrying amount is reversad when there is a rise in the value of the investment or if the reasons for the reduction no longer exist. Any reduction in the carrying amount and

any reversal in such reductions are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventaries comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of all categories of inventory is determined using weighted-average cost method.

Expenditure on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and uriderstaniding Is recognized as éxpense in the

statement of profit and loss when incurred.

| ANNUAL REPORT




ALL AMOUNTS INTNDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

BT 10 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. Development expenditure is capitalized
only if:

. development costs can be measured reliably;

- the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;

© future economic benefits are probable; and

® the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and has the ability to use or sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred on fixed assets used for research and development is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policy of the Company.

Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the projected unit credit method and spread over the period during
which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees services, consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The long term obligations are measured at present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at rates reflecting the yields on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Company's obligations. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

All actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to profit or loss as and when the services are received from the employees.

Compensated leave of absence

The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized
compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per Company policy. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences
in the pericd in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlernent. The measurement of such obligation is based on actuarial valuation as at the

balance sheet date carried out by a qualified actuary.

Employee stock option schemes

I accordance with the SEBI guidelines, the cost is calculated based on intrinsic value method i.e. the excess of the market price of shares, at the date prior to the day of

grant of options under the Employee stock option schemes, over the exercise price is treated as employee compensation and amortised over the vesting period.

B eeggiy Car vy v arief Bk

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency

transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated using the foreign exchange rates as at the balance sheet date.
The resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non monetary assets and liabilities are carried at the rates prevailing on the date of

transaction.

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the Company's net investment in a non integral foreign operation are accumulated in
a foreign currency translation reserve in the Company's financial statements. Such exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the event of

disposal of the net investment.

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts, option contracts and swap contracts (derivatives) to mitigate its risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

and does not use them for trading or speculative purposes.

The prermiurm or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of the contract. The exchange difference is calculated and

recorded in accordance with AS-11 (revised) in the statement of profit and loss. The changes in the fair value of foreign currency option and swap contracts are recognised

in the statement of profit and loss as they arise. Fair value of such option and swap contracts is determined based on the appropriate valuation technigues considering

the terms of the contract.




ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE GTHERWISE STATED

© 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to ICAI Announcement “Accounting for Derivatives” on the early adoption of Accounting Standard AS-30 7 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
the Company has adopted the Standard, to the extent that the adoption does nat conflict with existing mandatory accounting standards and other authoritative

pronouncements, Company law and other regulatory requirements

Cash flow hedges

ign currency risk associated with highi

The Company classifies its derivative contracts that hedge fi

them at fair value. The effective portion of such cash flow hadges is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company’s “hedging

effective portion is imms

the statement of profit and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions. The
in the statement of profiz and loss.

s hedging nstruments for the hec

uch as foreign currency borrowings from bank

The Company also designates certain non derivative financial liabilities, s

surement gain/ioss

currency risk associated with highly probable forecasted transactions and, accordingly, applies cash flow hedge accounting for such relationships. R

on such non derivative financial fiabilities is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company’s “hedging reserve”, and re-classified in the statement of profit

rrence of the forecasted transactions.

and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occ

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, gets expired or is sold, terminated or exercised before the occurrence of the forecasted
2rve continues (o

transaction, the hedge accounting on such transaction is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in hedging re
cur, the balance in hedging reserve is recogn

d immediately

rernain there until the forecasted transaction occurs, If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected 10 0

in the statement of profit and loss.

Sale of goods

ferred to customers. Revenu

om domestic sales

It

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership of products are trar

of active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates is recognized on delivery of products to custorers from U ctories of the Company. Revenue from domestic sa

of formulation products is recognized upon delivery of products ta stockists by clearin and forwarding agents of the Company. Revenue es is racognized
P C f Y g pany g

sd 1o the customers, which is based upon the terms of the applicable conty

when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of products are trans

Revenue from product sales is net of returns, sales tax and applicable trade discounts and allowances.

Service Income
achieved,

Service income is recogrised as per the terms of contracts with customers when the related services are performe

License fee
srformance obligations

The Company enters into certain dossier sales, licensing and supply arrangements with various parties. Some of these arrangerments include certe

by the Company. Revenue from such arrangements is recognized in the period in which the Company completes all its performance obligations.

Dividend and interest income

ished. Income from interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing secun

Dividend income is recognised when the unconditional right to receive the

is recognised on the time proportionate method

Export entitlements

the terms of the scheme is

Export entitlements are recagnised as reduction from cost of material consumed when the right (o recesve Cre

rolovant e

of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current tax

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations appiicable to the Company.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable incomie for the period, The deferred tax ¢

arge of

s are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or as
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¢ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation

or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets, Deferred tax consequences of timing differences
that originate in the tax holiday period and reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised in the period in which the timing differences originate. Timing differences
that originate and reverse within the tax holiday period are not considered for deferred tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may
bhe) 1o be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current

tax.

The basic earnings per share ("EPS”} is computed by dividing the profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
4 f ¥ Y g i $ ¢

year, For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit after tax for the year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are

justed for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have

shares have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actuatly issued at fair value (i.e. the

adl potential equit

average market value of the outstanding shares).

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resouices embodying economic

wefits will be required to se

> the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance

sheet date. Provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Sales returns

The Company accounts for sales returns by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance

is based on the Company's estimate of expected sales returns. The estimate of sales returns is determined primarily by the Company’s historical experience in the markets

in which the Company eperates,

Contingencies

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic

benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the

recoverable amount of the asset

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets (Cash Generating Unit or CGUJ that generates cash inflows from

continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or

f such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying

amount is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet

date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset Is reflected at the recoverable

amount subject to a maximum of amortised historical cost

The lease ar fied as either a finance lease or an operating lease, at the inception of the lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangermnent.

wgement is ¢l
Finance leases

Afinance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset. A finance lease is recognized as an asset and a liability at the
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Initial direct.costs, ifany, are also capitalized
and, subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Minimur-lease payments made under
finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease

term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases
Other leases are operating leases, and the leased assets are not recognized on the Company’s balance sheet. Paymenits made under operating leases are recognized in the

statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
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BeatE 20 NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Authorised -
240,000,000 (previous year: 240,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 5/ each

ssued
169,836,675 (previous year: 169,560,546) equity shares of T 5/- each fully paid-up

’SLyzbs'e:ribed aﬁd fufi§ ééid-tié - ) B
169,836,475 (previous year: 169,560,346) equity shares of T 5/- each fully paid-up
hare capital (@)

9
.

i i
?%i L A5 AT
. . )

31 MARCH 2013

NO. OF EQUITY
 SHARES

e
.
.

AMOUNT

outstandin

Add: Share ‘.sSLJgd duriv‘fg thg year = . i o ) 307,614
169,560,346

(b) - Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 5/ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders is
T 15/- (31 March 2012: X13.75/-). The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

NO. OF EQUITY % QF EQUITY
SHARES HELD SHARES H

Dr. Reddy’s Holdings Limited

First State Investments Management (UK) Limited, First State Investments Internati
imited and their associates

Life Insurance Corporation of India and its associates 655 s 11,439,458 6.75

466,942 0.28

{d) 695,259 (previous year : 654,156) stock options are outstanding to be issued by the Company on exercise of the vested stock options in accordance with the terms of
exercise under the "Dr. Reddy's Employees Stock Option Plan, 20027 and 98,608 (previous year © 117,899) stock options are outstanding to be issued by the Company on
exercise of the vested stock options in accordance with the terms of exercise under the "Dr. Reddy’s Employees ADR Stock Option Plan 2007

{e) Represents 200 {previous year: 200} equity shares of ¥ 5/- each, amount paid-up ¥ 500/- (rounded off in millions in the note above) forfeited due to non-payment of
allotment money.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital reserve
Balance at the-beginning of the v

Movemernt during the vea

Securities premium account

Bal lance at tl
Ada Aadntlon(

beginning « of the year

23 On exercise of er npi@yo@ slock ()pimnc

ring the

Employee stock optfons outstandmg

Patanre

Add : Amom/at on du mq 1h<‘ y@ua nef m‘ forfeiture
Less : Options exercised during the year

Generai reserve

Balance at the beq'vmmu of ihe year

Add Transferred from surplus

Forergn currency translatmn reserve {a}

at 1he beginnit

Balance 1 | of the year

Movement during the year

Hedging reserve

Balance at the beom of the year

Movement during ’the year

Debenture redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Swplus
Balance at if tihe beginning of the year

Add Cunem year profit

Amount available for agp}‘opriatio:’\.

: Appropr

Proposed dw.dord on @qu»l\/ shares

Tax on p;oposed dividend

Dividend of previous years
Credit of dnndend dsstnbut:on *ax (b}

Deber mzre tedemm on reserve
Transterred fo general reserve

Balance \d!’!!'.’:‘d forward

(a) The foreign currency translation reserve comprises exchange difference on loans and advances that in substance form part of net investment in Lacock Holdings
Limited, Cyprus( acock) (till 23 August 2011) and Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico, S.A.de.C.V.
Standard (AS) - 11 (Revised 2003) on "Accounting for the Effects of Changes in foreign Exchange Rates

statement of profn and loss in the event of disposal of such net investments.

Mexico), non-integral foreign operations as defined in Accounting

These exchange differences will be recognised in the

) Credit of dividend distribution tax pertains to the availment of dividend distribution tax paid by Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, a subsidiary company on

payment of preference dividend to the Company.
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pertE 2o NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. BORROWINGS
- AS AT
| 31 MARCH 2013

A} Long term borrowings

Securez‘f

Long term maturities of finance lease obligations (a) 5
Unsecured
Debentures
9.25% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of T 5/- each (b) 5,078

Deferred paymeni Ekiahiﬁéiigs

B} Short term borrowings
Unsecured
Packing credit loans ()

(a) Finance lease obligations are towards lease rentals payable for the vehicies leased by the Company. Lease rentals are paid in monthly instalment, with the last instaiment
due in November 2016

(b Debentures are due for redemption an 24 March 2014 and accordingly, the same are disclosed under other current liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (Refer note 2.40).
(¢} Sales tax deferment loan is repayable in 10 instalments, with the last instalment due on 31 March 2019.

(d) Packing Credit ioans for the current year comprised of USD / EUR denominated Foreign Currency Packing Credit foans carrying interest rates of LBOR plus 50 - 125 bps
and RUB denominated loans carrying fixed interest rate of 7.25% - 8.00% per annum and are repayable within 1 to & months from the date of drawdown, Packing
Credit loans for the previous year comprised of USD / EUR denominated Foreign Currency Packing Credit loans carrying interest rates of LIBOR pius 100 - 150 bps or

fixed rate of

2.21% - 3.06% per annum and were repayable within 1 to 6 months from the date of drawdown.

103



ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEFT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

BOTE 20 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AS AT

31 MARCH 2013
Other long term liabilities
Deferr

d revenue income

Other current labilities

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Finance lease obligations (&)

ax deferment loan from the Government of Andhra Pradesh (interest free) (b)

eemable Non convertible Debentures of ¥ 5/- each (c)

Due to capital creditors
Payable to subsidiary companies, step down subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Interest accrued but not due on loan

Unclaimed dividends and debenture interest *

Accrued expenses
Salary and bonus payable

Derivative financial instrument liability

Due to statutory authorities

Advance from customers (subsidiary companies, step down subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates)
Others

* Unclaimed amounts are transferred to investor Protection and Education Fund after seven years from the due date.

{(a)  Finance lease obligations are towards minimum lease rentals payable before 31 March 2014 for the vehicles leased by the Company.
(b} The figures reflected for sales tax deferment loan are for instalments payable before 31 March 2014,

(¢ Debentures are due for redemption on 24 March 2014 (Refer note 2.40).

' ANNUAL REPORT
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NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

rovision for employee benefits

Compensated absences

Long ser

Compensated absences

Long service award benefit plan 10
Other provisions

Allowance for sales returns (a) 404

Proposed dividend 2,331

Tax on proposed dividend

Details of changes in allowance for sales returns during the year are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 395
Provision made during the year 485
Provision used during the year (476)

Balance at the end of the year

TRADE PAYABLES

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Payable to third parties

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises 1
Others 6,751
Payable to subsidiary companies, step down subsidiaries, joint ventures and associat 582

{a) The principal amounts paid and that remaining unpaid as at 31 March 2013 in respect of enterprises covered under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006" (MSMDA) are ¥ 3,014 (previous year: ¥ 3,405) and T 236 (previous year: ¥ 1) respectively. The interest amount computed based on the
provisions under Section 16 of the MSMDA of ¥ 0.02 (previous vear: T 0.03) is remalning unpaid as of 31 March 2013. The interest amount of ¥ 0.03 that remained
unpaid as at 31 March 2012 was paid fully during the current year.

(by The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act is T Nil {previous year: T Nil)

{c) The fist of undertakings covered under MSMDA was determined by the Company on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by
the auditors.
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHMARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NON CURRENT INVESTMEN

31 MARCH 2013

{a, Fm'fv shares fz,//y‘ F-uf

12,000 {previous year: 12, mo\ equity shnrcs of T 10/~ each of State Ban ik of India (a)
TOTAL QUOTED NON CURRENT | NVESTMFNTS (!}

Tr&de
In Subszdzary Companfes

Equity shares (fully paid up}

16,033 (previous year © 16 O3?) oq@ty shares ot Fum ‘I eac h of Iawck Holdings Lm-tod Cyprus 16,146
75,640,410 {previous year : 75,640, 410)ord es ofCH‘ 1 each of Dr. Reddy's Laboratorie SA S\mim and' 2,951
2,377,826 (preuoi.xs year 7 377 ,826) eqwty shares of T 10/~ each of ldea?Fmorpr:ses India Private Limited, India 1,447
[90;%‘44,104 (brevious year ; 90,544,104) equity shares of T 10/- each of Aurigene Dwsaovelv Toc]mo!og.\eg Limited, 974
ndia
140,526,270 (previous year : 54(),526;2‘?(5} éeries "A" shares of Peso 1 each of Industrias Quimicas Falcon de }
Mexico, SAdo‘C_.\/ Mexico 709
26,699,230 ( pmwoux year : 26,699, ?303 shares of Rcal 5 1 mach of Dr. Reddy’s Farm 1aceutica Do Brasi Ltda,, Brazil 634
1{50 {previous year @ 100) ordma:y slwos of Ranr‘ 1 each of Dr. Reddy’s Labmato ries (Propsietary) Um<ted South 512
Africa
5,566,000 (previous year © 5,566, OOLJ ordmary st*afes of Euro i each ot Reddy Pharma Iberia SA, Spain 321
34,022,070 (previous year : 34,022, O“O‘ equity shares of? 10/~ each of Dr. Reddy's Bio-sciences Limited, india 266
40&,7 90 (;;;fe3vi(>l.=§ year - 400, 7‘;0) ordinary shares of US § 10 each Qf Dr. Reddy, Laboratories !hc, U Sﬁ\ 175
Nit (previous year : 1,362) ordinar y shares of GBP 1' eé(i" of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories (EU) L Limited, U.K. (]} 658
fﬁm ty shares of 00O Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories. l:mxted Ru55|a ('“ 72
Nil {previous year : 206) equity shares of US $ 0.01 each of T gnﬁesss Therapeutics Inc, US.A. (d) 497
1,000,000 (previous year : 1,000,000) ordinary shares of Aus $ 1 each of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Au%t"a::a\ Pty. 36
Lirnited., Austr al‘a
134,513 (previous vea» 1 134,513) equity shares of 10/ each of Chenﬁinor investments Limi‘ted} India 1
2,500 (previous year © 2,500) ordinary shares of FF 100 each 5f Réddy Cherminor S:Ay., France ' 2
Equity shares of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories ILAC TK’/—\RfT Limited S‘iRKETI Turkey (b and ¢
50,000 (previous year : 50,000 equity shares of ¥ 1/- each of Dr. Reddy’s Pharma SEZ Limited 1
50,000 (previous year : 50,000) equity Jham of T 10/- each of DRL Impex Lam:ted India (formerly DRL lnvestmen "
Limited)
il (previous year : 11,625,000) ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each of Reddy Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong l.imited, Hong 58
Kong (d) )
Equity shares of OO0 Alfa, Russia (formerly 000 JV Reddy Biomed Limited) (b and ©) 7
1,131,646 {previous year : 500,000) equ:‘[y'si’}ares of USri 1 each of /Reddy Antilles N.V., Netherlands 45
podhy RS ! L 75513
Less: Provision for decline, other than temporary, in the value of non current investments:
Reddy Pharma theria, Spain - ) - (321)
Dr. Reddy's Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda., Brazil (633)
Lacock Holdmgs Limited, Cypr (2,100
Reddy Pharmaceuticals chg r<c> ng Limited, Hunq Kong (d) (58)
hzgew esis Therapeutics inc, U.S.A. (d) (275)
TOTAL UNQUQOTED TRADE INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SHARES OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, NET (A) 22,126
Preference shares (fuil'y pald up) ' / ' o
4,750,000 (previous year : 750,000) 8% cumulative redeemable preference sham% of T 10/- each of Aurigene | ' 147
Discovery Technologies Lumnod, india
TOTAL UNQUOTED TRADE INVESTMENTS IN PREFERENCE SHARES OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (B) 147
In joint venture ’
Fqu‘ty $hai&.$ h@id in Kwhah Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Co. Limited, China ( (b) 429
429

TOTAL UNQUOTED TRADE INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SHARES OF JOINT VENTURE COMPAN!ES (Q)
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G2 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (C NTINUED)

Ungquoted trade investments (continued)

in other companies

Equity shares (fully pés”d—u;c»)

Ordinary res of Roubles 1,000 sach of Biomed Russia Limited, Russia 66
2(50/(300 (p{@ﬂous year : 200,000 chﬁiné‘ry share 0:7' ¥ 10/- each of Altek Engineering Limited, India ?
%859 (previous year | 8,859} equity s ‘ Lsef? TOO/-;aach ofjéed . a éﬁ :ef'\‘( Tmatrﬁem‘ LMH d, India 1
24,000 (previous year ZJ,OOO juity shares of ¥ 100/~ each of Pr e Effluent T.‘reatmeni Lyimife{’i,'mcha 2'
20,250 {previous year : 20,250) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited, india () -
Less: Provision for decline, other than temporaty, in the vdlue of non current investments (659
TOTAL UNQUOTED TRADE INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SHARES OF OTHER COMPANIES, NET (D) 2

TOTAL UNQUOTED NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (If) (A+B+C+D)

Aggregate cost of unquotad investments

Market value of quoted investime

(@) Inrespect of shares of State Bank of india, the share certificates were misplaced during transferftost in transit, The Cormpany has initiated necessary legal action at the

appropriate courts

(b Shares held in Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Co. Lt

ited, China, O00 Alfa, Russia (formerly QOO0 JV Reddy Biomed Limited), QOO Dr. R
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories ILAC TICARET Uimited SIRKETI, Turkey and Biomed Russia Limited, R

Limited, Russ are notdenominated in number of shares as per the

laws of the respective countries

() Equity shares held by the Company in Dr. Reddy's Laboratories ILAC TICARET Limited SIRKET, Turkey and Q00 Alfa, Russia formerly 000 JV Reddy Biomed Limited) were
sold during the year ended 31 March 2013,

() Reddy Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong and Trigeneiss Therapeutics Inc, USA were dissolved during the year ended 31 March 2013,

(e)  Represents 20,250 {previous vear : 20,250} equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited, India amounting to ¥ 202 thousands (previous
year 1 € 202 thousands) (rounded off in millions in the note above).

) During the year ended 31 March 2013, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (EU) Limited, U.K executed buy-back of its shares held by the Caompany.
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AT NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

' (Uﬁﬁecuréd)

Considered good ’ S ’

Loans and at aévan(es to whotly owmed subsidiaries (b} 5,775
apital admnaer for purchase of fxed assets 200

svau rity Deposits o 330

Other advances 13

Considered doubtful

Loans and advances to wholly owned subsidiaries 76

Others

(a) The settlement of loans and advances to wholly owned subsidiaries is neither planned nor fikely to occur in the next twelve months. Loans given to Reddy AnWics NV,
Netherlands, Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Rormania SRL, Romania, Cheminor Investments Limited, India and Dr. Reddy’s Bio-sciences Limited, India are interest free. Other

loans carry the following rates of interest:

Loan to ’ o o Interest rate per annum
Redd\/s mbﬁ'amrie; (Proprietary) Limited, South Africa 6%
xaxoak Holdings Limited, Cyprus ’ 4.75%

DRL Impex timited, India (formerly DRL Investrments Limi ited) 1.75%

Dr Reudy s Labaratories /Ausm‘xa) Pty Limited, Austrdha 6%
Dr. Reddy's Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda., Brazzl 5%
{5 Loans and advances to whally owned subsidiaries comprise’

DRL Impex Limited, India (formerly DRL Investmer

Reddy Antilles NV, Netherlands 264 282 289
{Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (Australia) PW”Um“?fjf”AU?t;!'?';if“ 475 541 475
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Romania SRL, Romania 22 22 22
Dr. Reddy's i‘armamut(ca Do Brasil Ltda., Brazil 232 263 - 261
Reddy Pharma Iberia SA, Qpam (Advanre towards mvoslmem) - 245 ) .
Lacock Holdings Limited, Cyprus (e) 695 695 3,928
lx‘(‘a‘us}m.’a; C\nm;ms Falcon de be};’c»(}),” A de C \/ Moxuuf: ' : o 1,604 1,848 o X»,éOA
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories D)op & 1w 10 10

Cheminor In\/ostn"onts umrted !ndxa fd 5 - N N
D Roddys Bio-sciences Lmnted, India (c) = ' % - - v
echnologies Limited : - - -

() Amount

Cheminor Investments Limited, India i 7 . ) 7
Dr. Reddy's Bio~sciences Limited, India i 485 485

es (Proprietary) Limited, South Africa

{d) During the current year, consequent to the decline in expected cash flows of some of the products forming part of Global generics portfolio, the Company assessed the
recoverability of money advanced to DRL impex Limited. Accordingly, the Company has created a provision for doubtful advances of ¥ 775 and recorded the same as part
of other expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

(e) “Lacock Holdings Limited, Cyprus, repaid the outstanding loan amount during the year ended 31 March 2013.

ment of loans and advances to Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico, S.A. de C.V,, Mexico is likely to occur in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the same
der shiort term loans and advances.
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BOTE 2 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Current investments at cost or fair value whichever is less

Quoted investments
in Mutual Funds

Nil (previous year: 9?@,10( 56) units of BSL Cash Méiﬁéger !nstitutieﬁal Plan 155
Né!kprev»ous yea‘r‘: 347,'674 863 units of 'L,;T! ‘\narke* Dwd S 415
Nil (pi'ewou‘s‘yma": 30}289,629.44) uﬁtts m lDF(Mor‘ev Manager Fund SQO
Nil (previous year: ‘sQ,Z?Z,OOO!%) units oil }?eliarsi:; i;iduid Fund ) 500
N'éy! {pr'evioué ytdi Z2,5:36;6 : 30) units of Rélsance Med;ﬁﬁ\ferm Fund 500

2},802,76’! 32 (previous year: Nil) units of Birla SunLife Dynémic Bond Fund
1(5,051 84012 (prevx@ué Srear: Nl uhiisvof Kotak Scheme Plan A
25,’:73;5‘1 7.46 (prévbuvsvyéar: Nil) units of IDFC Dynamic Bond Plan
15,060,265.96 {fgrevsous yeavr‘} Nif) units of UTI o T
19,176,190.84 (previous year: N<l>> units of Rchancé Dynamic Bond Fund
137,543.89 (previous year: Nil) units of IDFC Cash Fund Growth Regular Plan
94,7558 ous year it

81 {previous year: Nil) units of SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund Liquid Floater Growth

HEO

(Va[#xed on weighted average basis)

Rawy raaterials
Goodssin-transit

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving

Net

Waork-in-progress
Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving
Net

Finished goods
Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving
Net

Stock-in-trade (goods acguired for trading)

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving
Net

Stores and spares
Le
Net

s: Provision for obsole

Packing materials
Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured)

Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Considered good 169

Considered doubtful 202
Others

Considered good 19,266

29,829 -
4o (202)

19,637

Y
L
L

AS AT
. 31 MARCH 2013

S

1hand

Bank balances

In current accounts 794

In EEFC accounts

I term deposit-accounts (maturity less than' 3 morths)

Césh'and cgﬁh ‘eyqu‘iva!ents (A}

In unclaimed dividend accounts

In unclaimed fractional share pay order accounts

In unclaimed debenture interest account

In term deposit accounts (maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months)

Q;her bank balances (B)

I
.




ALL AMOUNTS TN INDIAN RUP[E MILLIONb EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED
MOTE 1. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
AS AT
31 MARCH 2013
(Unsecured) ’
uarxs:dered gooa’

Advances 1o materi t suppliers

Loans and advances 10 em“ioyses

(net of provision for income 1axes%‘ 17,246 previous year: ¥ 13,107)

Advanc

P:epa id expenses

Loans ard advances 10 a wholly owned su bsxd ary company ( )

Okher dvances

Considered doubtful - R ]
Other advances recoverable in‘cash ot in kind or for value to be received

les PlOViStOﬂ for doubtful loans and advances

(a) Comprises of loan given to Industrias Quinicas Falcon de Mexico, 5.A. de C.V., Mexico, Company's wholly owned subsidiary at an interest

per annum.

OTHER ASSETS

A) Non current assets

Other hank balances in deposits whe:e matm

B) Current assets

Cans:dered gaod
Claims receivable 66
Interest accrued but not due 34
Derivative financial asset . S -
Other recaivables from wholly owned subsidiary companies and step down subsidiary
companies:
Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India 41
Reddy Antiles N, Netherlands 5
B : idy's Bio-sciences L Limited, india ) 7 69
f Reddv’é ¢ es inc., USA B o -
industrias Qw:ﬂ(as Falcon de Momm '10
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories 5.A., SWH?GHd"\d 344
Dr. Reddy’s La b()"(ﬂg ries Aus{raha) PTy!lmrﬂéé A;J;*raha - ) 85
B&apn;}u 1 Arzneimittel GribH, Germany -
4

idegZEmefpri

(india) Private Limited, India

| ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OTHER ORPERATING REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
. 31 MAREH 2013
Sale of spent chemicals .

Scrap sales 100

53

Royalty income from subsidiary

Income from settlement of litigation (Refer note 2.39)

OTHER INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Interest income

On fixed depoéit&

303

On loans to subsidiaties and joint venture 301
On'other deposits ) 10
Diyidend ’frém mumal f&hd units 2
Dividend from subsidiaries and joint venture (a) -
P:‘Qf:’t é;w sale 0{ current mve;tmémé, net ' 158

Miscellaneous incor

(a) Preference dividend received from Aurigine Discoveries Technologies Limited, India.




ed goods

Stock-in-trade

Closing
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Stock-com on. expense

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs

Personnel costs

Clinical trial expen
Material / consumables / spares
Legal and professional charges

Power and fuel




WrtE G NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of stores and spare parts

ALL AMOUNTS ININDIAN RUPEES MILLION

Advertisements
Commission on sales
Carriage outward
Other

Repairs and maintenance

selling expenses

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Others
Power and fuel
Legal and professional
Travel and conveyance
Nori ex@’c!‘)tive-.\. directors’ remuneration
t

Foreign exchange loss, net

ctors’ sitting fees
Communication
Rent
Rates and taxes
Donations
Printing and stationery
insurance
Bank charges
Loss on sale of fixed assets, net
Loss on sale of non current investments
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees
Other matters
Out of pocket expenses
Provision for doubtful debts, net
Provision for doubtful advances, net

INCOME TAXES

Current tax expense

Domestic taxes

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)

Domestic 1

EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

e
m
249

o 4130

150
g
e

3626




(a)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(@)
(b}
Y

()

Contingent liabilities:

Guarantees:

Sales tax matters, under dispute

iaries, associates and joint ventures

issued by the Company on beh‘aifﬂgf subsidiaries, associates ar ”17,‘039

. ’,,‘432
250
25,/;

ions on various appeals made by ihf_e Company and by the Department

income tax matters, pending d

Excise matters (including service tax), under dispute

The Company has received demand for payment to the credit of the Drug Prices Fqualisation Account under Drugs (Price Control) Order, 1995 for few of its products

liability related to the principal

"

k]

which are being contested. Based on its best estimate, the Company fas made a provision in its books of account towards the pote
and interest amount demanded under the aforesaid order and believes that possibility of any liability that may arise on account of penalty on thi

emand is not

likely.

The Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (the “APERC ") has passed various orders approving the levy of Fuel Surcharge Adjustment ("FSA") charges for
the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2012 by power distribution companies from all the consumers of electricity in the state of Andlira Pradesh;, India. The
Company filed separate Writs of Mandamts before the High Court of Andhra Pradesh (the “High Court”) challenging and questioning the validity and legality of this
levy of FSA charges by the APERC for various periods.

The Company, after taking into account all of the available information and legal provisions, has recorded an amount of T 233 as the potential liability towards FSA
for the period from

charges. The total amount appraved by APERC for collection by the power distribution companies from the Company in respect of FSA char
er protest, an amount of ¥ 84 demanded by the power

1 April 2008 to 31 December 2012 is approximately T 473. As of 31 March 2013, the Company paid, und
distribution companies as part of monthly electricity bills. The Company remains exposed 1o additional financial liability should the orders passed by the APERC be

upheld by the Courts.

The Company, along-with many other pharmaceutical companies in Andhra Pradesh, has received various notices from the Andhra Pradesh Pollution Controt Board

(the "APP Control Board) to show cause as to why action should not be initiated against it for violations under the Indian Water Pollution Act and the Indian Air
poliution Act. Furthermore, the APP Control Board issued orders to the Company to () stop production of all new products at the Company’s manufacturing facilities
ied by the

in Hyderabad, India without obtaining a “Consent for Establishment”, (i) not manufacture products at such facilities in excess of ce
APP Control Board and (iii) furnish a bank guarantee (similar to a letter of credit) totalling 10 ¥12.5

The Company appealed the APF Control Board orders to the Andhra pradesh Pollution Appeliate Board (the “APP Appeliate Board”). The APF Appellate Board first
ents for Establishrment and to increase

stayed the APP Control Board orders and subsequently rnodified the orders, permitting the Company to file applications for Con

the quantities of existing products which could be manufactured beyond that permitted by the APP Control Board, while requiring the Company not to manufacture
new products at the specified facilities without the permission of the APP Control Board. The APP Appellate Board also reduced the total value of the Company’s bank

guarantee required by the APP Controt Board to T 6.25.

The APP Appeéllate Board passed its order on 20 October 2012 in favour of the Company and observed that pollution load has to be datermined on the basis
government to make

the level of effluents after treatment, and not at the time of generation. The APP Ap sellate Board set a three month time frame for the sta
I

a decision on the proposal made by the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry to reconsider the state executive orders with respect to @ ban on manufacture of
pharmaceutical products beyond the approved quantities. The state government has notyet issued fts decision.

The ABP Control Board issued farther notices on 6 Decernber 2012 and 28 February 2013 to the Company seéking certaln clanfications regarding the list of products,
poliution (water and air)-and:compliance with-Consent for Operation and Consent for Establishment pertaining to Comgany’s four active pharmaceutical ingredients
manufacturing units. After submission of necessary clarifications by the Company, the APP Control Board forfeited the bank guarantee amounting to ¥ 1 for two of
¢ Company to furnish an additional hank

the Company's units while releasing the bank guarantee of T 0.25 for third unit. Further, the APP Control Board dir
quarantee of T 8 for the aforesaid two units. The Company is in the process of challenging the orders of APP Conttrol Board before the Appeflate Authority.

Additionally, ‘the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, clais, governmental andfor tegulatory-inspections, -inguiries, irves igations and-prog 195,
mpany does not believe

including patent and commercial matters that arise from time 1o time in the ordinary course of business. Except as discussed above, the
that there are any such contingenit liabilities that are expected to have any material adverse effect on its financial staterments.

ntracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided

for (net of advances)

| ANNUAL REPORT




ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

MTE 2 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.'&’ | DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liability, net included in the balance sheet comprises of the following:

Deferred tax assets
Trade receivables 56

Other fong term labilities and current liabilities

Short term loans and advances

Deferred tax liability

Excess of depreciation allowable under Income tax law over depreciation provided in accounts

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
» computation of EPS is set

out below:

| FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Earnings

Profit for the year 12655 91

Shares :
Number of shares at the beginning of the year - . 169,560 346 o 169,252,732
Add: Equity shares issued on exercise of vested stock obtians . 276,129 ’ 307,614
Total number of equity shares ouistandén_cj at the end of the yéér ' 169,836,475 169,560,346
Weighted yayverage number of equity shares outstandmg durxng the year - Basic 169,778,214 169,470,729
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of outstanding stock options (net of the ;
stock options forfeited) that have dilutive effect on the EPS ’ , 839,666 861,213
Weighted average number of equity shares ou\standing/dunhgythe year - Diluted - 170,617,880 170,331,942
Earnings per share of par value ¥ 5/- — Basic &) » ' ' : 4.54 53.83
Earnings per share of par value X 5/- - Diluted %) 53.56

1. Aurigene Discovery Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd;

2. Aurigene Discovery Technologies inc., USA;

3. Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India;

4. beta Institut gemeinnitzige GmbH, Germany (formerly beta institute fur sozialmedizinische Forschung und Entwickiung GmbH);
5. betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH, Germany;

6. Cheminor Investments Limited, India;

7. Chienna B.V,, Netherlands (from 15 February 2013);

8. Chirotech Technology Limited, UK;

9. Dr. Reddy’s Bio-sciences Limited, india;
10, Dr. Reddy's Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda., Brazil;
11, Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories (Australia) Pty. Limited, Australia;

12, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (EU) Limited, UK;




25.

49.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9

* Reddy's Laboratories (Proprietary). Limited, South Africa;

=

¢ Reddy's Laboratories inc. - LUSA;

=

r. Reddy's Laboratories International A, Switzerland;
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Lousiana LLC, USA;
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Romania SRL, Romania;

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA, Switzerland,

Dr. Reddy's Néw Zealand Limited, New Zealand (formerly Affordable Health Care Limited),

Dr. Reddy’s Pharma SEZ Limited, India;

Dr. Reddy’s Srl, ltaly (formerlyJet Generici Srik

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Newr York, inc., USA (from 24 May 2011),

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (Canada) Inc., Canada (till 20 September 201 2
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (UK} Limited, UK;

Dr, Reddy’s Laboratories ILAC TICARET Limited SIRKET!, Turkey (till 04 December 2012);
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Tennessee LLC, USA;

Dr. Reddy's Laborataries LLC, Ukraine (from 11 May 2011);

Dr: Reddy's Venezuela CA., Venezuels, ;

DRL Impex Limited, india (formerly DRL Investments Limited);
Eurobridge Consulting B.V,, Netherlands;

idea2Enterprises (India) Private Limited, India;

Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico, S.A. de.C.V, Mexico;

I-Ven Pharma Capital Limited, India;

Lacock Holdings Limited, Cyprus;

OctoPlus Development B.V., Netherlands (from 15 February 2013);
OctoPlus NV, Netherlands (from 15 February 2013},

OctoPlus PolyActive Sciences B.V,, Netherlands (from 15 February 2013),
OctoPlus Sciences B.V., Netherlands (from 15 February 2013);

OctoPlus Technologies B.V., Netherlands (from 15 February 2013);

OctoShare BV, Netherlands (from 15 February 2013),

OO0 Alfa; Russia (formerly 000 IV Reddy Biomed Limited) (il 16:July 2012);
000 Dr. Reddly's Laboratories Limited, Russia;

000 DRS LLC, Russia;

Promius Pharma LLC, USA (formerly Reddy Pharmaceuticals LLC),

Reddy Antilles N.V.,, Netherlands;

Reddy beta GmbH, Germany (formerly beta Healthcare Solutions GmbH);
Reddy Cheminor S.A., France;

Reddy Holding GmbH, Germany;

Reddy Netherlands B.V., Netherlands;

Reddy Pharma theria SA, Spain;

Reddy Pharma ttalia S.p A, ltaly;

Reddy Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong (till 19 October 2012},

Reddy US Therapeutics Inc., USA; and

Trigenesis Therapeutics Inc., USA (till 04 December 2012).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPYT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

Macred India Private Limited, india
(from 19 fuly 2010 till 24 February 2012)

Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Company Limited
{("Reddy Kunshan'), China

DRANU LLC, USA {from 9 July 2012)

Dr. Reddy’s Research Foundation

Dr. Reddy’s Institute of Life Sciences (formerly Institute of Life
Sciences)

Ecologic Technologies Limited

tcologic Chemicals Limited (Subsidiary of Ecologic Technologies
Limited)

Stamlo Hotels Private Limited

W

Green Park Hotels and Resorts Limited (formerly Diana Hotels
Limited)

K Samrajyam

G Anuradha

Deepti Reddy

Or. Reddy's Foundation (Formerly Dr. Reddy's Foundation for
Human and Social development)

AR Life

o5 Private Limited

Late Dr. K Anji Reddy (whole-time director tilt 15 March 2013);
GV Prasad (whole-time director);

K Satish Reddy {whole-time director);
Abhijit Mukherjee;

Dr. Amit Biswas;

Dr R Ananthanarayanan;

Dr. Cartikeya Reddy,

=

r. Raghav Chari;

MV Ramana,

Samiran Das,

Saurnen Chakraborty; and

Umang Volra,

Enterprise in which the Company holds 20% of equity shares

Enterprise over which the Company exercises joint control with other joint venture

partners and holds 51.33% of equity shares

Enterprise over which the Company’s step-down subsidiary exercises joint control with

other joint venture partner and holds 50% of equity shares

Enterprise over which the principal shareholders have significant influence

Enterprise over which principal shareholders have significant influence

Enterprise over which principal shareholders have significant influence

Subsidiary of enterprise over which principal shareholders have significant influence

Enterprise controfled by principal shareholders

Enterprise owned by relative of a director

Spouse of former Chairman (Late Dr. K Anji Reddy)
Spouse of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Spouse of Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Enterprise where principal shareholders are trustees

Enterprise in which relative of a director has significant influence




XCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHER

ALL AMOUNTS TN INDIAN RUPEES MILLTONS, QTHERWISE STATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED}

b, Particulars of related party transactions
The following is a summary of significant refated party fransactions:

FGR THE YEAR ENDED
- 31 MaRoH 2013

Sales t i
Subs&diarses including step down substdl&nes* '
Dr R(“ddySLdJOdeOHG" ne., \15!\ o i 20,498
' 000 Dr. Reddy's ‘Laboramnes erned Russ»a o ' S g ase ' 4491
Dr R(\ddy abomones(UK)‘lmxted Uk - . ' 1612
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA, Switzerland - e 6877 5,087
betapharm Ar? exvmtw GmbH, Gelmar\{ i G '1"'80 v,?‘S.“,
» Dr Re"i'iyﬁ labmafonew LLC, Ukrame ' ' kR . -
’ br. Reddy's LaboraLQnPs (Proprietary) Inmned South Africa ’ 3}6
mdustrnas Quimicas Falcon de Mexico, S.A. de C.V,, Mexica 58\5‘
Others v 699
Total 34,459
OtﬁerSi ) B
' AR kl. ife S(F::en(:es'Priva?e 1.iméfed 640
Macrad india Private Ltm%ted 4
Ecologic Chemnicals Limited -
Total 7 644
i, Interest income from sx,sbysidsm've;inc!udingngepraévx}n guﬁsi'&arier;t
Lacock Fod ings Limited, Cyprus S B8

Indu strias Qui micas Falcon de Mexico, A de C V., Mexico

DRL Impex Limited, mdra (formerlv DRL Investments L ‘m.ted‘

Dr, Reddy’s Farmaceutica Do Brasil L{da Brazﬂ

D, Reddy's Laboratories (Aual!aha) Py, Lxmued, Australia 43
Total k » ‘ 301
iii. Royatw income 1rom substd{ar{eﬂs including step down subsidiaries:
' Dr. Reddys L abomLox ies Inc., USA 53
iv.  Service income hom
- Subsidiaries inc uqu step down subsidiaries:
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratorles Inc., USA 193
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA, a\f\mzeﬂar\d -
Chirotech Technology Limited, UK 18
Total - 211
Offxers:
Ec;oidgyi(, Technologies Limited ' 1
v, Licence fees from subsidiaries inciud%ng step down subsidiaries:
Dr odoy& Labozatoncs Inc., US/\ 16
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA, watzerlanﬂ 30
hetapharm Arzneimittel GmbH, Germany
46

Total

i\ ANNUAL REPORT




BOIVE 2,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RELATED ?RTY DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

Comrmission on guarantee from subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries:

vii.

viil.

’Tota!

Purchases and services from:

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA, Switzerland
D:; Reddy’s I.abo:‘atories inc., USA

betapharm Arzneimittel GimbH, Germany

Rent from subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries:

Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India

Subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries:

X1

Xl

’ Total

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA, Switzerland
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories (EU) Limited, UK
Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India

Chirotech Technology Limited, UK
Others
Total

Others:
AR. Life Sciences Private Limited
Ecologic Chemicals Limited

Royalty paid / payable to:
[-VEN Pharma Capital Limited

Dr. Reddy's Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda, Brazil
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc., USA
Dr. Reddy’s Labaoratories SA Switzerland
Promius Pharrﬁa LLC - k
000 Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited, Russia
Chirotech Technology Limited, UK
Reddy US Therapeu‘(icsvmc., USA
Others - a

Total

Contributions for social development:

Dr. Reddy's Foundation (formerly 'Dr. Reddy’s Foundation for Human and Social development’)

Contribution for research and development:

Dr. Reddy’s Institute of Life Sciences (formerly Institute of Life Sciences)

Hotel expenses paid / payable to:
Green Park Ho{e}s & Reéovr'l‘s; Liméted‘ v(formeriyz bgéna /H'(ﬁe'iS/ Limited)
' Stamlo Hotels Privvate Limited ‘ ) '
Total

| FOR THE YEAR ENDED

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

61
8

79

247

368
145

i
12
1,184

79

48

19




ALL AMOUNTS AN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEFT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

pre 1 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

~

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

xiv. Rent paid / payable to:

Key management personnel:

K Satish Reddy 14
C/frws
C) /\ﬂuradha 13
Dee@tw Reddy ) 3
K Samrajyam 1
Total 16
XV, Remunmatson o ke ey management personm,, 405
aNuten The above amounts do not include the remuneration of key manaqmnem personnel empmyod by
Company's subsidiaries. The abiove amounts do not include stock based compensation.)
i, Investment made drspo in subs»dxar*es duxmq the year:
Reddy Hﬂ:lh(’}g NV, Ncrheuands 27
Reddy Manmceutic&és Hong Kong L -
Dr. ?evdays Labora .U) Limi
Total 27
xvii.  Provision made / (reversed) for oi her than temporary dI'T’H’"JU(‘n in the value of non current investments:
Lacock Holdings Limi tmi Cypri 2,100
s Therapeutics nc -
Kunshan Rotarm Reddy Pl Pwarmaceutical Co. Limited ("KRRP"), China 755
Others -
Total 1,925
il Loans and advances given to / (repaid by) subsidiaries and step down subsidiarie (including interest charged)
Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India (@)
Dr. Reddy’s Farm d(.(‘n)ti(d Do Bra |i H a., Bld!ﬂ (29

Dr Reddy sfaboraiones@m rxetaw/ 1ed‘ South Africa

Lacock Holdings Limi ted, Cyprus

Industrias Qumncas Eako.( de Mex?co S A de C. Ve, '\/[OYI\(‘: 44

Prddy Pharma 1hor;a SA, >pam

Dr. Reddy's Laberat ,,<\7

DRL :mpéx Umimd, mdxa ( o;meri IPRL !nvesfmen - Lir ited) (163)

Dr. Reddy's Lab : : 7 a 2
Total (3,119)

xix. Trade advances given to / {settled by)

Is Limited

Ecologic Che

| ANNUAL REPORT




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fmaceutica Do Brasil Lida; Brazil

irnited, India (formerly DRL Investments Limited) /

Reddy Pharma ?I:\,@ﬁé SA, Spain; . o
APRLLC, USA ‘ -

Total ’ ' '

xxi. Guarantee given / (released) on behalf of subsidiary and step down subsidiary;

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA, Switzerland

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories fnc., USA
“hnologies Limited, India

Aurigene Discove
betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH, Germany
Others v

Total

xxii. Reimbursement of operating and other expenses by subsidiary and step down subs
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA, Switzerland
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc., USA

Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited, India

betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH, Germany

Others o
Total

ALL AMOUNTSIN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

MARCH 2013

123
775

245

1143

896

1{2,628)

idiary:

(240)
(240)

601
2,470
(180)
3,054
(7)
5,938

1,608
32
137
40
48
1,865




The Company has the follow

iit.

Equity held in subsidiaries
and associates have been disclosed under "Long

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g amounts due from /1o related part

Due from relat d parties:

Subsidiaries including step down ﬁubydiare (mduaed in A trade rece.vab'es,

be‘lapr arm Arzneimi itte! (meH -Germany
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA, ‘Sw*tzcrlarad
Dr. Reddy's Ld*, yorat
Dr. Re duys z,abma*m ies Inc.; US/\ o
QOO Dr. Reddy’s mho;(mnes Limited, Rus&a" )
Dr. Reddy's Laborator s (Aushaha‘ Pty Limited, AJS'(
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (Pfopnetary‘ Um ed, Sou*h A‘nma
Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico, 5. Ade C V., Mexico
Dr Reddy [aboramne{, lextedhablmy Company, Ukraine
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Tennessee, LLC, USA
Others

Total

Others (included in trade 'ﬂ(mvab'cs)

AR Life Sciences Private \:igthieg{ )
Ecologic Technologies Limited
Ecologic Chemicals Limited
Total ) -
Rental deposit 1o key management personnel

Provision outstanding at the end of the year towards dues from subsidiaries including step down

eceivables):

subsidiaries (included in trade re
000 b, Reddy’s
Reddy Cheminor
Total k

Laboratories Limi ited, Russ;a
S.A., France

Due to related parties:

Subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries (included in trade payables and other current liabilities):

’Dr‘ Reddy’s i.‘abqrator'i@s SA, Switzerland

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Inc., USA

Promius Pharma LLC, USA

000 Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited, Russia
Reddy US Therapeutics inc., USA

-VEN Pharma Capital !.1mite0‘; India

’CH"oTech Technologies Limi

betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH, Germany
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories (P roprietary) hm:ted South Aft
Others

Total

Others (included in trade payd bies drd other current fiabil

nes\

Dr. Reddy’s Resea oundauml
Ecologic C 5’1@:111<:a#s Limiied

Tma!

associates an

term loans and advances” and "Short ter

associates and joint venture have been disclosed under “Other current assets” (Note 2.15).

194 ¢

i ANNUAL REPORT

m
m

31 MARCH 2013

d joint venture has been disclosed under “Non current investments” (Note 2.8), Loans and advances to subsi

loans and advances” (Notes 2.9 and 2.14). O

100
1730

Other recelvables

DATAAND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

120

IS
2

2,174
706

e 23

168
204

3,501
20

20

diaries, joint venture
from subsidiaries,




ALL AMOQUNTS TN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

MEFTE 2. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARTH 2013

’ Other ci’xa{géé

Taxation matters*

Other matters
R

eimb

rse

epresents amount of ¥ 400 thousands, rounded off

in millions above

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE :
The Company has 51.33 percent interest in Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Co. Limited (KRRP), & joint venture in China. KRRP is engaged in manufacturing and marketing
of active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates and formulations in China. The contractual arrangement between shareholders of KRRP indicates joint control as the
minority shareholders, along with the Company, have significant participating rights such that they jointly control the operations of KRRP.

The aggregate amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses related to the Company’s share in KRRP as at and for the year ended 31 March 2013 are given below:

31 MARCH 20

Fixed assets

Deferred tax assets, net 6
nventories 95
Trade receivables 138
Cash and bank balances 28
Short term loans and advances 145
Current l%abdmes 227
Short term bo!‘xtowmgs 48
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 5

provided for (net of advances)

Income
Sales
Other income

Expenditure

Material costs

Employee benefits expense
Operating and other expenses
Research and deveiopmem
Finance costs

Depreciation

Profit before taxation
Provision for taxation

- Current tax expense )

- Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
Profit ‘after taxation




TSHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISESTATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Dr. Reddy’s Employeées Stock Option Plan 2002 (the DRL?.GQZ Plan): The Company institited the DREZ002 Plan fo
approved by the shareholders'in the A Annual General Meeting held on 24 Septermber 2007, The DRL-200 02 Plan covers-all-empioy ¢ fel-Tts subsichanss: a

“orppensation Compiittee of the Board (the Cor nrrittee’)
1

ng period and the exercise period. The vesting peviad is determined on the

{excluding promoter directors) of DRL and its subsidiaries (collectively, “eligible employees”). Under the Scheme, the
shall administer the Scheme and grant stock tHions to eligible directors and employees of the Company and its subsi
hall ad ter the Sch d grant stock options-to eligible direct d empl f il m 1 its sul

iaries. The Committee shall detérmine the employees

price, the ves

eligible for receving the options, the number of options to be granted, the exerci
date of the grant. The options issued under the DRL 2002 plan vest in periods ranging between one and four years and general

TIIT CONTTac i of five vea

i Lo catey

The DR 2002 Plan was amended on 28 July 2004 at the Annual General Meeting of sharehoiders to provide for stock options

ise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying eguity

Category A: 1,721,700 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exe

shares on the date ot grant; and

Category B: 573,778 stock options out of the tot tal of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exercise price equs al to the par value of the underlying equity shares
(i.e., T 5/ per option).

The DRL 2002 Plan was further amended on 27 July 2005 at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to provide for stock option grants in two categories:

Category A: 300,000 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exercise price equal | o the fair market value of the underlying equity

shares on the date of grant; énd

ar value of the underlyi

Category B: 1,995,478 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of optio

(i.e., T 5/ per option)

ue) for 30 da

[ Bonus 1ss

The fair market vaiue of a share on each grant date faffing under Category A above is def

the grant, in the stock exchange where there was highest trading volume during that period Notwithstanding the Toregoing, the

the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, grant options with a per share exe price other than falr ma

for stock

we twao categories as follov

Adfter the issue of bonus shares by the Company in August 2006, the DRL 2002 Plan provid

1,995,478
147 79”%

Options reserved under original plan

Options exercised prior to stock dividend date (/\)
Balance 0{ Shares that can be'allotted on exerd
k dxwd?nd (<)

- of the aption are known at the grant date, the

bt have not been exer

in the case of termination of employment, all unvested options would stand ca . Options that have

mployment termination, fating which they

prescribed under each option agreement by the Committee or if no time limit is prescribed, within three months of the date of

would stand cancelled.

ion-of the Compensation

1 on the recommendat

ritly, the Board of Directors of the Company, hasec
om 29 January 2012, sulilect to the approval of-shar eholders: Ay

The term of the DRL 2002 plan expired on 29 January 2012. Consequ

i

U

tion

Committee, resolved to extend the tern of the DRL 2002 plan for a period of 10 years with eftect |
1o this effect was approved by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 20 July 2012

During the current year, the Company under the DRL 2002 Plan has issued 335,110 Category B options to elig employees. The vesting period for the of

from 12 to 48 months.

warket price of the s

{ by the Compensation Committee for respective options

The date of grant, number of options granted, exercise price fixe
on the day prior to the date of

S
s
ﬁ o o G
i

335,110 5.00 i ,684(}0
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

Stock option activity under the DRL 2002 Plan was as follows:

Stock option activity under the DRL 2002 Plan for the two categories of aptions was as follows:

Qutstanding at

e beginning of the ye 11,000 ¥ 373.50-448.00 244123 65
Granted during the year ' o - - - . ;
Expired / forfeited during the year S - - . .
Exercised during the year ' - - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,000 % 373.50-448.00 % 441.23 52
Exercisable at the end of the year 11,000 ¥ 373.50-448.00 244123 52

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
G o

the year

X / onéwféd during lheyeax ' ’ S - - -

Exercised during the year S (10,0‘0‘0)“ 448.00 - 448,00 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,000 % 373.50-448.00 744123 65
Exercisable at the ené of the year 1,000 T.373.50 T3713.50 19

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 643,156 ¥5.00 5,00 70
G‘rantéd‘dq}'mg e :yéar RS B s o e
Forfeited during the year ' (65424) 5.00 5.00

Exercised during the year (228,583) 5.00 5.00 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 684,259 75.00 7 5.00 71
Exércisab!e ’atf;he end of the year ‘ 60,296 5,00 5.00 38

o ,
R

2500

Outstanding at thé begmnis’fg of ﬁwé 'year /

Granted during the year ' . 262, 5.00 91
Forfeited during the year ) (61,8;4-53 5.00 -
Exercised during the year 7{25;17,”683,! 5.00 -
Ou’t’st'aknding at the end of the year 643,156 %500 70
Exercisable at thé end of the yearv 70,551 T 5,00 38

121




o i

XCERT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS,

MOTE 2 NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Dr. Reddy’s Employees ADR 5tock Option Plan 2007 (“the DRL 2007 Plan”): The Company instituted the DRL 2007 Plan for all eligible'employeas i pursuance of the special

resolution approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 27 July 2005, The DRL 2007 Plan carne into effect on approval of the Board of Directors.on

22 January 2007. The DRL 2007 Plan covers all employees of DRL and its subsidiaries and directors {excluding promoter directors) of DRL and its subsidiaries (collectively, "eligible
employees™). Under the DRL 2007 Plan, the Compensation Cornmiittee of the Board (the “Compensation Commitiee”) shall administer the DRL 2007 Plan and grant stock
options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Compensation Committee shall determine the employaes aligible for receiving the options, the number of
options 1 be granted, the exercise price; the:vésting period and the exercise period. The vesting period-is defermined for all options issued on the date of the grant. The options
issued under thie DRL 2007 plan vest in periods ranging between one and four years-and gerierally have a maximum contractual term of five years

During the current year, the Company under the DRL 2007 Plan has issued 58,140 options to eligible employees. The vesting period for the options granted varies from 12 to
48 months.

o~

The date of grant, number of options granted, exercise price fixed by the Committee for respective options and the market price of the shares of the Company on'the day prior

to the date of grant are given below:

B

/ o Vg pHgELL

10 May 2012 58,140 500 1,664.00

Stock option activity under the DRL 2007 Plan was as follaws:

Outstanding ,rhé begmmng of-the y‘ear 117,899 T5.00 TE00 ; 3
Grémed durmg thé yéar o 7 55,140 N 5.00 k ' g ' k 90
Forfeited during the year 985 5.00 ' sop o

 Exercised duﬁng the yéésr ' - (47,546) 5.00 5.00 ' -

“Outstanding at the end of the year 98,608 25,00 7 5.00 73
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,328 T 5.00 500 47

the beginning of the year 124,559 T5.00 THE00 74
Granted during.t!'se year T - ‘ k56,060 ‘ ’ 5.00 - 500 89
Fofeited during the year (19,789) 5.00 ' 5.00 L
Exercised during the year T (42,935) 5.00 500
Qutstanding atthe end of the'year 117,899 T5.00 T5.00 73
Exercisable at the end of the year 6,564 75.00 25,00 a7

The Company has followed intrinsic method of accounting based on which a compensation expense of T 421 (previous yeéar: T 403) has baen recognized inthe staternent of
profit and loss (Refer Note 2.19).
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BiptE i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

% OF TOTAL
CONSUMPTION

Raw material, packing material and chemicals

Imported

Indigenous

Stoves-and spares

Imported
Indigenaus

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

| EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Exports on FOB basis . 51004
Interest on loan to subsidiaries ' - '
Service income and license fees

Royalty income

Guarantee commissi

Litigation settlement
Others

o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Legal and professional

Bio-studies expenses 396
Interest on loans ‘2"28
Travel 78

Others
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NCY RISK AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk which arise from its foreign exchange revenues and expenses, prmarily i 1.5 dollars, British pounds sterling; Russian roubles
and Euros, and foreign currency debt in U.S -dollars; Russian roubles and Euros.

The Company uses forward.contracts, option contracts and cirrency swap contracts (derivatives) to mitigate its fisk of changes i foreign currency exchange rates. Fuither, the
Company also uses non derivative financial instruments as partof its forelgn currency exposure sk mitigation stra

Hedlges of highly probable forecasted transactions

The Company classifies its derivative contracts that hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly probable forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and measures them
st fair value: The effective portion of such-cash flow hedges is recorded as part of rasetves and surplis within the Company's “hedging reserve”, and resclassified in the statement
of profit and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted ransactions. The ineffective portion is immediately recorded i the statement of

profit and {oss.

The Company also designates certain non derivative financial liabilities, such as foreign currency borrowings fram banks, as hedging instruments. for the hedge of foreign
currency risk associated with highly probable fotecasted transactions and; accordingly, applies cash flow hedge accounting for such relationships, Resmeasurement gain/loss on
such non derivative financial liabilities is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company’s “hedging reserve”, and re~classified in the statement of profit and loss as
revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions.

In respect of the aforesaid hedges of highly probable forecasted transactions, the Company has recoided, i reserves and surplus, a net profit of ¥ 405 and:a net loss of
¥ 28 for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company also recorded, as part of revenue, & net loss of #3572 and ¥ 344 during the years ended
31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.

N
o
)

The net carrying amourtt of the Company’s “hedging reserve” was a gain of T 402 as at 31 March 2013, as compared to a logs 0f ¥ 3 as.at 31 March 2

The table below summarises the periads when the forecasted cash flows assodiated with derivative hedging instruments are expected 0 occur

A5 AT
91 MARCH 2013

iguresin equivaientrupee millions)

’ Cash flows in U.S. Dollars ¢

Nat later than one month
Lat
Later than three month and not later than six months

than one month and notlater than three months

six month and not later than two years

Cash flows in Euro (figures in equivalent rupee millions)
Not later than one month

Later than one month and not Jater than three months
Later than three month and not later than six months

Later-than sixmonth-and not later thap-one year
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TR L NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. & HEDGES OF FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Hedges of recognised assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting is applied are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss: The changes in fair value of such derivative-contracts as well as the forgign exchange gains and losses relating to the monetary
items are recognised as part of foreign exchange gains and fosses:

Fair values of foreign exchange derivative contracts are determined under the Modified Black Scholes technigue by using inputs from market observable data and other relevant
terms of the contract with counter parties which are banks or financial institutions.

in respect of the aforesaid foreign exchange derivative contracts and the ineffective portion of the derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges, the Company has
recorded, as part of foreign exchange gains and losses, a net gain of ¥ 158 and a net loss of ¥ 1,582 for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company has entered into the following foreign exchange derivative contracts:

As at 31 March 2013

Forward Contract S v usb INR Usb 23 Buy ’

Forwérd Contract usb INR usD 140.7 Sell Hedging
Opﬁén Contract ' USD ‘ k!NR ' UsD 595 Selt ’ Hedging
Swap Contract. UsD..... INR e USDG4T... sell Hedging
Swap Contract EWR . INR EUR 16.5 Sel [ Hedging

As at 31 March 2012

Forward Contract usb INR USD 480 Sell Hedging
Forward Contract EUR INR EUR 10 Sell Hedging
Option Contrad ’ usb - - INR ush 374 ’ ’ Sell Hedging o

The year end significant foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

Un-hedged significant foreign currency exposure as at 31st March 2013

%\u‘g D v
%;(%%ﬁg%% A&%&ﬁ%@ i i
RUB 1,543 1.74 2,685
Trade Receivables e
GBP 4 82.23 329
usb 18 54.29 977
Long term, short term loans and advances and other - ’ : ! o
current assets S RuB 54 174 94
MXN 33 439 145
ush 59 54.29 3,203
) ) ) EUR 3 69.50 209
Trade payables, other liabilities and provisions e -
GBP 2 82.23 164
RUB 496 1.74 863
Short 1 b (Packing Creditloan) usp 134 54.29 7,275
Short term borrowings (Packing Creditloan e
g : EUR 4 68.50 278




RUB 8 )
Trade Receivables EUR A 271
Gep 3 , 244
Long term, short term loans and advancesand 1 EUR L 6787 747
other current assets MXN 16 3.99 64
’ RUB 16 473 28
7 usb 81 50.88 4,121
_ T » EUR 5 6787 339
Trade payables, other liabilities and provisions e 5 e 1(:)3
- RUB 72 BREE 125
.Shor"t term borrowings (Packing Creditloan) ’ - usb o 137 ’ 50.88 | ' 6,971

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company's primary risk management focus is to minimize
potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the

same. Risk assessment.and management
policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in inarket conditions and the Company’s activities, The Board of Directors and the ‘Audit-Committee -are
responsible for overseeing Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits:and continueusly monitoring the cradit worthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impalrment that represents
its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.

Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demagraphics of the customer, incliding the default risk of
the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 the maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is ¥ 29,639 and ¥ 19,435 respectively (net of allowances).

Tradle receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables amounting to € 23,557 and ¥ 16,684 were neither past due nor impaired as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 respectively.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Company’s credit period for customers generally ranges from 20 - 180 days. The age analysis of the trade receivables has been considered from the due date of the invoice
The ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is given below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) ‘

Trade receivables that are impaired

The age analysis of the trade receivables that are impaired is.given below:

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are predominantly given to subsidiaries for the purpose of working capital and capital expansions.

Reconciliation of the allowance account for credit losses

e

o

Balance as at 1 April

Provision made during the year

Trade receivables written off during the year

Provision reversed during the year

. 2012.13

Balance as at 1 April 5

Provision made during the year

Loans and advances written off during the year

Provision reversed d the yea
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| FINANCIAL RISK MANAGE

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages ity Tguidityrisk by ¢ fiy,as far-as
possible, that itwill always have sufficient liguidity: to meet its liabllities when due, under both nermal and stressed conditions; without incurring unacceptable fosses.or risk 1o

the Company’s reputation;

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Company had unutilized credit limits from banks of ¥ 20,364 and T 14,290, respectively,

As at 31 March 2013, the Company -had: working capital of ¥ 25,522 including cash and bank balances of ¥ 9,191 ard current dnvestrnents of ¥ 1,966 As at
31 March 2012, the Company had warking capital of ¥ 18,614 including cash and bank balances-of ¥.8,490 and current.investments of T:2,070;

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (other than provisions for emiployee benefits expense which have been
disciosed in Note 2.5, oblig < under Bonus Debentures which have been disclosed in Note 2.40 and finance leases which have been disclosed in Note 2.44).

As at 31 March 2013

bR e

Trade payables o o ‘ 7,678 - ‘ 4 + ‘ 7,678
Short-term borrowings 15,828 - - 5 3 15,828
Other liabilities and provisions 8197 - - B o 897

As at 31 March 2012

Trade péyabies 7,334 - .

7,384
Short-term borrowings 10,204 : I 1020
Other liahilities and provisions 12,993 25 ’ 2 ’ - - - 13,020

Financial guarantees
Finaricial guararitees disclosad in Note 2. 24-have been provided as counter corporate guarantees to financial institutions and banks that have extended credits and other financial
assistance 1o the Company’s subsidiaries. In this regard, the Company does not foresee any significant credit risk exposure.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of change in market prices. Market risk may arise as a result of
changes in the iriterest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk-sensitive-instruments, Market risk is attributable 1o allmarket
risk-sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company Is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and
revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses (primarily in U.5. doflars, British pounds sterling, Roubles and Euros)
and foreign currency borrowings (in U.S. dollars, Euros and Roubles). A significant portion of the Company's revenues are in these foreign currencies, while a significant portion
of its costs are in Indian rupees. As a result, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company's financial performance gets adversely
impacted. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has fluctuated substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in
the future. Consequently, the Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreigr: exchange forward, option and swap contracts, to mitigate the risk of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its forecasted cash flows and trade receivables.
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HCTE 20 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The details in respect of the outstanding foreign exchange forward, option and swap contracts are given in Note 2.35 above.

In respect of the Company’s derivative contracts, a 10% decrease/increase in the respective exchange rates of each of the currencies underlying such contracts would have
resulted in an approximately ¥ 2,219/ (1,751) increase/(decrease) in the Company’s hedging reserve and an approximately ¥ 1,642 /(1,640) increase/{decrease) in the Company's
net profit as at 31 March 2013.

In respect of the Company’s derivative contracts, a 10% decrease/increase in the respective exchange rates of each of the currencies underlying such contracts would have
resulted in an approximately X Nil increase/decrease in the Company’s hedging reserve and an approximately ¥ 3,870 increase/decrease in the Company's net profit as at 31
March 2012.

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2013

(All figures in equivalent rupees millions)

Assets: . e _ .
Coshandbankbalances , . - - : 51 51
Trade Receivables 15,456 1,693 7,558 1,138 25,845

27 o 6% 3039
Liabilities: '
Trade payables. " o 1599 116 ) 43 1758
Short 'terh’} errowmg; o - 7,274 ‘2,676 5,836 " - 15,786
Other liabilties and provisions S e 1,593 121 865 589 3,168

"' Others include currencies such as British pounds sterfing, Australian dollars, Mexican pesos, South African rand, Venezuela bolivars, etc.

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2012;

(All figures in equivalent rupees millions)

Assets: )
Cash and bank balances 102 -
Tracle Receivables 12,281 1,863

1,846

Long term, short-term loans and advances-and other curfent assets

%f.;é. X

%& RN VR Wi
Uabilitles: R _
Trade payables ’ ’ 1,763 - 109
Short term borrowings N ‘ 6,949 23 1,943 -
Other liabi ' o

ies and provisions 37 Y 124 325

" Others include currencies such as Brifish pounds sterling, Australian dollars, Mexican pesos, South African rand, Venezuela bolivars, etc.

For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, every 10% depreciation / appreciation in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the respective currencies in the above
mentioned financial assets / liabilities would affect the Company’s net profit by approximately ¥ 822 and T 652 respectively; from such financial assets / liabilities.
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MOTE 20 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the Company had foreign currency loans of 8,104 carrying a floating interast rate:of LBOR plus 50-125 bps and 36,665 carrying
1

a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 100-150 bps, respectively. Since these are short-term loans, the Company does notforésee any significantintersst rate risk. A 10% increase
or decrease in the floating interest rate component (i.e LIBOR) of the Company’s short-term borrowings would resuft in an insigificant impact on its net profit.

The Company’s investments in time deposits with banks and short-term liquid mutual funds are for short durations, and therefore do not expose the Company to significant

interest rate risk.

Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, incuding the raw
material corporients for such active pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices
of thé Company's taw materials generally fluctuate in line with commodity cycles, although the prices of raw materials used in the Company's active phiarmaceuticalingredients
business are generally more volatile. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s operating exp . Cormadity price risk exposure is evaluated and
managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has historically not entered into any material derivative financial instruments'or futures contracts

1o hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.

/| EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

2.37.1 Gratuity Plan of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited

in accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the " Gratuity Plan") covering certain categories.of employess in India. The
Gratuity Plan provides a lump surn payment to vested employees at retirement or tefimination of employment. The amount of payment|is based on the respective employee’s last
drawen salary and the years of employment with the Company. Effective September 1, 1999, the Company estabiished the Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Gratuity Fund (the “Gratuity
Fund”). Liabilities in respect of the Gratuity Plan are determined by an actuarial valuation, based upor which the Company makes contributions to the Gratuity Fund. Trustees
administer the contributions made to the Gratuity Fund. Amounts contributed to the Gratuity Fund are primarily invested in Indian government bonds and corporate debt
securities. A small portion of the fund is also invested in Indian equities.

The folidwing table set out the status of the aforesaid funded gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (Revised):

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Current service cost
Interest cost

Actuarial losses / (gain:
Benefits.paid
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EMPLOYEE BENEF!

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2012

Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains / (losses)

Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

AS AT

. L MARCH 2013
Present of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2013

Current service cost

Interest on defined benefit obligation

Expected return on plan assets

Net actuarial recognized in the year

Corporate bonds
Insurer managed funds
Others
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AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

overnment of Ind

Caorporate bonds

Insurer managed funds

Financial assumptions at the valuation date:

i YEAR ENDED

MARCH 2013

Discount Rate

8.60% p.a,

Expected rate of return on plan assets

9% p.a. for first year
and 8% thereafter

Salary escatation rate

Discount rate:  The discount rate s based onthe prevailing market yields of Indian government secyrities as gt the balaice sheet date for the estimated: term:of the
obligations. ;

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated
term of the abligations. :

Salary escalation rate: The estimate of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevarit factors,

Defined Benefit Obligation

. 624” 290 o R ) -

Plan Assets

Surplus 7 (Deficit) , (22) (94) 3 (64)
Experience Adjustment on Plan L,viabbii'iﬁes 23 28 27 18
Experience Adjustrment on Plan Assets 6 5 27 (7)

2.37.2 Compensated Leave of Absence

The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized
compensated absences and Utilize itin future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per Company policy. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The total liability recorded by the Company towards this benefit was €331 and ¥ 241 as
at 31 March 2013 and 2012 respectively.

DIVIDEND REMITTANCE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Company does not make any direct remittances of dividends in foreign currencies to American Depository Receipts (ADRs) holders. The Company remits the.equivalent of
the dividends payable to the ADR holders in Indian Rupees to the custodian, which is the registered shareholder on record for all owners of the Company's ADRs. The custodian
purchases the foreign currencies and remits it to the depository bank which inturn remits the dividends to the ADR holders.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH NORDION

During March 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Nordion Inc., (formerly known as MDS Inc.) to-settle fts ongoing litigation for alleged breach of service
obligations by Nordion Inc. during the years 2000 to 2004. As part of the settlement, the Comparty received a total amount of ¥ 1,220 (USD 22.5 million) from Nordion, out.of
which ¥ 108 (USD 2 mitlion) is towards reimbursement of research and development cost and the same is recorded as reduction in such cost. The balance €. 1,112 (USD 20.5
milfion) is towards ‘lost profits’ and the same is recorded as part of other operating revenue.
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ISSUANCE OF BONUS DEBENTURES

The Company had, on 24 March 2011, allotted 1,015,516,392, 9.25% Unsecured Redeermable Non convertible Bonus Debentures aggregating to ¥ 5,078, The interest is
payable at the end of 12, 24 and 36 months from the initial date of issuance. The bonus debentures are redeemable at the end of 36 months from the initial date of issuance.
These debentures have been listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Asper the reguirements of the Comipanies Act, 1956, /th’e &fompar/sy created a Debenture Redemption Reserve aggregating to- ¥ 1,712 sand -T 867 as:at 31 -March 2013 and
31 March 2012 respectively.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT FIXED ASSETS (INCLUDED INNOTE2 7}

AS AT . A Ar AS AT
| 31 MARCH 31 MARCH | 21 MARCH
2013 . 2013 . o0da

Land

Buildings ) -
Plant-and machirsery 1,220 .. 154 42
Electrical equiprment 224“ i : 15 k

Laboratory eguipment 1,913 ' 143

Furniture and fixtures 178 6

Office equipment Y 27

Vehicl

{a) Includes gross block of ¥ 6 and accumulated depreciation of ¥ 4 towards transters from non research and development to research and development fixed assets during

the year,

(b) Includes gross block of € 14-and accumulated depréciation of T8 towards transfers from research and developrent to non research and development fixed assets during
the year.

PROVISION FOR OTHER THAN TEMPORARY DIMINUTION IN THE VALUE OF LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in Trigenesis Therapeutics Inc.

Following the Company's decision to discontinue its research and development on terbinafine nail lacquer, the Company assessed the recoverability of money invested in its
subsidiary, Trigenesis Therapeutics Inc. and has created a provision of ¥ 222 for diminution in the value of long term investments for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Investment in Lacock Holdings Limited

Investments include an investment of ¥ 16,146 in Lacock Holdings Limited, Cyprus (‘Lacock’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company participates in the
German generics business through step-down subsidiaries of Lacock, i.e: Reddy Holdings GmbH and betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH (‘betapharm’).

There have been significant changes in the German generics market such as decrease in the reference prices of products, increase in discounts offered to State Healthcare
Insurance ("SHI”) funds, and announcement of a large competitive bidding sale process from several SHI funds in Germany, and more recently in the current year with the
reference price cuts and announcement of large sales tender from other key SHI funds.

In view of the above, management has reassessed the value attributable to its investment in Lacock and based on future cash flows expected from the business (in Lacock),
believes that there is a decline, other than temporary, in the value of investment. Accordingly, an amount of € 2,100 has been recorded as provision for diminution in the value
of investment for the year ended 31 March 2012,

nvestment in Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Co. Limited

An amount of T 175 representing a provision created in earlier years for decline in the long-term investment in Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Co. Limited, a joint venture
company, was reversed during the year ended 31 March 2012 owing to its improved business performance,
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ALL AMOUNTS INTNDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

IR aceordance with AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, segment information has been giver in the consolidated financial statermients of Dr. Reddys Labaratories Limited dnd therefore

no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these financial staterments.

FINANCE LEASE

presert values.asat 31 M 2013 are as follows:

The Company has taken vehicles and other assets on finance lease. The future minimum lease payments and th

Not later thar 1 year : 12 26 B 38

Later than 1yearand not later than 5 years - 35 38

The future minimuin lease payments and their present values.as at 31 March 2012 are as follows;

=
=

o

% |

Not later than 1 year R 18

=

Later than 1 year.and not later than'5 y
" i

The Company has taken vehicles on non cancellable operating lease. The total future minimum lease payments under this : follows:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and notater than 5 yea

rent under cancellable operating leases

Lease rentals on the said lease amounting to ¥ 60 (previous year: ¥ 51) has been charged to the statement of profit and logs. Le
amounts to ¥ 249 (previoys year: ¥ 157).

Previaus year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached

Iorg S R & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Divectors
Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration No. 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna G V Prasad Chatrinan & Chiel Bxecutive Officer
Partner K Satish Reddy Vice Chafrman & Managing Director
Membership No.: 032815 Saumen Chalkraborty President & Chief Financial Officer
Place : Hyderabad Sandeep Poddar Company Secretary

Date @ 14 May 2013
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To the Board of Directors of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited

We have audited thie accompanying consolidated financlal statements of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited ("DRL” o1 the “parent company”)

andits subsidiaries; associates and joint ventures (collectively referred 1o as “the Company” or “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated

balsnee shoet asat 31 March 2013, the consolidated statement of profit and Joss and the consolidated cash flaw statement for the year then
nded, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information:

Management’s responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a troe and faie view of the consolidated
tion, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash {lows of the Company inaccordance with the applicable finandal

reporting framework. This responsibility includes the design; implementation.and maintenance of tnternal controbrelevant to'the preparation

and presentation of the consolidated finandial statenients that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterment, whether due

to fraud or e

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on ouraidit. We conducted our andit inaccordance
with the Standards on Auditingissued by the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants ol India: Thase Standatds require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan-and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether th ansolidated financial statements are free
fromamaterial misstatemnent. :

A atiditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. | he proce-
dures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mi ement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to-fraud-or error. In making thos assessiments; the auditor considersinternal controls Lo the Company’s
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate i the dreums
stancess An auditalso includes evaluating the appropriate of dccounting policies used and the reasonableness of'the accounting estimates
made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated fivancial staterments.

We. did notaudit the Ainandial statements-and other financial information of certain subsidiaries, which have been audited by.otherauditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our epinion is based on the report of other auditors. The attachied consolidated financial stat
ments inchide net assets 0of T 77 nrillion as at 31 March 2013, revenues of T 13,969 million and niet cash inflows amounting to T 121:million in
respect of the aforementioned subsidiaries for the year then ended.

We Beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropridte o provide a basisforour audivopinion

Opinion

In our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the explaniations given to-us, the consolidated financial statements give:a
true and fair view in-conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) ~in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of alfairs of the Company as.at- 31 March 2013

(Y inthe case of consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that datey and

(iil) i the case of consolidated. cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that da

forB S R & Co.
Chartered - Accouniants
Firm Registration No.w 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna
ariner
Membership No.: 032815

Place  Hyderabad
Date 14 May 2013
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»«z”?%ﬂéﬁ;@é@? o . ;fﬁ
31 MARCH 2012 207

Reserves and surplus

Non current liabilities

Long term borrowings

12650
. o

Deferred tax liabilities, net
Other long term liabilities 24 Gy i o . '35(}'

Long term provisions . - ' : =

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 15,888

7,566
17,492
4,968

Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions

‘ Tgtal

Non current assets

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

25732

Intangible assets i ) - 8,3'85
Capital vvorkwwprogresé - 7,085
Non cun’ém investments ) o 9
Déferréd mx‘ayéséls, nét ' ' ' 2 2”9 1,340
Long té'rm ioanksk andkadv’ances T ' 701

Other non current assets 2.1

Current assets

Current mvestments o v o - o 210 ‘ 2,070
Ihvento_ries ' v . ' ' ‘2‘,‘1 1 19,433
Trade receivables ’ ' 2.12 25,368
Cash and bank balances v k ‘ 2‘13' 16,061
Shér'{»téi’n’\ Io»ans”énd advancés - - - . 6,629 ’

Other current assets 429

) ) ) ) Tota!
Significant accounting policies 1
Nates to the consqiidated financial statements 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

forB S R & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(7/7(,7FI("I"{’(1 Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna G V Prasad Chairman & Chiel Executive Officer
Partner K Satish Reddy Vice Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.: 032815 Saumen Chakraborty President & Chief Financial Officer
Place : Hyderabad Sandeep Poddar Company Secretary

Date : 14 May 2013




Sales, gross

=Xxcise duty
Sales, net
5‘5 'viCe i

COm(t‘

License faef
Oﬁev opezatmq revenues
Re\mnue from operat;ons

Other income
Total revenue

Cost of material ¢

Changea in mve*rstoues o{ fmrs wed goods vvork-m ptogte\s and srock QOB trade )
Conversion charges
Excise dity

Employee benefits e

Tota& expenses e
Pr ef;t befove exceptmnai .and extraofdmary items and tax

F)\(@phond items
Impairment m‘ qoc;dwn

Impai rmeot Of imangibles

Profit befare extraordmary rtems and tax o

raordinary ftems
v Prefl’t before tax.

_e\xpense
Dpfmed tax benefit
Profit for the year
Earnings per share
Basic - Par value ¥ 5
Jlate“% Par value ? ‘:/~ per share. e
f\fumber of shares}usecﬁ in compu’ceng earnmg ;;e\:sgairem o
Basi

Par val ue 4

per ahate

i iuted - Par-value - per sham

anclal statements

I part cf consohdafed

Whe accompany nq n.ote.{ are an mteg

As per our report of even date attached
forBS R & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.; 101248W
Natrajh Ramakrishna

Partner

Membership No:: 032815

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 14 May 2013

144 ANNUAL REPORT

80,071
19,397

18044

5,248

7676
7637

) %Q 137'0 /IEQ
0,331, :942

forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

G V- Prasad Chairman & Chiel Bxécutive Officer
K Satish Reddy Vice Chatrman & Managing Director

President & Chief Finaricial Officer
Company Secretary

Saumen Chakraborty
Sandeep Poddar




ALLAMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Profit before taxation
Adjustrments:

Depreciation and amortization expense » 5,181
Provision for wealth tax ) 3
Profit on sale of current investments, net (158)
ny;dmd from mutual fund units - 2)
Unrealised fore<gn exchango <gasn) /loss, net 663

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles - 1,353

_Stock compensation expense, net 403

_ Allowance for sales returns i 1,335

Interestincome (377
Finance costs o 1,056
Loss on sale of fixed assets, net 9
Provision for i inventory obsolescence 1,473
Provision for doubtful debts, net 168
Provision for doubtful advames net 467

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 29,618

Increase in trade receivables (6,951)
Increase in inventories (4,497)
Increase in Uadc payables 980
muease/(decroase) in other assets and «abmtses net 1,530

Cash generated from operatlgns 20,680

Income 1a><e§ p ald net (4,554)

Purchase o

f fixed assets ) (8,814)

Praceeds from sale of fixed assets 186

{increase) / decrease in deposit accounts (having original maturity of more than three months) -

(8,678)

and other bank balances o .

Purchase of investments (13,690)

_ Proceeds from sale of invgsrrnerxtg ) 11,780
Interest received 332

Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash écquired S
Acquisition of minority interest

F’roceods from issuance of share Cdpltd

6
Proceeds / (re payment) from long term borrowings, net 10,737
Proceeds / (repaymem) from short term borrow‘ibngs, net (3,525}
Interest paid a1

Dmdend paid

Net i increase / (dacrease) in cash and cash equxva!ents )
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2. 13)
Effect of exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents

Notes to the cash flow statement
Cash and cash OqL ivalents at the end of the year (refer note 2.13)
Other bank bal

7,362
2,699

As per our report of even date attached

forB S R & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna G V Prasad Chairman & Chiel Executive Officer
Partner K Satish Reddy Vice Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.: 032815 Saumen Chakraborty President & Chief Financial Officer
Place : Hyderabad Sandeep Poddar Company Secretary

Date : 14 May 2013
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A AND WHERE QTHERWIS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAPR"). JGAAP

mandatory accounting standards notified by the Central Government of India under Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1658, ather pronouncements of

comprise
56 issued by thie Securities and- Bchange Board of india

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India; the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelin

(SEBD. The financial statements are presenited in indian rupees rourded off to the nearest million

sthatatfect thereportad amoeunts of assets

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IGAAP requires management {0 make estimates and assump

It

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported armounts of revenues and expenses for the year, Exarviples of such

astimates include estimation of useful life-of tangible and intangible-assets, assessment of recoverable amaunts of deferréd tax assets, provision for obligations relating

previewea on

employees, provisions against litigations and impairment of assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumgltio
pioy ¢ ¢ yirg £

an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods

ra set outdi the Revised. Schedule

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other crit

Vi to the Companies Act, 1956.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is interided for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal eperating cycle;
by - it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

1 is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

a

d) it cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a fiability for at least 12 months after the reparting date.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following critetia:

a)  itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

by itis held primarily for the purpase of being traded;

¢ itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d)  the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, Terms.of a liability that could,

at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

liabilities are classified as non current.

Current assets / liabilities include the current portion of non current financial assets / liabilities respectively. All other as

" i

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited (“DRLY or the "parent company "}, and all of its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as “the Company” or "the Group™), in which the parent cormpany has more than one-half of the voting power here the parent

company controls the composition of the board of directors. In accordance with AS 27 ~ “Financial Reporting af Interests in-Jomt ve ed undaer Compatiles

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the Company has accounted for its proportionate share of interest iny joint venture 4y the propértionate consoli

consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

#  The financial statements of the-parent company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding togetherthe book valtes of fike items of

assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances / fransactions and resulling unrealised profits.in full. Une fting from

than thelr costiothe Company. The.amounts

intra-group transactions have also been eliminated except 1o the extent thatrecoverable value.of related assets s lower

shown in respect of reserves comprise the amount 6f the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the parent company and 1ts share in the post-acquisition

increase in the relevant reserves of the subsidiaries.

% The proportionate share of Company’s interest in Joint Ventures is combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the, book valugs of like items of assets
liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group transactions and resulting unrealised profits, to the extent it.pertains to the: Company:
@ The excess / deficit of cost to the parent company of its investment in the subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaciates over its portion of equity at the respective dates

an which investment in such entities were made is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill / capital reserve.

_ ANNUAL REPORT
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MO 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

@ The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by the parent company for its separate financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Tangible fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost of tangible fixed assets includes non-refundable taxes,

duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the respective assets,

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use are capitalised. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed

standards of performance.

Advanc

paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under long-term loans and advances. Cost of assets not ready

for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or based on the useful
life of the assets as estimated by Management, whichever is higher. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are
sold or disposed. Individual assets costing less than T 5,000/~ are depreciated in full in the year of acquisition. Assets acquired on finance leases are depreciated over the
period of the lease agreement or the useful life whichever is shorter. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful life, or the remaining period of

fease whichever is shorter.

The Management’s estimates of the useful lives for various categories of fixed assets are given below

- Factory and administrative buildings / o / 20 to 50
- Ancillary structures ' / B ) '3 0 15
Plant and machinery . ' ' 31015
Electrical equipment - N ' ' '5 tb 15
Laboratory equipment 51015
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment (other than compurerﬂequipmen‘t) 41010
Vehicles ' . ’ 3toh
Computer equipment ' ' ' 3t05

Gans or losses from disposal of tangible fixed assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the

enterprise from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets are amortised on a systematic basis over the best estimate of their useful fives, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its

Use

The management’s estimates of the useful lives for various categories of intangible assets are as follows:

Goodwill 510 2
Product related intangibles S0
Patents, trademarks, etc. (including maz‘ketihg} diSfX'ibl’l/‘LiCr)ﬂ rights) ' ' 31012 )
Customer related intangibles - ' ' o 2to 11
Technology related intangibles N - _ 3t0 10
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: 1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or. when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.and disposal.. Gains or losses-arising from the disposal of

intangible asset are recognised in the statement of profit and foss.

Investrments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for nat more than one year from the date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All ather

investments are classified as non current investrments.

Non current investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined separately for each individual investment. The re action in the

carrying arnount is reversed when there is a rise in the value of the investment or if the reasans for the reduction no longer exist. Any recuction in the carrying amount and

any reversal in such reductions are charged or credited to the statement of profit and {oss.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of investment.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase; cost of canversion and-other costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of all categories of inventory is determined using weighted average cost method.

Expenditure on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding Is recognized in the statement of

profit and loss when incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. Development expenditure is capitalized only
if .

e Developrment costs can be measured reliably,

® The product or process is technically and commercially feasible,

® Future economic benefits are probable, and

® The Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and has the ability to use or sell the asse

Expenditure incurred on fixed assets used for research and development is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policy of the Company.

Defined benefit plans
The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the projected unit credit method and spread over the period during

which the benefit is expected to be derived from empioyees’ services, consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The long term obligations are measyred at present

value of estimated future cash flows discounted at rates reflecting the yields on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the

Company's obligations. Short-term employee henefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

All actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and lo

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the services are received from the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recagnized as an expense when the Corpany is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawa!, to & formal detalled plan

to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as-a result of an-offer made to-ercourage voluntary redundancy.
Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company has made ari offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is-probable that the

offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Compensated leave of absence

The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized
compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per Company palicy. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences
in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The measurement of such obligation is based on actuarial valuation as at the

balance sheet date carried out by a qualified actuary.

Employee stock option schemes

in accordance with the SEBI guidelines, the cost is calculated based on intrinsic value method i.e. the excess of the market price of shares, at the date prior to the day of

grant of options under the Employee stock option schemes, over the exercise price is treated as employee compensation and amortised over the vesting period

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency

transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated using the foreign exchange rates as at the balance sheet date.
The resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are carried at the rates prevailing on the date of

transaction.

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of Company’s net investment in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a
foreign currency translation reserve in the Company’s financial statements. Such exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the event of

disposal of the net investment.

Foreign operations

The financial statements of the foreign integral subsidiaries, representative offices and branches collectively referred to as the ‘foreign integral operations’ are translated

into Indian rupees as follows:

bl ltems of income and expenditure are transiated at the respective monthly average rates;

J Monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

o Non-monetary items are translated using the monthly average rate which is expected to approximate the actual rate on the date of transaction; and

o The net exchange difference resulting from the translation of items in the financial statements of foreign integral operations is recognised as income or as expense

for the year.

The financial statements of non-integral foreign operations are translated into Indian rupees as follows:
» All assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, are translated using the closing rate;
o ltems of income and expenditure are translated at the respective monthly average rates.

o The resulting net exchange difference is credited or debited to a foreign currency translation reserve.

The Company uses foreign exchange forward cantracts, option contracts and swap contracts (derivatives) to mitigate its risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

and does not use them for trading or speculative purposes.

The premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts is amortized as income or expense over the fife of the contract. The exchange difference is calculated
and recorded in accordance with AS-11 (revised) in the statement of profit and loss. The changes in the fair value of foreign currency option contracts and swap contracts
are recognised in the statement of profit and lass as they arise. Fair value of such option contracts and swap contracts is determined based on the appropriate valuation

techniques considering the terms of the contract.

Pursuant to ICAl Announcement “ Accounting for Derivatives” on the early adoption of Accounting Standard AS-30 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
the Company has adopted the Standard, to the extent that the adoption does not conflict with existing mandatory accounting standards and other authoritative

pronouncements, the Companies Act, 1956 and other regulatory requirements.
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JrtE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash flow hedges

measures

sciated with highly probable forecasted transactions as cash flow hedgesa

The Company classifies its derivative contracts that hedge foreign currency risk ¢

ompany’s "hedging reserve” - and-re-classified into

themn at fair value. The effective portion of such cash flow hedges is recorded as part of resesves and surplus within the
the statement of profit and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions. The ineffective pertion is immediately recorded

in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company also designates certain non derivative finandal liabilities, such as foreign currency borrowings from banks, as hedging instruments for the hedge of foreign

on such non derivative financial liabilities is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company's “hedging reserve”, and re-classified in the staterment of profit
t gng 2

and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions.

if the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, gets expired or is sold, terminated or exercised before the occurrence of the forecasted

transaction, the hedge accounting on such transaction is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in hedging reserve continu
remain there until the forecasted transaction occurs. If the forecasted transaction is ne longer expected to occur, the balance in hedging reserve is recognized immediately

in the statement of profit and loss.

e rar

Sale of goods

j’

overy of the consideration is prabable, the associated

sferred to the buyer, 1

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been tra

we can be measured

7}

costs and possible return of goods can be estimated refiably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of r

ad or recaivable, net of returns,-sales tax and

reliably. Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise duty and is measured at the fair value of the consideration re
applicable trade discounts and allowances. Revenue includes shipping and handling costs billed to the customer.

Revenue from sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates in India is recognized on delivery of products to customers from the factories of the Company.
Revenue from sales of formulation products in India is recognized upon delivery of products to distributors by clearing and forwarding agents of the Company. Revenue

from export sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of products are transferred 10 the customers, which s based upon the terms of the

appli > contract.

Accrual for chargeback, rebates, discounts and medicaid payments are estimated and provided for in the year of sales and recorded as reduction of revenue. A charg

claim is a claim made by the wholesaler for the difference between the price at which the product is initially invoiced to the wholesaler arid the net price at which it is

actually claimed over a

agreed to be procured from the Company. Accrual for such chargeback is made considering the factors such as historical average chargeback ré

period of time, current contract prices with wholesalers / other customers and estimated inventory holding by the wholesaler,

The Company accounts for sales returns by recording an atlowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance

is based on the Company's estimate of expected sales returns.

Profit share revenues

From time to time the Company enters into marketing arrangements with certain business partners for the sale of its products in certain markets. Under such arrangements,

the Company sells its products to the business partners at a price agreed upon in the arrangement and is also ent led to a profit share which is over and above the agreed

price. The profit share is typically dependent on the business partner’s ultimate net sale proceeds or net profit, subject to any reductions or adjustments

that are required

by the terms of the arrangement.

Revenue in an amount equal 10 the agreed price is recognized on these transactions upon delivery of products to the business partners. The additionat amourit representing
the profit share component is recognized as revenue in the period which corresponds to the ultimate sales made by business partners only- when the collectability of the
profit share becomes probable and a reliable measure of the profit share is available. In arriving at this conclusion and it measuring the amount of profit share revenue o
be recognized for such period, the Company uses all available information and evidences relating to the amouints owed to the Company under these arangements, such

as confirmations provided by business partners, including those made available on or before the date of approval of finahcial statements.

Service Income

Revenue from services rendered, which primarily relate to contract research, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as the underlying services are. performed.

Upfront non-refundable. payments received under these arrangements are deferred and recognised as revenue. over the expected period.over which the related services

are expected to be performed.




ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCERT SFIARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

&1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

License fee
The Company enters into certain dossier sales, licensing and supply arrangements with various parties. Some of these arrangements include certain performance obligations

by the Company. Revenue from such arrangements is recognized in the period in which the Company completes all its performance obligations.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the unconditional right to receive the income is established. Income from interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securities

is recognised on the time proportionate method.

Export entitlements

Export entitlements are recognised as reduction from cost of material consumed when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect

of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current tax

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to the entities in the Company.

Deferred tax

Peferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or

credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation

or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are wuritten-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain {as the case may
be} to be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax,

and where such assets and fiabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,

The basic earnings per share ("EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for the vear and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they
have been issued at 2 later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.

the average market value of the outstanding shares)

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the

recoverable amount of the assel.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smailest group of assets (Cash Generating Unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from

continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its net selling price.

It such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced 1o its recaverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet
date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflacted at the recoverable
amount subject to a maximum of amortised historical cost.

Begey s

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
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o1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

[ULE S

benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present abligation at the balance

sheet date. Provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Onerous contracts
A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoldable costof meeting
its obfigations under the contract, The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net

cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss.on the assets associated with that confract.

Contingendcies

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no proviston o disclosure is made. Contingent
assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of econamic benefits

will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Tt

The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be
received. Government grants received in relation 1o assets are presented as a reduction from the carrying amount of the related asset. - Revenue Grants are deducted in

reporting the related expense.

The lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, at the inception of the lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement,

Finance leases

A finance lease s a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident 1o ownership of an asset. A finance leasels recognized as an assel and-aliability at the
commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Initial direct costs, if any, are also capitalized
s made under

and, subsequent to initial recagnition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicabile o that asset. Minirum lease: paymet
finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense s allocated to each period during the lease

term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Qperating leases
Other leases are aperating leases, and the leased assets are not recognized on the Company’s halance sheet, Payments made under operating leages are recognized in the

statement of profit and foss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

ANN
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MEETE 2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Authorised :
240,000,000 (previous year: 240,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 5/- each

Issued g St L ;
169,836,675 (previous year: 1 69,560,546) equity shares of T 5/- each fully paid-up

Subscribed and paid-up

AS AT
31 MARCH 201
NO. OF EQUITY

AMOUNT
SHARES

Number of shares outsta;wdiz%g at the beginning 6f thé yéar 169,252,732
307,614 2

169,560,346 ’ 848

Shares issued during the year
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders is ¥ 15/-
(31 March 2012: ¥ 13.75/-). The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

NQ. OF EQUITY % OF EQUITY |
SHARES HELD SHARES HELD

R
39,729,28,

First State Investments Management (UK) Limited, First State investments International

466,942 0.28
Limited and their associates 0

Life Insurance Corporation of India and its associates

11,439,458 6.75

{

(d) 695,259 (previous year : 654,156) stock options are outstanding to be issued by the Company on exercise of the vested stock options in accordance with the terms of
exercise under the "Dr. Reddy's Employees Stock Option Plan, 2002 and 98,608 (previous year : 117,899) stock options are outstanding to be issued by the Company on
exercise of the vested stock options in accordance with the terms of exercise under the “Dr. Reddy's Employees ADR Stock Option Plan 2007

(e) Represents 200 (previous year: 200) equity shares of T 5/- each, amount paid-up T 500/~ (rounded off in millions in the note above) forfeited due to non-payment of
allotment money.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MEYT

| RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital reserve
Bahmfe at ‘the becmnmg of the year

Movemenit during the year

Securities premium account

Balance at the

inning of the year
Add - Additions during the year on exercise of Pmpk)yee tock opﬂam

Enipieyée stock oﬁfs’ons c)utstanciing v

Balance at the beginning of the year h

Add Amortization during the year, nef of forfeiture
Less : Optiohs exercised during the year

General reserve

Balance at the beginn ng of the year
Aad. Transferred from .u.srptus

Foreign currency ?rans!atr‘em reserve

Balance at the beginning of he year

Movement during the year

Hea?qmg reserve

Balance at the beginning of H“e ya\d«
Muovernent durmg the year

(1,902)

Debenture redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from surplus

Sm‘pius
Balance at the beginning of the year 07:
Add: Current year [ profit 13,009

Amount ave ailable for appropriz mms

Legs: Appropr cmoms.

Proposed dividend on equity sha

Tax on ps‘oiaosed dividend

Dividend of previous years

Debenture roﬂomomn reserve
'ﬂdm\‘euod to general reserve
Balanro cmue»d forward




ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

MLsts 2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A) Long term borrowings

Secured

Long term maturities of finance lease obligati 261
Unsecured

Debentures ) )

9.25% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of & 5/ each (b} 5,078

Deferre’«dk kpaymkent liabilities

tax deferment loan fro

B) Short term borrowings
Secured

Loan from ba;‘ﬂké (e} 47
Unsecured

Bank overdraft

Péckmg credit foans {f‘)'
Otﬁ short terﬁn loans (g)

(@) Finance lease obligations are towards lease rentals payable for the building, vehicles and other assets feased by the Company.

) Debentures are due for redemption on 24 March 2014 and accordingly, the same are disclosed under other current liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (Refer note 2 .40,

(€} Sales tax deferment loan is repayable in 10 instalments, with the last instalment due on 31 March 2019

() Long term loan taken by subsidiary from Citibank carrying interest rate of LIBOR plus 145 bps and is repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments starting from
December 2014 and ending in September 2016.

(e} During the current year Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceutical Company Limited (KRRP), a consolidated joint venture repaid the [oan taken from Kunshan Rural
Commercial Bank. During previous year this loan carried an average interest rate of 7.21% per annum and was secured by KRRP's Jand and building.

(f)  Packing Credit loans for the current year comprised of USD/EUR denominated Foreign Currency Packing Credit foans carrying interest rates of LIBOR plus 50 - 125 bps
and RUB denominated loans carrying fixed interest rate of 7.25%-8.00% per annurm and are repayable within 1 to 6 months from the date of drawdown. Packing
Credit loans for the previous year comprised of USD/EUR denominated Foreign Currency Packing Credit loans carrying interest rates of LIBOR plus 100 - 150 bps or fixed
rate of 2.21%-3.06% per annum and were repayable within 1 to 6 months from the date of drawdown

(g} Other short term loans represent borrowings by subsidiaries of FUR 45 million from Royal Bank of Scotland carrying interest rate of LIBOR plus 110 bps. Previous year
loans included borrowings by subsidiaries of EUR 45 mitlion from Royal Bank of Scotland carrying interest rate of UBOR plus 100 bps and USD 50 million from P Maorgan
carrying interest rate of LIBOR pius 125 bps per annum.
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Others

Other current Habilitles

i borrowings

Current maturities of long te

Finance lease abligations ()

Sales tax deferment loan from the Government of Andhra pradesh (interest free) (b)

(@
(b

()

Derivative financial instrument liability

v Due to ¢ )

Interest accrued but not due on loans 63
Unclaim@d dividends and dc—?b@m:urQ izj‘fé\’est « 30
Aca’ued expenses ' 6}0 u

Salary and bonus payable

Due to statutory authorities

1 amounts are transferfed to Investor Protection and Education Fund after seven years from the due date.

-l

Finance lease obligations-dre towards lease rentals payable before 31 March 2014 for assels leasad by the Company.
The figures reflected for sales tax deferment loan are for instalments payable before 31 March 2014,

Dehentures are due for redemption on 24 March 2014 (Refer note 2.40).

ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| PROVISIONS

A) Longterm provisions

Frovision for eswwp»{oyeo b o
66
114

Long service award benefit plan

Pension, seniority and severence indemnity plans

B} Short term provisi
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 50
Long service av\,\/kakrdk benefit plan ) 10
P@{*.S»_oh,y .s‘(?:rjkio’rit’y ’a’n:d ksv‘eb\ylererkwbce in%ﬁvebmm'l'y plahsb 6
Compensated absences - 107
Other pl‘.ovééiogws B I
T’axa'{:éon, nef Qfadvance taxes 745
A%Wahce f'oxj 5af@s returns (ab) ’ 1,341
Proposed dividend 2,331
Tax Qn”bkrop‘qgéﬁ ’dkivi»dend o 378

(a) Details of changes in allowance for sales returns during the year

follows:

Balance at the-beginning of the year
Provision made during the year
Provision used during the year

Balance at the end of the year

TRADE PAYABLES

:«-;«J,‘%
S o

Trade Payables
Pue to micro, small and medium enterprises
Cthers

(a) The principal amounts paid and that remaining unpaid as at 31 March 2013 in respect of enterprises covered under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” (MSMDA) are ¥ 3,014 (previous year: ¥ 3,405) and ¥ 236 (previous year: Z 1) respectively. The interest amount computed based on the
provisions under Section 16 of the MSMDA ¥0.02 (previous year: € 0.03) is remaining unpaid as of 31 March 2013. The interest amotnt of £ 0.03 that remained unpaid
as at 31 March 2012 was paid fully during the current year.

(b} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act is ¥ Nit (previous year: € Nil).

(¢} The list of undertakings covered under MSMDA was determined by the Company on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by
the auditors.
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

FOTE 70 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

(a) Equity shares (fully paid-up) - -
12,000 (previous year: 12,000) equity shares of T 10/- each of State Bank of India (a)
TOTAL QUOTED LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (1)

Trade

In other companies

Ordinary shares of Roubles 1,000 each of Biomed Russia Limited, Russia (b) 66
200,000 (previous year: 200,000) ordinary shares of ¥ 10/ éécijs Vof Altek Engineering Limited, India 2
8,859 (previous year: 8,859) equity sharés <3f T 1FO(F)/«Feach of jéedimetla Effluent Treatrment Limited, India 1
24,000 (previous year: 24,000) equity shares of ¥ 100/- each of Progressive Effluent Treatment Limited,ylndfa 2

20,250 (previous year: 20,250) equity shares of € 10/- each of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited, India (c)

Less Provision for decline, other than temporary, in the value of long term investments

2gate cost of quoted investments ; 3 3

jregate cost of Unquoted investments - 71

Market value of quoted investments o i ' . 25

(@ Inrespect of shares of State Bank of India, the share certificates were misplaced during transfer/lost in transit. The Company has initiated necessary legal action at the
appropriate courts.

(b) Shares held in Biomed Russia Limited, Russia are not denominated in number of shares as per the laws of the country

(©) Represents 20,250 (previous year: 20,250) equity shares of T 10/- each of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited, India amounting to ¥ 202 thousands (previous year:
T 202 thousands) (rounded off in millions in the note above).

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured)
Considered good
' : 218
483

Capital advances for purchase of fixed assets
Security deposits

Considered doubtful o
Others
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BtE 7 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CURRENT INVEST ' EN
AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Current investments at cast or fair value whichever is less

Quoted investments
In Mutual Funds

Nil {(previous year: 910, 106. 56) units of BSL Cash Manager lnstitu%ionat Plan 155
Nii (orevio@é year: 347,674.86) units of U Market Fund / ) 415
Nil {previous year: 30,289, 629.44) units of IDFC Money Manager Fund 500
Nt {previous year: 19,212,000 ‘38\ mms of' vR.él;émte d Fur;j ) 500

500

30) units of Reliance Mediurn Term Fun(‘

Nil (previous year: 22,536,633
' 21,862,761 32 {brevious yéeu: Nily units of Birla sunLife Dynamic Bpnd Fund
10,061, 940‘12‘ {gﬁ:’evious ;)/Qvali Ntf) units of Kotak Scheme Pl VA :
25,173,517.46 (previous year: Nif) units of IDFC Dynamic B()nd Plan
15 ‘060,265,96 (previous yeark: Nil} units of uTl
19,176,190.84 (previous year: Nil) units of Reliance Dynamic Bond Fﬁnd
137,543.89 (prowous year: Nil) uniits of IDFC Cash Fund Growth Regular Plan
94,755.81 {pr ity units of SBI Ma num Insta Cash Fund Liguid Flo

INVENTORIES
A
39 MARCH 2013

(Valued on weighted average basis)
Raw materials
(woods -ie -transit

Less: Provision 10\ absolete and slow movmq
Net

Work-in-progress

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving .-
Net

Finished goods

Less: Provision ff)r obsol@t@ and slow movmq

Net

s for trading)
Less: Provision for obsolete and slow moving
Net

STDCKW«U&@ (g{;édé acqu

Storec and spares

Less! Provrs on for ohsolete: and slow movmq
Net

Pack g matenaﬁ

1955 Pravision for obsolete and slow maoving
Net

ANNUAL REPORT
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Norti i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

|| TRADE RECEIVABLES

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

{Unsecured)

Receivables mmtaﬁqu fora peuoc‘ excoedmg six months

Considered good 704

Considered doubtful 537
Others

Considered good ) 24,664

,,,,,,, . g 32 386
biful debts 5 e

Less: Provision for dot

i
igx;!? AS AT
. 31 MARCH 20

In-current accounts 4607
't [FC accounts 110
In term deposit accoun nts (maturity less h 3 months) 2,640

Cash and cash equivalents (A)

n(iafmod dividend accounts 23
in unf.lalmed fractional smz pay order accounts i g - 1
in unclaimed debenture interest account S . n 7

In term deposit accounts (maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months) L o L4928

Other bank balances (B)

i*%% i ﬁ? e Gty
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Berts 2. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Qnsecured)

Considered geod‘

Advances to material suppliers 672
Loans and advances to employees 42
Advance tax, net of provision for income taxes 741
Balances with statutory / government authorities /i,k%/’;?
Prepaid expenses 513
Others 519
Considered doubtful

Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Less: Provision for doubtful loans:and.ad:
o

OTHER ASSETS

A} Non current assets

Other bank balances

B) Current assets

Considered good
Claims receivable 169
accrued but not due 45

ive financial asset

REVENUE

Sale of spent chemicals
Scrap sales

Royalty income

income from settlement of litigation (Refer note 2.41)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED.
. 31 MARCH J013

25T income

On fixed deposits 353
Others 24
Profit on sale of fixed assets, net 31
Dividend from mutual fund units 2
Profit on sale of current investments, net 158
For 711

g exchange gain, net

SHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
. . FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013 |

Opening

Work-in-progress 4,091

Finished goods 2,566

Stocks acquired on acquisition (a) 146

Stock-in-trade 3,197 ' 10,000
Closing

Work-in-progress 4,986

Fm:shed goods 2,?96

Stock-in-trade 4,344 11,526

EXPENSE
; i
FOR THE YEAR ENDED [
31 MARCH 2013

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Stock compensation expens

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SN

OTHER EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED |
. A1 MARCH 2018

Consumption of stores and spare parts

Advertisernents

Commission on sales

Carriage outward

Other selling expenses

Legal and professional

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings - 181
© Plant and mach;vrvevry " 3&/
) Others v 740
msuréhce 376
Travel and conveyance 1,008
Rent
.Communmation

Rates and taxes 416

Printing and stationary 1'54

Donations 177

Provision for doubtful debts, net 168

Provision for doubtful advances, net 467

Directors’ sitting fees 1

Non Executive Directors’ remuneration 54
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fees N 11

Other matters 1

Qut of pocket expenses 3

85

Bank charges
Loss on sale of fixed assets, net

Other general expense:

i

Current tax expense

Domestic taxes
MAT credit utili
Foreign faxes

tion / (entitiement)

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
Dcarnestic taxes
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DESCRIPTION OF THE GROUP ‘

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Lirited ("DRL” or the “parent company”) together” with its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Company” or "the Group”) is a leading India-based

pharmaceutical company headauartered and having its registered office inHyderabad, Andhra Pradesh, India. Through its three businesses - Pharmaceutical Services and Active
Ingredients, Global Generics and Proprietary Products - the Company offers a portfolio of products and services, including Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients ("APIs”), Custom
Pharmaceutical Services ("CPS™), generics, hiosimilar, differentiated formulations and New Chemical Entities {("NCEs”). The Company's principal research and development
tacilities are located in Andhra Pradesh, India; Cambridge, United Kingdom and Leiden, Netherlands; its principal manufacturing facilities are located in Andhra Pradesh, India,
Himachal Pradesh, India, Cuernavaca-Cuautia, Mexico, Mirfield, United Kingdom, Louisiana, United States and Tennessee, United States; and its principal markets are in India,
Russia, the United States, the United Kingdém and Germany. The Company’s shares tiade on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange in n India and, since
April 11, 2001, also on the New York Stock Exchange in the United States. The Company’s debentures are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange since

7 April 2011,

Subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries and joir

nt venture of the parent company are listed below:

A’u”r.igem.é Discovery Téchno!ogles Liiﬁﬂi‘ted A ‘Ll..byhiﬂ;’ﬁamy organised under the laws of India 100
Cheminor fnvestments Limited A L".ompany organised under the laws of India - 100
Dr. vReddy’s Sso;sc iences Limited A Cémparwy org_;anised‘under the laws of india 100
Dr. Reddy's Farmaceutica Do Brasil Ltda. A Company érgam%éd under the laws of Brazil 100
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories ’Au%?raim) Pty. Lim[ed """ A Company mqamsed under the faws of Australia ' 100
D:’.Reddys Laboratories (Proprietary) Limited A Company organised under the laws of the Republic of south Africa 100
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories ILAC TICARET Limited SiRKE;ﬂ/ 7 A Company organised under the laws of Tuxkey 100‘
(till 4 December 2012)
Dr. Reddy's Pharma SEZ Limited A Company organi ised under the laws of India 100
Dr. Reddy's Labo atoﬂes SA A Company organised under the laws of Switzer !a d 100
PR& kmp()x Limited (formerly DRL 1 n\/est'\“ents Limited) / A Company organised under the laws of india 100
dm?Lﬂommes (india) Private Limited - A Combah’y érgamised under the laws of India 100
Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico 5.A.de.C. \/l Fatcon A Compaw orgénised urwderk'the laws of Mexico 100
Lacock Holdings Limited ("L acock”) A Conﬁpany orgamsed under the laws of Cyprus 100
000 Alfa, Russia dormeriy 000 IV Reddy Biomed Lmuted) ul:l 16July2012) A C'o'r'nbany bi’ganiéédﬂunder the laws of Russia 100
000 Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Limited A CompaHy o”rgﬂanised under the laws of Russia 100
Reddy /.\ntiiiés N.V. (”RAN\/”) : A Com;j)yavyuy drgén‘iséd"\jﬂder the laws of Nether!and; 100
Reddy Cheminor 5.A. A Comp‘any orgémsed under the laws of France 100
Reddy Pharma tberia SA A Cbn‘w;ﬂanwy..<>r‘gavwised under the laws of Spain 100
Reddy Pwmacouucals Hong Kong Limited (till T9 October 2012) A Company organised under the laws of Hong Koﬁg 100
Trigenesis Therapeutics Inc. (t til 4 December 2012) A C(kykmpkany o'quan.is‘edk under the laws of USA‘ . 100
A subsidiary of Aurigine Discovery Technologies Limited organised under 100
the laws of Malaysia
Aurigene Discovery Technologies Inc. ("Al"). A subsidiary of Aurigm@ Discovery Technologies Limited organised under 100
the faws of USA )
beta Institut gemeinnitzige GmbH (formerly beta institut fur A subsidiary of Reddy Holding GmbH organ ised under the laws of 100
soz%al=W'\edlzs»wze<:hsz Forschung und Entwicklung GmbH) Germany
betapharm Arzneimittel GmbH A subsidiary of Reddy Holding GmbH organised under the laws of 100
Gerrnany
Chienna BV (from 15 February 2013) A subsidiary of OctoPlus N.V. organised under the laws of Netherlands 100
Chirotech Technology Limited A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories ([U) Limited organised under the 100
laws of United Kingdom -
Dr. Reddy's Sl (formerly Jet Generici Srl) A submdsax of Reddy Pharma ltalia SPA orqamsed under the laws of irdly 100
Dr %Gdy‘s Laboratories (EU) Limited {"DREU") A subis‘id‘iary of Dr. Reddy's laboratories SA organised under the laws of 100

United Kingdom
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@orE 2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.| DESCRIPTION OF THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories (UK) Limited ("DRUK"}

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories (FU) Limited organised under the

laws of the United Kingdom

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Canada, Inc. (1l 20 September 2012}

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc. ("DRLI”)

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories international SA

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories New York, inc. (from 24 May 2011}

DlRE’dd\/b Laboratories, LLC Ukraine (from 11 May 201 ?}W
Dr. Reddy’s New Zealand Limited (formerly Affordable Health
Care Limited)

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Louisiana LLC

Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Romania S.R.L.

Dt Reddy's Laboratories Tennassee, LLC

Dr. Reddy's Venezuela, C.A.

Eurobridge Consulting B.V.

IVEN Pharma Capital Limited

OctoPlus N.V. (from 15 February 2013)

OctoPlus Development B.V. {from 15 February 2013)
OctoPlus Sciences B.V. (from 15 February 2013)
OctoPlus PolyActive Sciences B.V. {from 15 February 2013)

OctoPlus Technologies B.V. (from 15 February 2013)
OctaShare BV, (from 15 February 2013)
QOO DRS LLC

Promius Pharma LLC (form

Reddy Pharmaceuticals LLC)
Reddy beta GmbH (formerly beta Healthcare Soluﬁéﬁg Gn%bH)
Reddy Holding GmbH {"RHG")

Reddy Netherlands BV

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA organised under the faws of 100

Canada

Reddy Pharma ftalia S.p.A,

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA organised under the laws of 100
USA
A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA organised under laws of 100

Switzertand

A subsidiary of D Reddy's Laboratories International SA organised under 100

the laws of USA

A s{,)t)sidialy of D, Reddy’s Labioratories SA org&méed Lnder the laws of v 100
Ukraine

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA organised under the laws of 100
New Zealand

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc. organised under the iavvs’ of 100
USA

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories SA organised under laws of 100

Romania

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy's Laborataries Inc. organised under the laws of 100
USA

A subsidiary of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories SA organised under laws of 100
Venezuela

A subsidiary of Reddy Antilles NV, organised under the laws of 100

Netherlands

A subsidiary of DRL Impex Limited organised under laws of India 100
A subsidiary of Reddy Netherlands B.V. organised under the laws of 100
Netherlands

A subsidiary of OctoPlus N.V. organised under the Jaws of Netherlands 100

ws of Ne

A subsidiary of OctoPlus N.V. organised under the la herlands 100

A subsidiary of OctoPlus Sciences B.V, arganised under the laws of 100

Netherlands

A subsidiary of OctoPlus N.V. organised under the laws of Netherlands 100
A subsidiary of QctoPlus N.V. organised under the laws of Netherlands 100

A subsidiary of Eurobridge Consulting BV, organised under the f 100
Russta

A subsidiary of Dr. Raddy’s Laborataries Inc. organised under the laws of 160
USA

A subsidiary of Reddy Holding Gmbt organised under the laws of 100
Germany

A subsidiary of Lacock Holdings Limited organised under the laws of 100

Germany
A subsidiary of Reddy Antillas N.V.
Netherlands

nised under the laws of 100

Y

Reddy US Therapeutics Inc. ("Reddy US")

Kunshan Rotam Reddy Phérméceuticaf Company Limited  ("Reddy
Kunshan" or “KRRP")
DRANU LLC (from 9 July 2012)

A subsidiary of Lacock Holdings Limited organised under thelaws of laly 100
A subsidiary of Reddy Antilles N.V. organised under the laws of USA 100
A Company organised under the laws of China 51.33
A joint venture of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Inc. organised under the laws 50.00
of USA
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Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Job s in respect of:

{a)

()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Mt@;

income tax matters, pending decisions on various appeals made by the Company and by the Department ' Lo A 432
Excise matters {including service tax), under dispute e 301 250
Sales tax matters, under di ispute s 237

The Cornpany has received demands (or payment o the cx&dl’r of the Drug Prices Equalisation Account under Drugs (Price Controly Order, 199 for few of its products
which are being contested. Based on its best estimate, the Comparny has made a provision in its hooks of account toward the potential liability related to the principal
and interest amount demanded under the aforesaid order and believes that the possibility of any fiability that may arise on account of penalty on this demand is not
likely.

in April 2006, the Company launched its fexofenadine hydrochloride 30 mg, 60 mg and 180 mg tablet products, which are generic versions of Sanofi-Aventis’
(" Aventis”) Allegra® tablets. Aventis and Albany Molecular Research (“AMR”) brought patent infringement actions against the Company in the United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey.

In January 2013, the Company entered into a settlemnent agreement with Aventis and AMR. Under the terms of this agreement, which are otherwise confidential, the
Company will continue to sell its fexofenadine products. In accordance with applicable U.S. law, the settlement agreement has been submitted to the U.5. Federal
Trade C ommtss on and Dcpxrt ment of justice for re\,mw

The Company supplies certain generic products, mcludlng olanzapine tablets (the generic version of Hx Lilly's Zyprexa® tabiets) to Pharmascience, Inc. for sale in
Canada. Several generic pharmaceutical manufacturers have challenged the validity of the Zyprexa® patents in Canada. In June 2007, the Canadian Federal Court
held that the invalidity allegation of one such chalienger, Novopharm Ltd., was justified and denied Eli Lilly's request for an order prohibiting sale of the product. Ei Lity

responded by suing Novopharm for infringement of Canadian Patent No. 2041113 Eli Lilly also sued Pharmascience for infringement of the 2041113 patent, but that
litigation was dismissed after the parties agreed to be bound by the final outcome in the Novopharm case. As reflected in Eli Lilly's regulatory filings, the settlement

allows Pharmascience 1o market olanzapine tablets subject to a contingent damages obligation should Eli Lilly be successful in its litigation against Novopharm. The

Company's agreement with Pharmascience includes a provision under which the Company shares a portion of alf cost and expense incurred as a result of settling

lawsuits or paying damages that arise as a consequence of selling the products.

During October 2009, the Canadian Federal Court decided, in the Novopharm case, that Eli Lilly's patent for Zyprexa was invalid. This decision was, however, reversed
in part by the Canadian Federal Court of Appeal on 21 July 2010 and remanded for further consideration. in November 2011, the Canadian Federal Court again found
the Eli Lilly Zyprexa patent invalid. This decision was upheld by the Canadian Federal Court of Appeal on 10 September 2012. On 8 November 2012, Eii Lilly filed an
application for leave to appeal with Supreme Court of Canada. Pending resolution of such appeal, the Company continues to sell the product to Pharmascience and
remains exrosed to potential fiaﬁmqes in an amount that ma\, equat the ¢ "ompenys moﬁ* share derived from sale of Lhe p(oduct

In June 2012 the Company launc hod its Ibdndronme sodcum 150 mg tablet produ(‘( vvh:ch is a generic version of Bomva@ tablets, thcn are marketed and
distributed by Genentech USA, Inc., a member of the Roche Group.

The Company is defending several patent infringement actions brought by Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. and Genentech Inc. (collectively, “Roche”) in the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey with respect to this product. These actions first commenced in September 2007 and over time expanded to claim
infringement of four patents - one formulation patent (U.S. patent number 6,294,196) and three method of use patents (numbers 7,192,938, 7,410,957 and
7,718,634). Claims regarding U S. patent numbers 6,294,196 and 7,192,938 were dismissed in December 2008 and Aprit 2010, respectively.

With the 30-month stay having elapsed and the compound patent, U.S. patent number 4,927,814, having expired on 17 March 2012, Roche filed a motion to obtain
a preliminary injunction on 11 February 2012, The Company chose not to oppose the motion and the parties agreed to a Stipulation and Preliminary Injunction Order
on 21 February 2012. On 7 May 2012, the Court granted the Company’s motion for summary judgment that U.S. patent number 7,718,634 was invalid based on
obviousness. In June 2012, the preliminary injunction order was vacated and the Company launched its Ibandronate sodium 150 mg tablets product. On 1 October
2012, the Court granted summary judgment in the Company's favour finding U.S. patent number 7,410,957 invalid.

On 15 November 2012, the Court issued a final judgment in favour of the Cornpany. Roche filed a motion for reconsideration on 16 November 2012 which was denied
by the Court on 25 lanuary 2013, Roche has appealed both of the Court's summary judgment decisions. If Roche is ultimately successful in their allegations of patent
infringement, the Company could be required to pay damages related to its sale of Ibandronate sodium 150 mg tablets

Five federal antitrust class action lawsuits have been brought on behalf of direct purchasers of Nexium, and ten federal class action lawsuits have been brought under
both state and federal law on behalf of end-payers of Nexium. These actions have been filed against various generic manufacturers, including the parent company
and its U.S. subsidiary Dr. Reddy's Laboratories, inc. These actions have been consolidated in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts.

The complaints allege that, beginning in 2005, AstraZeneca sued various generic manufacturers, including the Company, for infringement with respect to patents
purporting to cover AstraZeneca's branded drug, Nexium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Plaintiffs allege that AstraZeneca’s settlement agreements with these various generic manufacturers, including the Company, violated federal and state antitrast laws,
as well as state unfalr competition laws.” The complaints seek unspecified darmages for class inembers as a result of an‘alleged delay in the entry of generic Versions
of Nexium.

The Company believes that each of these complaints lacks merit and that the Company’s conduct complied with all applicable laws and regulations, All of the
de‘encmnts including the C -ompany, have filed m0t|ons ta d-sm‘ss the complaints.

In January 2013, Novartis AG ("Novaitis”) brought patent mfrmgemer‘f actions aqamst the Comparny and a number of ather generic companies in the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey. Novartis asserted that the Company’s ANDA for Reclast® would infringe Novartis’ ‘987 patent and that the C'Gmpany’s
ANDA for Zometa® would infringe Novartis' ‘189 patent. In February 2013, Novartis sought a Temporary Restraining Order and a Preliminary Injunction prohibiting

the Company and other generic defendants from launching their generic Reclast® and Zometa® products. On 1 March 2013, the Court denied Novartis” Motion for

a Temporary Restraining Order.

Later in March 2013, the Company launched its generic version of Novartis' Zometa® Injection (zoledronic acid, 4 mg/Smi, product) and in Aprit 2013, the Company
launched its generic version of Novartis' Reclast® Injection (zolendronic acid, 5 mg/100mL product). After the Company and other generic competitors launched
their products, Novartis withdrew its application for a Preliminary Injunction. The Company believes that the asserted patents are either invalid or not infringed by
the Company’s products. If Novartis is ultimately successful in its patent infringement case, the Company could be required to pay damages related to the sale of its
generic Reclast® and Zometa® products.

The Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (the " APERC ") has passed various orders approving the levy of Fuel Surchiarge Adjus rr1m=‘r (”F A”) charges for
the period from 1 Aprit 2008 to 31 December 2012 by power distribution companies from all the consumiers of electricity in the state of Andhfa Pradesh, India. The
Company filed separate Writs of-Mandamus before the High Court of Andhra Pradesh (the “High Court”) challenging and questioning the validity and legafity of this
levy of FSA charges by the APERC for various periods.

The Company, after taking into account all of the available information and legal provisions, has recorded an amount of ¥237 as the potential liability towards FSA
charges. The total amount approved by APERC for collection by the power distribution companies from the Comparty in respect of FSA charges for the period from
1 April 2008 to 31 December 2012 is approximately T 482. As of 31 March 2013, the Company paid, under proml, arcarmount of €86 demanded by the power
distribution companies as part of monthly electricity bifls. The Company remains exposed to additional financial lisbility should the orders passed by the APERC be

upheld by the Courts

The Company, along-with many cher pharmaceutlcaf companies in Andhra Pmdem has received various notices from the Andhra )radm "y me Control Board
(the "APP Control Board) to show cause as to why action should not be initiated against it for violations under the Indian Water Pollution Act and the Indian Air
Pollution Act. Furthermore, the APP Control Board issued orders ta the Company to (i) stop production of all new products at the Company’s manufacturing facilities
in Hyderabad, India without obtaining a “Consent for Establishment”, (i} not manufacture products at such facilities in excess of certain quantities specified by the

APP Control Board and (iif} furnish a bank guarantee (similar to a letter of credit) totalling to ¥12.5.

The Cornpany appealed the APP Control Board orders to the Andhra Pradesh Pollution Appellate Board (the "APP Appellate Board"). The ARP Appellate Board first
stayed the APP Control Board orders and subsequently modified the orders, permitting the Company to file applications for Consents for Establishment and to increase
the quantities of existing products which could be manufactured beyond that permitted by the APP Controlf Board, while requiring the Company not to manufacture
new products at the specified facilities without the permission of the APP Control Board. The APP Appellate Board also reduced the total value of the Company's bank
guarantee required by the APP Control Board to ¥ 6.25.

The APP Appellate Board passed its order on 20 October 2012 in favour of the Company and ohserved that pollution load has to be determined en the basis of
the level of effluents after treatment, and not at the time of generation. The APP Appellate Board set a three month time frame for the state government to make
a decision an the proposal made by the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry to reconsider the state executive orders with respect to a ban on manufacture of
pharmaceutical products beyond the approved quantities. The state government has not yet issued its decision.

The APP Control Board issued further notices on 6 December 2012 and 28 February 2013 to the Company seeking certain clarifications regarding the list of products,
ingredients

poilution (water and air) and compliance with Consent for Operation and Consent for Establishment pertaining to Company’s four active pharmaceutica

manufacturing units. After submission of necessary clarifications by the Company, the APP. Control Board forfefted the bank-guarantee amounting to 1 for two of

the Company's units while releasing the bank guarantee of ¥ 0.25 for the third unit, Further, the APP Control Board directed the Company to furnish an additional
ank quarax t@o aof ? 8 for the afoxesard two units, The ( ompany is in he process of ¢h @nqsr‘q *ho otcws m A>P Q mwo Baard before the Appellate Authority,

5p@c(m s, Anquiries, nv@wgatzons and proceedings,

ssed above, the Company does not believe

Add tionally, (he Company is .rv')!ved in.other disputes, laW»urts, claims, qovemmentai and / or reumamry in

including patent and commercial matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business. Except as disc
that there are any such contingent liabilities that are expected to have any material adverse effect on its fing

Cornmitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 5 353
352

advances)
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AGREEMENT WITH TEVA

On 23 October 2011, the Company received an approval and was awarded a 180-day period of marketing exclusivity from the U.S. FDA for olanzapine 20 mg tablets (generic
version of Eli Lilly's Zyprexa®20 ma) for sale in the United States. The U.S. FDA had also awarded a 180-day period of marketing exclusivity to Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.
(“Teva") for its olanzapine tablets in'2.5 mg, 5 mg, 7.5 mg, 10 mg and 15 mg dosages.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a commercialization, manufacture and supply agreement {the " Supply Agreement”} with Teva for the sale of olanzapine 20 mg
tablets in the United States. Pursuant to the Supply Agreement, the Company supplies the required quantities of olanzapine 20 mg to Teva, and Teva markets the same in the
United States. Accordingly, on 24 October 2011, sales of the clanzapine 20 mg tablets along with other strengths were launched by Teva in the United States in accordance
with the Supply Agreement.

In consideration for such supply of olanzapine, Teva was required to pay, in addition to a base purchase price, a profit share to the Company computed based on the uitimate net
sale proceeds realized by Teva, subject to any reductions or adjustments that are required by the terms of the Supply Agreement. Accordingly, a profit share amount of ¥ 4,500
(LUSD 100.7 million) was recognized as revenue in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012, The aforesaid profit share amount in Indian Rupees
millions is net of the losses recorded on account of cash flow hedges which the Company used to mitigate its foreign exchange exposure on profit share revenues accrued for
sales of this product in the United States.

ACCOUNTING FOR ASSOCIATES

APRLLC ("APR")

On 30 January 2004, the Company invested T 21 in the Class B Interest of APR. in accordance with a Development and Supply Agreement between the Company and APR, the
Company had agreed to fund APR's development expenses, provided certain milestones are achieved. Such funding was repayable by APR upon successtul commercialisation of
the product in the future. In addition to its equity investment of 21 the Company had advanced ¥ 380 to APR up to 31 March 2011, Till 8 July 2011 the Company exercised
significant influence over the financial and operating policy decisions of this.entity and accordingly the. entity was accounted under AS - 23 “Accounting for investments in
associates i the consolidated financial statements”.

On 8 July 2011, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement and a Development, Intellectual Property Transfer and Royalty Agreement which effactively terminates
the earlier agreement entered in 2004. As per the agreement, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories New York, Inc., a consolidated subsidiary paid ¥ 140 (USD 2.85 million) to acquire the
facility, inventories, tangible assets, machinery and equipment, spare parts etc. and intellectual Property (patent) from APR. Also, the Company relinquished all the class B shares
in APR. Consequently, APR ceased to be an “associate” from 9 july 2011.

ACCOUNTING FOR INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (JV) ‘

Kunshan Rotam Reddy Pharmaceuticals Company Limited (“KRRP”)

The Company has 51.33 % interest in KRRP, a joint venture (V) in China. KRRP is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of active pharmaceutical ingredients and
intermediates and formulations in China. The contractual arrangement between shareholders of KRRP indicates joint control as the minority shareholders, along with the
Company, have significant participating rights such that they jointly control the financial and operating policies of KRRP in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has, in accordance with AS 27 “Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures” issued under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, accounted for
its 51.33% interest in the JV by the proportionate consolidation method. Thus the Company’s statement of profit and loss, balance sheet and cash flow statement incorporate
the Company's share of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows of the JV on a line-by-line basis.

The aggregate amount of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses related to the Company’s share in the IV included in these financial statements as of and for the year ended
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are given below:

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Fixed assets, net E g 116

Deferred tax assets, net 7 o 7 6
Inventories / e L : 124 95
Trade receivables 4 S 160 138
Cash and bank balances ' 28
Short term 10;3:?5 and advances 145
Current liabifities 227
Short term borrowings 43
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 5

advances)




BOTE 20 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Iricome

Sales

Other income 6
Expenditure

Mamria! costs 172
Employee benefits expense 153
Operating and other expenses 242
Research and development 7
Finance costs 4
Depreciation 3 v
Profit before taxation 61
Provision for taxation

- Current tax expense 9
- De:’ewed tax expense / (ben (ﬁ
Profit after texation 53

ACQUISITIONS

QctoPlus NV

On 15 February 2013, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary Reddy Netherlands B.\V., acquired 93.1% of the outstanding equity shares of OctoPlus NV, (‘'OctoPlus’).
QctoPlus is a specialty pharmaceutical company founded in 1995 and is headquartered in Leiden, Netherlands. OctoPlus’ provides pharmaceutical development services,
controlled release drug delivery technologies and ¢GMP manufacturing of final products.

The aggregate purchase consideration is ¥ 1,772, The total purchase consideration has been allocated to acquired assets and liabilities at book values ori the date of acquisition

asifollovs:

Fixed assets net of accumulated depreciation

Current assets

Intangibles net of accumulated amortisation 86
/_’9 %..Cu’rrem‘ 'Eiat.)slitbres o - (769)

ess: Non cm"rem Ha%:vyvéiitv’:esv - : ' (510)
Net assets {79}
Goodwill o 1,851
Purchase cénéideratiqn: ’ ' - ' ' 1,772

The total amount of goodwill of T 1,851 is primarily attributable to the acquired employee workforce and expected syner
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Deferred tax asset / {liability)

Tax losses carried forward

Provisions 254
Invertories 174
Trade receivables 186
Other CLS(r’@ﬂ‘iy asﬁ@ts 358
Current §iab:mié§ 1,124

Stock based compensation cost

Excess of depreciation allowable under Income t

Deferred tax asset
Def liabili

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The computation of EPS is set out below:

Farnings

Profit for the year 13,009
Shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 169,252,732
Add: Equity shares issued on exercise of vested stock options 307,614
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1.69,56(?,346
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic 169,470,729
Add. Weighted average »’\umbevr of equity shares arising out of oms‘ia;’vding stock options (net of the stock
options forfeited) that have dilutive effect on the EPS ' 839,666 ) 861,213
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (fiunng the year - Diluted ' 170,617,880 170,331,942
Earnings per share of par value ¥ 5/- - Basic R) o e : 8593 76.76

Earnings per share of par value % 5/- ~Diluted &) ) ) - S ,' 89.48 76.37
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Dr. Reddy’s Research Foundation
% Dr. Reddy's Institute of Life Sciences {formerly Institute of Life
Sciences)

Limited

Ecologic Technolog
Ecologic Chemicals Limited {Subsidiary of Ecologic Technologies
Limited)

Stamio Hotels Private Limited

% Green Park Hotels and Resorts Lirnited {formerly Diana Hotels Limited)
w K Samrajyam
w G Anuradha
i Deepti Reddy
w  Dr. Reddy’s Foundation (formerly D Reddy’s Foundation for Human
and Social development)
AR. Life Sciences Private Limited

Late Dr. K Anji Reddy (whole-time director till 15 March 2013);
GV Prasad (wholestime director);

K Satish Reddy (whole-time director);
Abhijit Mukherjee;

Dr. Amit Biswas;

Dr. R Ananthanarayanan;

Dr. Cartikeya Reddy;

Dr. Raghay Chari;

MV Ramana;

Samiran Das,

i Saumen Chakraborty; and

& Umang Vohra.

b, Particulars of related party transactions

The follewing is a summary of significant-related party transactions:

Sales 1o:
AR, Life Sciences Private Limited

Macred India Private ited

Ecologic Chemi

s Limited
Total

i, Service income from:

Ecologic Technologies Limited
fi. ~ Purchases from:
AR, Life Sciences Private Limited
Ecologic Chemicals Limited
Total

| ANNUAL REPORY

Rélated parties where-control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the currentand previots year:

Enterprise over which principal shareholders have significantinfluence

ificant influence

Enterprise over which principal shareholders have sign

Enterprise over which principal shareholders have significant influence

Subsidiary of enterprise over which principal sharehoiders have significant

influence

Enterprise controfled by princig areholders

Enterprise owned by relative of-a director
Spouse of former Chairman (Late Dr. K Anji Reddy)
Spouse of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Spouse of Vice Chairmar and Managing Director

e trust

Enterprise where principal shareholde @5

Enterprise in which relative of a director has significant influence

| FOR THE YEAR ENDED

640

4

644

1,020

1,020
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| RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

for social developmen

Dr. Reddy's Foundation (formerly Dr. Reddy’s Foundation for Human and Social development)

Contributions made

Contribution made for research and developm

Dr. Reddy’s Institute of Life Sciences (formerly fr te of Life Sciences)

Hotel expenses paid / payable to:

Green Park Hotel and Resorts Limited {(formerly Diana Hotels Limited)

Stamlo Hotels Private Limited
Total

Rent paid / payable to:

Key management personnel
K Satish Reddy
Others o
G Anuradha
Deepti Reddy
K Samrajyam
Total

Trade advances given to / (settled by):
Ecologic Chemicals Limited

Remuneration to key management personnel

(Note: The above figures do not include stock based compensation)

The Company has the following dues from / to related parties:
 ASAT
21 MARCH 2013 |

Due from related parties:
Rental deposit to key management personnel
Others (included in trade receivables):
AR Life Sciences Private Limited
Ecologic Technologies Limited
Ecologic Chemicals Limited
Total

Due to related parties (included in trade payables):
Others: -

Dr. Reddy's Research Foundation

Ecologic Chemicals Limited
Total

31 MARCH 2013

107

79

48

O

19

451

120

20

20
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Wl 20 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The primary and secondary repartable segments-are business and geographic segriients, respectively.

The Company is organised on a worldwide basis into the following businesses which are reportable segments:

® Pharmaceutical services and Active Ingredients ("PSAI");

&  (lohal Generics; and
&  Proprietary Products.
Pharmaceutical Services and Active Ingredients:

This segment includes active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediaries, also known as active pharmaceutical products or bulk drugs, which are the principal ingredients for

finished pharmaceutical products. Active pharmaceutical ingredients and interme s become finished pharmacet products when the dosages are fixed in a form ready

for human consumption such as a tablet, capsule or liguid using additional inactive ingredients. This segment also includes contract research services and the manufacture and

sale of active pharmaceutical ingredients and steroids in accordance with the specific customer requirements.

Global Generics:

This segment consists of finished pharmaceutical products ready for consumption by the patient, marketed under a brand name (hranded formulations) or as generic finished

dosages with therapeutic equivalence to branded formulations (generics). This segment includes the operations of the Company's biologics business,
g ¢ g 9 f ) ¢

Proprietary Products;

d

nes

This segment invalves the discovery of new chemical entities and differentiated formulations for subsequent commercialization and out-licensing. The Company’s differen

formutations portfolio consists of new, synergistic combinations and technologies that improve safety and / or efficacy by modifying pharmacokinetics of existing medi

for indlicensed and co-developed dermatology

This segment also involves the Company's specialty pharmaceuticals business, which conducts sales and rnarketing operations

products.

The Company's business is organised into five key geographic segments viz. India, North America, Russia and other CIS countries, Europe and Others. Revenues are attributable

to individual geographic segments based on the location of the customer.

Segment revenues and expenses:

All segment revenues and expenses are diractly attributable to the segments.

Segment assets and liabilities:
As certain assets of the Company including ranufacturing facilities, development facilities, and treasury assets and liabilities are often deployed interchangeably across segments,

it is impractical to allocate these assets and liabilities to each segment.

Inter-segment transfers:

Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between business segments. Inter-segment transters are accounted for at cost to the transferring

segment. Such transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

Accounting policies:

The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the finandial statemenits are also applied to items of revenues and expenditure in individual segments.

Un-aflocable and Head office expenses:

General administrative expenses, head office expenses, and other expenses that arise at the corporate level and refate to the Cormpany as a whole, are shown as

un-allocable items
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MOITE 4 NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

External sales (Gross) 30,131 83,334 1,468 - - - 114,933
Inter-segment sales 5,584 - - - (5,584) - -

Less: Excise duty and other similar duties and
taxes on sales

(309)

S

Income from services 516 - - 1,554 - - 2,070
License fees 55 466 - 12 - - 533
Otheroperating revenues 854 1,234 12 38 - 2,138

Revenues s 1.?0(.455

s

Jn-allocated expen (3,726) (3,726)
Finance charges (1,003) (1,003)
Profit before taxation 21,647
tncome tax expense (6,379) (6,379)
Profit before minority interest and equity in

. 15,268
toss of associates - B
Equity in foss of associates R -

Minarity Interest -

External sales (Gross) 23, 70, 1,075
Inter-segment sales 5,336 - - - (5,336) -
5@.9.5.‘ Excise duty and other similar duties and (209) (196) . . ; . (405)

wwome from services 730 - - 1,606 - ) 2],’336
License fees - 421 - - - - 421

OCther operating r 550/ 427 47 35 - 1,059

Interest income

Other un-aliocable income - - - - - 946

Total Revenues

Un-allocated expense (3674 (3674)
Finance charges B o (1,056) ’61,056‘)
Profit before taxation . ' 18,044
income tax experﬂso 7 (5,03%) (5,035)
Profit before minority interest and equity in ’ 13,009
loss of associates

Equity in loss of associates ) ' ’ e - -

Minority Interest : :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

PSAL

Proprietary Products
Othe

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013
SA
G.I.oba! Generics
Prabrketary Pr‘oduc'tsy
Oth

P

5

India ) 7 .. 14800
: 37,498

Narth Ame

Russia and other CIS countries
Europe
Others

.
.

.

e

North America

Russia and o her CIS countnes 6,823
Europe 19,708
Others 1,889

FOR THE VEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Inclia

North America
Russia and gther CIS countrie
Europe
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POTE 2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company instituted the DRL 2002 Plan for all eligible employees in pursuance of the special resolution approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held
on 24 September 2001, The DRL 2002 Plan covers all employees of DRL and its subsidiaries and directors (excluding promoter directors) of DRL and its subsidiaries {collectively,
“eligible employees”). Under the Scheme, the Compensation Committee of the Board (‘the Cornmittee’) shall administer the Scheme and grant stock options to eligible directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Committee shall determine the employees eligible for receiving the options, the number of options to be granted, the
exercise price, the vesting period and the exercise period. The vesting period is determined on the date of the grant. The options issued under the 2002 plan vest in periods
ranging between one and four years and generally have a maximum contractual term of five years.

The DRL 2002 Plan was amended on 28 July 2004 at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to provide for stock options grants in two categories:

Category A: 1,721,700 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying equity
shares on the date of grant; and

Category B: 573,778 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exercise price equal to the par value of the underlying equity shares
(i.e., T 5/- per option).

The DRL 2002 Plan was further amended on 27 July 2005 at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to provide for stock option grants in two categories:

Category A: 300,000 stock options out of the total of 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying equity

shares on the date of grant; and

Category B: 1,995,478 stock options out of the total 6f 2,295,478 reserved for grant of options having exercise price equal to the par value of the underlying equity shares
(e, ¥ 5/ per option).

The fair market value of a share oneach grant date falling under Category A above'is defined as the average closing price (after adjustment of Bonus issue) for 30 days prior to
the grant, in the stock exchange where there was highest trading volume during that period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Compensation Committee may, after getting
the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, grant options with a per share exercise price other than fair market value and par value of the equity shares.

After the issue of bonus shares by the Company in August 2006, the DRL 2002 Plan provides for stock options granted in the above two categortes as follows:

Options reserved under original plan 300,000 1,995,478 2,295,478
Options exercised prior to stock-dividend date (A) 94,061 147,793 241,854
Balance of Shares that can be allotted on exercise of Options (B) 205,939 1,847,685 2,053,624
Options-arising from Stock dividend (C) 205,939 ; 1,84;7,6\85 2,053,624

As the number of shares that an individual employee is entitled to receive and the price of the option are known at the grant date, the scheme is considered as a fixed grant.

In the case of termination of employment, all unvested options would stand cancelled. Options that have vested but have not been exercised can be exercised within the time
prescribed under each option agreement by the Committee or if no time limit is prescribed, within three months of the date of employment termination, failing which they

waould stand cancelled.

The term of the DRL 2002 plan expired on 29 January 2012. Consequently, the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Compensation
Committee, resolved to extend the term of the DRL 2002 plan for-a period of 10 years with effect from 29 January 2012, subject to the approval of shareholders. A resolution
to this effect was approved by the shareholders at the Company’'s Annual General Meeting held on 20 July 2012

During the current year, the Company under the DRL 2002 Plan has issued 335,110 Catagory B options to eligible employees. The vesting period for the options granted varies
from 12 to 48 months.




The date of grant, number of options granted, exercise price fixed by the Compensation Cormittee for respective options arid-the market price of the shares of the Company

an the day prior to the date of grant are given below:

10 May 2012 335,110 ‘ 5400 ‘ 1,

Stock option activity under the DRL 2002 Plan for the two categories of options was as follows

OQutstanding at the beginning of the year . ; 11,000 - T.373.50-448.00 441,23 65

Granted during the year - - o - -
Expired / Forfeited during the year - - _ - -
Exercised during the year B - - ’ - +
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,000 % 373.50-448.00 % 441.23 52
Exercisable at the end of the year 11,000 ¥ 373.50-448.00 744123 52

Qutstanding at the baginning of the year 21,000 T 373.50-448.00 67
Granted during the year . . k - -
Ekpired / For?eiiéd duz‘mg the year o o = ' B - o
Exercised during the year B a O (10,000) Caae00 44800
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,000 7 373.50-448.00 244123 65
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,000 ¥373.50 T378,50 19

Outstanding at the beginning of the year , 500 70
Granted dyurin'g the year ' E 5‘,1 10 S ‘ 5.00 90
Forfeited during the year  (65.424) ' 5.00 .
Exercised during the year - (228,583) 5.00 5.00

Qutsténding at the end of the year 684,259 T5.00 500 71
Exercisable at théééd of the year 60,296 ¥ 5,00 T 500 38

Outstanding at t'h@ beginning of the year ‘ 697,161 T5.00 T5.00 ‘

C_-:’»jam;’e‘d during} the year v 262,520 5.00 5 00 ' . 9x ‘
Forfeited during the year - 61,8420 500 500 N N
Exercised during the year N - o (254,683) 5.00 - 5.\00 ’ o . -
Outstanding at the end of the year ' 643,156 75.00 £5.00 70
Exercisable at the end of the :yéar ’ . . 70,551 T5.00 ¥ 5.00 38

ANNUAL REPOR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The Company instituted the DRL 2007 Plan for all eligible employees in pursuance of the special resolution approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held
on 27 luly 2005 The 2007 Plan came into effect on approval of the Board of Directors on 22 January 2007. The DRL 2007 Plan covers all employees of DRL and its subsidiaries
and directors {excluding promoter directors) of DRE:and its subsidiaries (collectively “eligible employees”). Under the DRL 2007 Plan, the Compensation Compmittee of the Board
(the “Compensation Committee”) shall administer the DRI 2007 Plan and grant stock options to eligible employees of the Company and its-subsidiaries. The Compensation

Corimittee shall determineg the employees éligible for recéiving the options, the number of options to be granted, the exercise price, the vesting period and the exercise period.
The vesting period is determined for all options issued on the date of the grant. The options issued under the DRL 2007 plan vest in periods ranging between one and four years
and generally have a maximum contractual term of five years.

During the current year, the Company under the DRL 2007 Plan has issued 58,140 Category B options to eligible employees. The vesting period for the options granted varies
from 12 to 48 months.

The date of grant, number of options granted, exercise price fixed by the Committee for respective options and the market‘price of the shares of the Company on the day prior
to the date of grant are given below:

i

B
)
},éx @ ‘%

——
L )\,”v
o "%;%%

10 May 2012 58,140 5.00 1.684.00

Stock option activity under the DRL 2007 Plarwas as follows:

Quistanding at the beginning of the year 117,899 5.00 73
Granted dur%n(j the year 58,140 - 500 500 90
Forfeited during thé'year - (29885) o SOO ' ' ‘300 D -
Exér’dsed‘dq{mg the year (4/74,7;521(/5) N S.DO 5,00 ' .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 98,608 T5.00 T 5.00 73
Exercisable at the end of thevyear 4,328 .5.00 T 5.00 47

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 124,559 ¥ 5.00 ¥5.00 74
Granted during the year - 56,060 - 5.00 5.00 - 89
Forfeited during the year (19,789 5.00 5.00 ’ o -
Exercised during the year a 42,931) so0 5.00 .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 117,899 ¥5.00 3 5.00 73
Exercisable at the end of the yéar - 6,564 ¥ 5.00 ¥5.00 47

The Company has not granted any options under category A of “the DRL 2007 plan”.

The Company has followed intrinsic method of accounting based on which a corpensation expense of ¥ 421 (previous year: ¥ 403) has been recognized in the statement of
profit and loss (Refer Note 2.19).

179
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OS2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| OPERATING LEASE

The Company leases offices, residential facilities and vehicles under operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option.of both the lessor and the

lessee. Rental expense under those leases was T 603 (previous year T 523).

The schedule of future minimum rental payments:in respect-of non cancellable operating leases is set-out-below

31 MARCH 2013

Nat later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not iater than 5 years 7
Beyond 5 year

| FINANCE LEASE |

rthan 1year ' e

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 191

Beyond 5 years

Not later than 1 year 3

1
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 65

Beyond 5 year

| EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

2.36.1 . Gratuity Plan of Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited and Aurigene Discovery Technologies Limited

1h accordance with applicable indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “ Gratuity Plan”) covering certain categories of employees'in india. The
Gratuity Plan provides alump sum payrient to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment: The amount of payment is based on'the respective employee's last
drawn salary and the years of employment with the Company. Effective 1 September 1999, the Company established the Dr.:Reddy's Laboratories Gratuity Fund (the "Gratuity

Fund”). Liabilities in respect of the Gratuity Plan are determined by an actuarial valuation, based upon which the Company makes contributions o the Gratuity Furnd. Trustees
ian government bonds:and. corporate debt

administer the contributions made to the Gratuity Fund. Amounts contributed to the Gratuity Fund are primarily invested ir
securities. A small portion of the fund is also invested in Indian equities.

The following table sets out the stafus-of the aforesaid funded gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (Revised):

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Opening defined benef

Current service cost

Interest cost
Actuarial [0.55?@,5 /{(gain)
Benefits paid

| ANNUAL RERORT
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MOTE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONT!

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains / (fosses)

Contributions by employer
Benefits paid

A% AT

31 MARCH 2013 wgf%w

Present value of funded obligations

Present value of unfunded obligations
Total present value of obligations

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Cu
interest on defined benefit ebligation

ent service cost

Expected return on plan assets

et actuarial losses / (gains) recognized in the year

.

Actual return on plan assets

o tine

B : s057 e g T o
a@m&@fgam@ . - asar .

31 MARCH 2013

Government of India securities

Corporate bonds
Insurer managed funds

Others

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Government of India securities
Corporate bonds
Insurer managed funds

Others
% A
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MEsTE 2 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINU

Financial assumptions at the valuation date:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Discount Rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets

Salary escalation rate

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: Thisis based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expectad-orinvestments of the fund duting the estimated
term of the obligations. :

Salary escalation rate: The estimate of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Defined Ben 6% 47

Plan Assets 490
Surplus /(D :éii) {119}
Experience Adjustrient on Plan Liabilities 28
5 27 O

Experience Adjustment on Plart Assets

2.36.2 Employee Benefit plan of Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico 5.A. de. C.V.
Pension, seniarity and severance plans

Al employees of the Company's Mexican stbsidiary, Industrias Quimicas Falcon de Mexico S.A.de.C.V. ("Falcon”), are entitied to a pension benefit in the form of a defined
benefit pension plan. The Falcon pension plan provides for payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment, This payment is based on the employee’s
integrated salary and is paid in lump sum computed based upon a pre-defined formula at the time of separation. Liabilities in respect of the pension plan are determined by
an actuarial valuation, based.on which the Company makes contributions to the pension plan fund. This fund is administered by a third party, who is provided guidance by a
techriical committee formed by senior employees of Falcon.

5d benefit plan covering certain categories. of employees,

Falcon also provides its employees with termination benefits in the form of seniority premiums, paid from a funded defi
and severance pay, paid from an unfunded defined benefit plan applicable to the employees who are terminated from the services of Falcon.

The disclosure particulars of aforesaid pension, seniority and severance plan are shown in the below tables:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

Opening defined benefit obligation ~funded an

Current service cost 19
Interest cost ) o 29
/M\cfuarial ?ossgs /{gains) (amn

105)

Benefits paid

Forefgn exchange differerices

182 \BORATORIS (i ANNUAL REPORT
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PLANS (CONTI

EOR THE YEAR ENDED
21 MARCH 2013

Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / (losses)
Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

ign exchange differences

N

e AS AT .
@5@3 L . - 5 D0 S g
G o 31 MARCH 2018 | %

Present value of funded ol

Present value of unfunded obligations

Total present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
21 MARCH 2013

Current service cost - 19

Interest on defmédkbeheﬂto’t’)khgarion ’ ’ ..

Expected return on plan assets i . ey
Net actuarial losses / (gains) recognized in the year . e

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Corporate bonds

Equity shares of listed companie

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

.
Discount Rate 7.50% p.a.
9.25% p.a.

4.50% p.a.

Expected rate of return on plan assets
Salary escalation rate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MPLOYEE BENEFITIPLANS (CONTINUED)

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the market vields prevailing in Mexico as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: Thisis based on our expectation of the average fong term rate of returm expected oivinvestments ofthe Tund during the estimated
tertn of the obligations.

salary escalation rate: The estimate of futlire salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Plan Assets

Surplus / (Deficity
Experience Adjustment of PlanLiabilities

“xperience Adjustment of Plar Assets

2.36,3 Compensated leave of absence
The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry-forward & portion of ‘the unutilized
dls an obiligation for compensated-abiences in

corpensated absences and utifize it in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per Company policy. The Company reco
the period in which the emplovee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The total liability recorded by the Company towards this benefit was ¥ 344 and T 26075

at: 31 March 2013 and 2012 resp

| EXCEPTIONAL ITEM - IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES

Year ended 31 March 2013

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Comipany determined that there was a decrease in expected cash flows of a product pertfelio primarily due to higher:than expected
price erosion and increased competition leading to lower volumes. Consequently, the Company reassessed the recoverable amount.of goodwill associated with such product
portfolic using value-in-use approach and determined that the.carrying amount of goodwill was higher-than its recoverable aniount: Accordingly, arcimpairmentloss of ¥ 427
for such goodwill was recorded for the year ended 37 March 2013, For this purpose, the pre-tax cash flows have been discounted based on a pre-tax discount rate of 5.52%.

The above impairment foss relates to the Company's Global Generics segment.

Dr: Reddy’s Srl

Based on-the business performance and expected cash flows from its business in Italy, the:Company carried out arn impairment test of Dr Reddy's Sri's cash-generating unit-and
recorded an impairment loss of goodwill and intangibles amounting to ¥ 78 and T 17 respectively during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Terbinafine

Following the Company’s decision to discontinue its research and development on terbinafine nail lacquer, the Company recorded an impairment loss on - intangible of T 20

during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Year ended 31 March: 2012

During the year, there have been certain significant changes in the German generics market such as reference price cuts, announcement of large sales tendér frahm one of the
key SHI funds. Pursuant to such adverse market developments, the Company tested its carrying value of intangibles (primardly product refated) and gootwill st the betapharm
cash generating unit (CGU) forimpainmient. The recoverable value of these intangibles was determined 1o bie the Valuesln-Use (VL) Theidmpainment testing indicated that the
ct o such

recorded animpainment loss with re

carrying value of certain product related intangibles was higher than its recoverable value and accordingly, the Company h
intangible assets amounting to ¥ 1,288 as at 31 March 2012. Additionally, as regards goodwill, the carrying value of the betapharm CGU .was also higher than the recoverable
amount resulting in a goodwill impairment of ¥ 46, The.net cash flows for various product refated.intangibles and goodwill have been:discounted based on a-post-tax. discount
rate 6 6.33% 10 8:05% for product related intangibles and 6.96% for goodwill, The aforesaid impaifment losses in the consolidated staternent of profit-and 1oss for the year
ended 31-March 2012 rélate 1o-the Company’s Global Generics segment,
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NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HEDGES OF FOREIGN CURRECY RISKS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk which arises from its foreign exchange reveniues and expenses, primarily in U.S. dollars, British pounds sterling, Russian roubles
and Euros, and foreign currency debt in U.S. dollars, Russian roubles and Euros.

The Company uses forwards, options and swap contracts (derivatives) to mitigate its risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Further, the Company also uses non
derivative financial instraments as-part of its foreign currency exposure visk mitigation strategy.

Hedges of highly probable forecasted transactions

The Company classifies its derivative contracts that hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly probable forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and measures them
at fair value. The effective portion of such cash flow hedges is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company’s "hedging reserve”, and re-classified in the statement
of profit and loss as revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions. The ineffective portion is immediately recorded in the statement of
profit and loss

The Company also designates certain non derivative financial liabilities, such as foreign currency borrowings from banks, as hedging instruments for the hedge of foreign
currency risk associated with highly probable forecasted transactions and, accordingly, applies cash flow hedge accounting for such refationships. Re-measurement gain / loss on
such non derivative financial labilities is recorded as part of reserves and surplus within the Company’s “hedging reserve”, and re-classified in the statement of profit and loss as
revenue in the period corresponding to the occurrence of the forecasted transactions.

In respect of the aforesaid hedges of highly probable forecasted transactions, the Company has recorded, as a part of reserves and surplus, a net profit of ¥ 1,683 and a net loss
of ¥ 2,483 for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company also recorded, as part of revenue, a net loss of ¥ 2,576 and a net loss of ¥ 1,219 during the
year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The net carrying amount of the Company’s “hedging reserve” in reserves and surplus before adjusting for tax impact was a loss of T 253 as at 31 March 2013, as compared to
aloss of T 1,936 as-at 31 March 2012

The table below summarizes the periods when the forecasted cash flows associated with derivative hedging instruments are expected to occur:

. A
31 MARCH 2013

Cash ﬂowé

in U.S. Dollars (figures in equivalent rupee millions)

Not later than one marith

Later than one month and not later than three months

Later than three

nth and not later than six months

ix month

o

Later than one month and not later than three months

Later than three month and not later than six months

Later than six month and not later than two years

Hedges of recognized assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting is applied are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The changes in fair value of such derivative contracts as well as the foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the monetary

iterns are recognized as part of foreign exchange gains and losses.

Fair values of foreign exchange derivative contracts are determined under the Modified Black Scholes technigue by using inputs from market observable data and other relevant

terms of the contract with counter parties which are banks or financial institutions.

In respect of the aforesaid foreign exchange derivative contracts and the ineffective portion of the derivative contracts. designated as cash flow hedges, the Company has
recorded, as part of foreign exchange gains and losses, a riet'gain of ¥ 501 and a net gain of ¥ 410 for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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The following are the outstanding foreign exchange derivative contracts for hedges of recognized assets and liabilities:

As at 31 March 2013

Forward ’Ckon et ‘ usp INR " y Ush 23 Buy Hekdgmg’ o
Forward Contract ’ usp _INR o usbasy Sell ... Hedging.
Forward Contract usb RON ~ush13 Buy

Forward Contract EUR UsD EUR 30.5 sall Hedging
Option Contract usp INR UsD 130 Sell Hedging
Swap Contract v usb - INR Usb 64.70 Sell Hedging

i i g " il i
Forward Contract INR Ush 70 Sell Hedging
Forward Contract R EURTO Sell Metdging
Option Contract INR » UsSh 194 Sell Hedging

The following are the outstanding foreign currency derivative contracts, which are classified as cash flow hedges and effective:

As at 31 March 2013

Forward Contract uso INR 3 Usp 1 B
Option Contract T uUsSh INR ’ 13 USD 465 ? 300
Swap Contract : EUR- INR 1 EUR1E.5 50

As at 31 March 2012

o

Forward Contract uso INR R , USD 410 SR04
Option Contract usb INR 15 USH 180 245

NANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary risk management focus is to minimize
potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established o identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Company, t0 set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Riskcassessment antd management
policies and processes are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Commitiee is responsible
for overseeing Company's risk assessment and management policies and processes.

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a finandial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligatians, and atises-principally from
the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the credit worthiness of customiers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company astablishes an allowarice for doubtful debts and
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure ta credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of
the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit
limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to-which the Company grants credit terms in the normal-course of business. As at 31 March 2013 and 31
March 2012 the maximum-exposure to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is ¥ 31,804 and ¥:25,368 respactively.

ANNUAL REPORY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables amounting to € 23,085 and ¥ 20,697 were neither past due nor irmipaired as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 respectively.

Trade receivables that are past due but notimpaired

The Company’s credit period for customers generally ranges from 20 - 180 days. The age analysis of the trade receivables has been considered from the due date of the invoice.
The-ageing of trade receivables that are past due, but notimpaired, is given below:

AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

Trade receivables that are impaired
The age analysis of the trade receivables that are impaired is given below:

AS AT

31 MARCH 2013

1-90 o

. 9:7‘:_“1,,80 .

More than 180 )
%

Reconciliation of the allowance account for credit losses

The details of changes in provision for bad debts during the year ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows;

201213

494
173
(130)

o

Balance as at 1 April

Provision made during the year

off during the y&ar .
e

b, bty Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to
the Company's reputation.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Company had unutilized credit imits from banks of ¥ 20,364 and T 14,290, respectively.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had working capital of ¥ 29,322 including cash and bank balances of ¥ 20,171 and current investments of ¥ 1,966. As at 31 March 2012,
the Company had working capital of Z 24,076 including cash and bank balances of ¥.16,061 and current investments of T 2,070.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (other than obligations under finance leases which have been disclosed in
Note 2.35, Bonus Debentures which have been disclosed in Note 2.40 and provision for employee benefits which have been disclosed in Note 2.5) as at 31 March 2013

Trade payables 9,657 - - - - 9,657
Short term borrowings v 18,986 - - - - 18,986
Long term borrowings - 2,999 5,978 2,989 5 11,971

Other liabilities and provisions v e _21,1”78 _ 31 26 26 50 21,311
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| RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (other:tharobligations under: finance: leases -which -have been

disclosed in Note 2.35 and Bonus Debentures which have been disclosed in Note 2.40 and provision for employee benefits which have been disclosed in Note 2.5)
as at 31 March 2012:

Trade payables ) ’ - s o - 7,566
Short term borrowings - - 15,888
Long term bcnm\k/\/i'n'gs' : o B 19 2,811 '2',64? = 11,080
Other liabilities and provisions ’ 22,260 30 26 N

ue of & financial
insttUment may change as a result of changesin the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk-sensitive {nstruments,
Market risk is-attributable to all market fisk=sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency teceivables and payables and long tarm detit; The Corpany is exposed-to
market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company's exposure to market risk is a function
of investing and horrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

Fareign exchange risk

The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses (primarily in U, 5. dollars, British-pouinds sterling, Roubles and Euros) and
foreigh currency borrowings {in U:S: dollars; Euros and: Roubles). A significant portion of the Company's feverities are in these foreign cutrencies, while'a significant portion of

its costs are in Indian rupees. As a result, if the Value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company's

financial performance may get adversely
impacted. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially

in the future, Consequently, the Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward ¢

cts, option contracts and currency swap contracts 1o
mittigate the risk of changes Inforeign currency exchange rates inrespect of its forecasted cash flows and trade receivables.

The details in respect of the outstanding foreign exchange forward, option and swap contracts are given in Note 2.38 above,
in respect of the Company's derivative contracts, a 10% decrease / increase in the respective exchange rates of each of the currencies Underlying such contracts

would -have resulted in anapproximately 2,381 701,854) increase / (decrease) in the Company’s ‘hetlging -reserve and “an approxirately ¥ 1478 7-(1,535) increase -/
{decréase) in the Company's net profit as at 31 March 2013,

ch contracts would have
resulted in an approximately € 2,564 increase/decrease in the Company’s hedging reserve and an approximately ¥ 1,306 increase/decrease iri the Company's net profit as at 31
March 2012. '

In respect of the Company’s derivative contracts, a 10% decrease / increase in the respective exchange rates of each of the currencies underlying

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2013:

(All figures.in- equivalent rupees milfions)

Assets:
Cash and bank balances 6,962 143 : 740
Trade Receivables 15,910 1,602 2,657

Long term, short term loans and advances and other current assets 714

anh:!més ’ ‘
'Tr‘aydg bayab?es 1,918 - 147 214 : 467
' Long term borrowings ; T g4 . 4
Short-term borrowings - T27A 2,676 bB3G i
Other fiabilities and provisions 3759 137 1 ‘

4 Others include currencies such as British-pounds sterling, Swiss franc, South African Rand, Mexican pesos, Venezuela bolivars, etc,
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SOTE 20 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) ‘ .

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2012:

(All figures in equivalent rup

Assets:
Cash and bank balances Sl ~ 93 255 2,082

Trade Receivables 1,668 5,139 1,733

t term loans

Liabilities:

Trade payables . 2,160 126 94
Long term borrowings - 11,042

Short term bbn’o\&ingé - - » - 9,488

i Others include currencies such as British pounds sterling, Swiss franc, South African Rand, Mexican pesos, Venezuela bolivars, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, every 10% depreciation / appreciation in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the respective currencies in the above
mentioned financial assets / liabilities would affect the Company's net profit by approximately T 116 and ¥ 574 respectively, from such financial assets / liabilities.

interest rate risk

As of 31 March 2013, the Company had foreign currency loans of T 23,174 carrying a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 50-145 bps whereas as of 31 March 2012 foreign
currency loans were T 23,334 carrying a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 100-150 bps. These loans expose the Company to risk of changes in interest rates. The Company’s
treasury department monitors the interest rate movement and manages. the interest rate risk based on its policies, which include entering into interest rate swaps as considered
necessary. A 10% increase or decrease in the floating interest rate component (i.e. LIBOR) of the Company's borrowings would result in an insignificant impact on its net
profit

The Company’s investments in time deposits with banks and short term liquid mutual funds are for short durations, and therefore do not expose the Company to significant
interest rates risk.

Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw
material components for such active pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices
of the Company’s raw materials generally fluctuate in line with commodity cycles, although the prices of raw materials used in the Company’s active pharmaceutical ingredients
business are generally more volatile. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s operating expenses. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and
managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has historically not entered into any material derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations
in commodity prices.

1SSUANCE OF BONUS DEBENTURES

On 24 March 2011, the Company had allotted 1,015,516,392, 8.25% Unsecured Redeemable Non convertible Bonus Debentures aggregating to ¥ 5,078. The interestis payable
at the end of 12, 24 and 36 months from the initial date of issuance. The bonus debentures are redeemable at the end of 36 months from the initial date of issuance. These
debentures have been listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has created a Debenture Redemption Reserve aggregating to ¥ 1,712 and T 867 as at 31 March 2013 and

31 March 2012 respectively.
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47 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH NORDION

During March 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Nordion Inc. - (formerly known as MDS Inc) 16 settle its ohgoing fitigation-for -alléged-bréach of
service obligations by Nordion Inc. during the years 2000 to 2004. As part of the settlement, the Company received a total amount of ¥1,220 (USD 22.5 million)
from Nordion, out of which €108 (USD 2 million) is towards reimbursement of research and development cost and the same is recorded as reduction in such cost. The balance
1112 (USD 20.5 million) is towards "lost profits’ and the same is recorded as part of other operating revenue.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached

forBS R & Co. forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101248W

Natrajh Ramakrishna G V Prasad Chalrman & Chiefl Executive Officer
Partner K Satish Reddy Vice Chatrman & Managing Director
Membership No.: 032815 Saumen Chakraborty President & Chief Financial Officer

¢

Place : Hyderabad Sandeep Poddar Company
Date r 14 May 2013

tary
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We Have adapted IFRS as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (/ASB) for preparing our financlal statements for the purpose ol filings with SEC. We have furnished
all‘ourintérim financial reports of fiscal 2013 with SEC which were prepared under IFRS. The Aninual Reportin Forn 20-Fwill also be made available at the Company's website.
Ahard copy.of such Ahnual Report in Form 20-F will be made available to the shareholders, free of charge, upon request for detalls visit v, drreddys com

The extract of the audited consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS has been provided here under:

ALLAMOUNTS INTINDIAN RUPEES MILUTONS  EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND PER SHARE DATA

Current assels

Cash and cash equivalents o o - : 2L

Gther investments ) B
Trade receivables o " . 31,974
CAnventories S ' | 21,600

Derivative finandial instrurments )

Current tax assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investment in-equity accounted investees
Other investiments - nof cuient

D ed tax assets

Cther no current assets

Total non current assets

Corrent liabilities 5 -
Trade payables 211862
- Derivative finandal instruments 9b e
Current tax liabilities - . o 997
“Bank overdraft ) ] ) o 82
Short term borrowings . - R , :
Long term borrowings, cutrent portion 31
Provisions i o ' 1,926
Other current liabilities :
Total current liabilities
Non current liabilities .
Long term borrowings o o : 2625
Provisions - non current . 47
D ed tax liabilities » 988
Other-non current liabilities - ' 963
Total non current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the ;iarent :
Share-capital o 848
Equity shares held by controlled trust : ¥ 5
Share premium L i , 2093
re based payment reserve ' 800
Debeniure redemption _ e
Retained earnings o ; 31,599
Othercomponents of equity : - : : L , 2,403
Equity holders of the Company
Nor controlling interests
Total equity
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND PER SHARE DATA

" ‘féw i
v a*ﬂ“%‘(g&

@Pwnw ) , Cxiese e e

Cost of reventies 37 34,430

Gress prcxﬂt

Selling, g@néra‘ and administrative exppnses o - 33,584 ‘ - s -
Research and development expenses 7674 ; - 5,911 5080
vpa irment 10 55 0N intangible assets 507 1,040 -
181

Other (income) / expense, net 79

23,689

Impairment !oss on goodwill

Total operating expenses
Results from operating activities o 21112 18,252
Finahce expense (1,018} k - (1 067) N
France income B . S o [T Lo ]73,,:;
Finance (expense) / mcome, net - 460 _ _ k ?160 ?(189)
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of income tax e 104 54 3
Profit hefore income tax ’ ’ G 121,676 18,466 12,443
Income tax expens N 1(4,900). (4,59(4) (1,403)
S

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 16,777

Non controlling interests ) ()
Profit for the year A
Earnings per share

Rasnc B
D:tuted

Weighted average number of equity shares used in ‘t‘:;'r‘nputing earnings
per equity share
Basc - ' 169,777,458 169,469,888 169,128,649
Diuted - - 170,432,680 170,177,944 169,965,282

ALL AMOUNTS IN {INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND PER SHARE DATA
ng‘x THE YEAR ENDED
21 MARCH 2013
profit for the year 16,776 214,262
’Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Changes in fair va?ue f avai fabie for sale -manaal instruments 22 - ?7
Foreign currency tram%atxon ad ustments 711 421
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedgés net (2,496) 37
Income tax on other comp 'e‘wemi incorr 860 N (59)

Other comprehenswe income / (Eoss) for the year net of income tax 2(923)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Nor controlling interests

I
IR A R

13,339 e
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA AND WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

THE NET AGGREGATE.OF PROFITS {LOSSES) OF THE | THE HET AGGREGATE OF PROFITS (LOSSES) OF THE
NUMBER OF SHARES IN THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY HELDBY DR.REDDY'S | SUBSIDIARY COMPANY FORTT'S FINANCIAL YEARSD | SUBSIDIARY COMPARY. FOR IT'S PREVIOUS EINANCIAL
ABORATORIES LNITED AT THEABOVE DATE | AR AS THEY CONCERN THE MEMEERS OF DR, REDDY'S - YEARS SO FAR AS THEY CONCERN THE MEMBERS OF
« g}m@ﬁ | L LABORATORIES LIMITED® | DR, REDDY'S LABORATORIES LIMITED
HAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY | A)DEALTWITH INTHE | BjNOT DEALT WITH IN THE |
Ne- m{)g}z N EQuITY i Accoijm OF DR. REDDY'S, 2{0.){}}%? OF DR, REDDY'S | Acm“éﬁﬁ%ﬁ mg;g i}m g:gggﬁg
EQUITY SHARES | PREFERENCESHARES | oo ool HoLDiG s, | CASORATORIESUMITED ' LABORATGRIESUMITED | o LNITED £OR SIS LAiITED SR
! oo 41 i | THE YEARENDED 31032012 | THE YEAR ENDED 31032012
31.03.2013 - i - - 4
31.03.2013 o - o - - : 0
31.03.2013 940,544,104 14,750,000 100 100 < - 327
31032013 [ . - - - 4 -
31.03.2013 o - - - - 5 {750
31.03.2013 134,513 - 100 - = - - :
231:03.2013 i - - - - (13) -
31.03.2013 ol - - - : (125) b S 7(} i
31.03.2013 26,699,230 . 100 - 72 £ (24}
.31:.03.2013 100 - 160 - - 85 - 17
:31.03.2013 i - - - - 32 - (266)
231.03.2013 " . - o - : {1 4]
31.03.2013 34,022,070 . o 100 - - 1 - -
:31.03.2613 i - - - - - = B
31.03.2013 i - - : (420) & (195}
31.03.2013 n - - 23 : 6
31.03.2013 o - - - - (69 - 211
althcare Limited) 31.03.2013 - - - 9 3 30)
31.03.2013 50,000 - R Lt - - -
31.03.2013 o - - - - (167) - 163
3103 10“ - - - (17 - (30}
. 100 - 66 B (139
: 31,03.201 : - - 356 : 41
bo'a tores ‘LK} 2 31032013 ’ - - I 153 = 166
asz‘aierées iLﬁ\C ki 31.03.2013 - - - - > Iy
i - - - - 672
- - - - . iy
1.03.2013 75,640 ZW* 100 B 4401
31032013 50,000 100 - = 24
31032013 o B - Sniil 2
. 31.03.2013 2371826 - el - : -
31032013 140,526,270 - 100 - - - (373
31032012 o - ) - - - + 95
31032013 @ 5933 . - o 03
16,033 10 - - 353
31032013 - - - 2 :
. 3103, 2{’}1 3 N R i =
1032013 - B =
‘Bﬁ 2{‘;33 ) - - i <
31032013 - - - 5
31.03.2013 o - 100 - -
31032012 - R -
- 31.03.2013 - R - :
31032013 131640 - 100 - =
3 {4
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Notice is hereby given that the 29" Annual General Meeting of the

mernbers of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 31-July 2013
at 10.30° A.M. at the Grand Ball Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, Road
No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad ~ 500 034, Andhra Pradesh, India,
to transact the following business:

6.

To receive, consider” and “adopt the Balance Sheet .as at
31 March 2013 and the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date along with the Reports
of the Directors” and Auditors” thereon.

To declare dividend on the equity shares for the financial year
2012-13.

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Ashok S Ganguly, who
retires by rotation, and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of D1. J.P Moreau, who retires by
rotation, and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Kalpana Morparia, who
retires by rotation, and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

To appoint the Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration.
The retiring Auditors B $ R & Co., Chartered Accountants are
eligible for re-appointment.

RE-DESIGNATION OF MR. G V PRASAD, WHOLE TIME
DIRECTOR, AS CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the re-designation of Mr. G V Prasad as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, without
any variation in the terms and conditions like remuneration,
balance tenure and others relating to his appointment as
approved by the shareholders at their Annual General Meeting
held on 21 July 2011.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and are hereby authorized to re-designate
Mr, G V Prasad, from time to time, as may be decided by the
Board of Directors of the Comipany.”

RE-DESIGNATION OF MR. SATISH REDDY, WHOLE
TIME DIRECTOR, AS VICE CHAIRMAN IN ADDITION
TO HIS ROLE OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND: CHIEF
OPERATING OFFICER

Toconsiderand, if thought fit, to pass with or withoutmodification

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the re-d ration of Mr. Satish Reddy as
Vice Chairman in addition to his rolé of Mmmgmg, Director and
Chief Operating Officer of the
the terms-and:-conditions like femuneration; balance tenure and

Jomipany, without any variation in

others relating 10 his appointment approved by the shareholders
at their Annual General Meeting heldon 200 1uly 2012,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and ar¢ hereby authorized (o re-designate
Mr-Satish Reddy, from e {0 tinie, as may be decided by the

Roard of Directors of the Company.”

NOTES:

1.

N

6.

An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the special businessis annexed
hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and
the proxy reed not be a4 membei of the Company. The
instrument of proxy in ordér to be effective; must be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
meeting.

Thie Register of ‘WMerabers and - Share Transter Books of ‘the
Company will rémain dosed from Tuesday 16 July 2013 10
Friday, 19 July 2013 (both days tnclusive).

The Board of Directors of the Company at theit: Meeting held on
14 May 2013 has recommended a dividend of%:15:00 per share
on equity share of € §/- each as final dividend for the financial
vear 2012-13. Dividend, if declaved, at the Annual General
Meeting, will be paid on or after 7 August 2013,

Members are requested to intimate immediately, any change in
their address or bank mandate to their dépository participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat-account or to the
Company’s Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Bigshare Services Private
Limited, if the shares are held by them in ¢ertificate form.

Members, desiring any -information relating to ithe accounts,
are requested 1o write o the Company at atcearly date stras o
enable the management o keep the information ready.

For the convenience of members:and for proper conduct. of
the meeting, entry 1o the place of meeting will be regulated by
attendance slip, which s a part-of the annual repoit. Members
are requiested to sign at the place provided on the attendance slip
and hand it overat the entrance tothe venne,




8. Members are requested to kindly bring their copy of the Annual
Report with them at the Annual General Meeting, as no extra
copy of Annual Report would be made available at the Annual

General Meeting.

9. Pursuant to Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956, members
are entitled to make a nomination in respect of shares held by
them in physical form. Membersdesirous of making a nomination
are requested to send their requests inr Form No. 2B in duplicate
(which will be made available on request) to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

10. The certificate from the Auditors of the Company certilying that
the Company’s Dr. Reddy’s Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2002
and Dr. Reddy's Employees ADR. Stock Option. Scheme, 2007
are being implemented in accordance with the SEBI (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme),
Guidelines, 1999 and the resolution of the members passed
at the general meeting, will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting.

11, The brief profile of the Directors proposed to be appointed/
re-appointed is given in the section on Corporate Governance.

12. The annual report for the financial year 2012-13 has been
sent through email to those members who have opted to
recelve electronic communication or who have registered their
email addresses with the Company / depository participants.
The annual report is also available on our website, ie.

www.drreddys.com. The physical copy of the annual report has

been sent to those members who have either opted for the same

or have not registered their email addresses with the Company/

depository participant. The members will be entitled to a physical
copy of the annual report for the financial year 2012-13, {ree
of cost, upon sending a request to the Company Secretary at
8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad ~ 500 034, Andhra
Pradesh, India.

13. In terms of the Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated
21 March 2013 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, listed companies are required to use the Reserve Bank of
India’s approved electronic mode of payment such as Electronic
Clearance Service (ECS), LECS (Local ECS)/RECS (Regional
ECS)/NECS (National ECS), NEFT, etc. for making cash payments
like dividend etc. to the members,

Accordingly, members holding securities in demat mode are
requested to update their bank details with their depository
participants. In case of members holding securities in physical
form are requested to send a request to the Company Secretary
at 8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad ~ 500 034,
Andhra Pradesh, India.
14. Disclosures in this Annual Report regarding change in
designations of Mr. G V Prasad and Mr. Satish Reddy may be
considered as an abstract and memorandum of interest of

Directors under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

By Order of the Board

CEHYDERABAD
DATE 14 MAY 2013

COMPANY SECRETARY

Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the
Companies Act, 1956

ITEMNOS. 768 8

Dr. K Anji Reddy, Founder & Chairman of the Company, passed away
on 15 March 2013, and consequently, based on the recommendation
of the Nomination, Governance and Compensation Cominittee,
the Board of Directors vide their circular resolutions passed on
30 March 2013, has approved the re-designation of Mr. G V Prasad and
Mr. Satish Reddy as under:

»  Mr GV Prasad as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company; and

s Mr Satish Reddy as Vice Chairman in addition to his role. of

Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer.

The above changes in designation are effective 30 March 2013,
The terms and conditions like remuneration, balance tenure and
others relating to the appointment of Mr. G V Prasad and Mr. Satish
Reddy, as approved by the shareholders at their annual general
meetings held on 21 July 2011 and 20 July 2012, respectively, remain

the same.

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in item no. 7 and 8

for approval of the members.

None of the Directors other than Mr. G V Prasad and Mr. Satish
Reddy are concerned or interested in the above resolutions.

By Order of the Board

Saprnchersoyy Padalas

COMPANY SECRETARY

PLACE HYDERABAD
£ 14 MAY 2013
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APl
ADR
ARI,
AP
AGM
BDMA
BR

Dok
DIN
DRF
DREHE
DIMVF
EBIDTA,
EPS
ERC
ESOP
ERM
FAPCCH
FICC
FY

FTO
GPs
GDUFA
GSK
GDR

IDMIA
IPA
IACC
CAI

Indian Rupees

Abbreviated New Drug Application
Accounting:Standards

Active Pharmhaceutical Ingredient
American - Dapository Receipt

American Remedies Limited

Andhra Pradesh

Annual General Meeting

Bulk Drug Manufacturers Association
Business Responsibility

BSE Limited

Central Depository Services (India) Limited
Centre of bxcellence

Chemical Technical Operations

Cheminor Drugs Limited

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Code of Buginess Conduct and Ethics
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
Commonwealth of Independent States
Compounded Annual Growth Rate
Confederation of Indian Industry
Corporate Social Responsibility

Custom Pharmaceutical Services

Centre for Social Initiative end Management
Depository Participant

Design of Experiments

Director Identification Number

D Reddy's Foundation

Dr. Reddy’s Foundation for Health Education
Drug Master File

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
Earnings Per Share

Education Resource Center

Employees Stock Option Plan
Enterprise-wide Risk-Management
Federation of Andhia Pradesh Chambers of Coramerce & Industry
Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and industries
Financial Year

Formulation Technical Operations

General Practitioners

Generic Drug Use Fee Act

GlaxoSmithKline Plc.

Global Depository Receipt

Global Domestic Products

Global Generics

Global Reporting Index

Good Manufacturing Practices

Green Chemistry & Engineering

Human Resources

Indian Drug Manufacturers Association
Indian Pharmaceutical Alliance

Indo American Chamber of Commerce
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

| ANNUAL REPORT

IMS
IGAAP
IT

PO
PDO
P

1CH
IFRS
KAR-JVR
KARV
KRAs
LABRS
MD&A
MD
MAbs
NSDL
NSE
NCEs
NYSE
NCDs
NGO
NRBCs
NRJ
NA
o
oTC
PSAI
PV
PLGA
PSRs
PAT
PACE
PromOTE
QhD
R&D
RBCs
Row
RoCE
SHE
SOX
SEB!
SEC
SMT
SG&A
SRI
SMEs
SEFL
TMB
TAMS
UK
usn/$
US FDA
US/USA
UN
VEDL

IM§ Health fhc.

Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
information Techriology

Initial Public Otter

Integrated Product Develapment Organization

Intellectual Property

international Corference of Hormonization
Infernational Financigl Reporting. Standards
Kallam Anji Reddy Vocational Junior- College
Kallam Anii Reddy Vidyalaya

Key Result Areas

Livelihood Advancement Business School
Managerment Discussion & Analysis
Managing Director

Monoclonal Aftibodies

National Secutities Depository Limited
National Stock Exchange ofdndia Limited
New Cherfiical Entities

New York Stock Exchiange, Inc.
Non-Convertible Debenturas
Non-Governmertal Organisation
Non-Resident Bridge Centres

Non-Resident indian

North America

On-Job Training

Over-the-counter

Pharmaceuticals Services and Active Ingredients
Pharmacavigilance

Poly Lacticco-Glycolic Add

Professional Sales Representatives

profit After Tax

Frogram to Achieve Costiand Capabiiities txcellence
Promotion of:-Oncology Tralning-and Education
Quality by Design

Research and Development

Residential Bridge Centres

Rest of the Waorld

Returivon Capital Employed

Safety, Heallh and Environment

Sarbanes Oxley Act; 2002

Securities and-Exchange Board of India
Securities and Exchange Commission

Self Managed Team

Selling, General and Adminisirative

Skilling Rural India

Srnadt Meditm Enterprises

Staridard Egquity Fund-imited

Talert Management Board

Time and Attepdance Managerent System
United Kingdom

United States Dollar

United States Food and Drug Administration
United States of America

United Nations

Vital and Essential Drug List



Dr REDDY’S

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Regd. Office: 8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad ~ 500 034

Attendance Slip

Regd. Folio No. / Client ID

Name & Address of
First / Sole Shareholder

No. of Shares held

| hereby record my presence at the 29™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 31 july 2013 at 10.30 AM. at the Grand Ball
Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034.

Signature of the Member / Proxy

Notes;
a) Only Member / Proxy can attend the meeting. No minors would be allowed at the meeting.
b)  Member / Proxy who wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly filled in and signed.

¢)  Member / Proxy should bring his / her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.

M%_MW.WWMW-M._““wmmw_ﬁhwmwm%wﬁ

Dr . REDDY’S

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Limited
Regd. Office: 8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034

Proxy Form
Regd. Falio No. / Client 1D
No. of Shares held
VWe
of being a member / members
of the above named Company, hereby appoint of
UV ] or
failing him / her of

as my / our Proxy to attend and vote for mefus on my/our behalf at the 29% Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 31 July 2013
at 10.30 AM. at the Grand Ball Room, Hotel Taj Krishna, Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034, and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Revenue

Stamp
Signed this day of 2013

Notes:
a) Proky need not be a member of the Company.

by The Proxy Form duly filled in and signed by the member(s) across Revenue Stamp should reach the Company’s Registered Office: Dr. Reddy's Laboratories
Limited, 8-2-337, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034 at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

¢} Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the board
resolution authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.
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